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MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
COMPANY. PVT. LTD

ABOUT THE COMPANY

Established in 1995, MWSC is the pioneer organization in the Maldives to administrate a water
production and wastewater management system to counter the issue of water shortages and a
lack of an appropriate sewer system in the capital island Male’. MWSC was established with the
key objective to design, develop, operate and maintain the public water supply and wastewater
disposal system in the Greater Male’' Region. Today, our utility services have expanded to include
electricity and waste management services under its umbrella. Presently, our operations are
established in the Greater Male region, K. Maafushi, HDh. Kulhudhufushi and R. Dhuvaafaru and
proudly serves to over 50% of Maldivians. Building around its strong foundation in the field of utility
services, MWSC embarked on a diversification journey in 2002 by incorporating Island Beverage
Maldives (IBM) as a subsidiary firm specialized in bottled water production and distribution. MWSC
became the first pipe producer in Maldives by commencing PE and PVC pipe production in 2015.
MWSC's diversification journey has continued till to date and is now a renowned multi-disciplined
Engineering and Manufacturing Company. MWSC's four core business units are utility operations;
manufacturing operations; engineering solutions; and trading.
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OUR VISION

To provide safe water and

sewerage services that is

sustainable, affordable and
environment friendly.

OUR MISSION

To contribute to the
continuous development of
the Maldivian Society, and
improve the quality of life
of its people, through the
provision of safe water and
sewerage services.

CORE PUREPOSE

To help our communities
lead a PURE life.
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SHAREHOLDERS

Hitachi Ltd holds 20% of MWSC's shares while 80% is owned by the Government of Maldives since
2010. Knowledge transfer and continued assistance from Hitachi Ltd are immensely valued and is
considered a prominent strength of MWSC.

The issued share capital of the company as of the balance sheet date was MVR267 million and
no option, warrants or conversion right have been granted during the year in respect of the
Company's share capital. There has been no change to the shareholding structure of the Company
in 2021 and remain as follows as of 31st December 2021.

20%
HITACHI, LTD
53,400

SHAREHOLDERS

80% 267,000

GOVERNMENT
OF MALDIVES

213,600

SUBSIDIARIES

The only subsidiary of MWSC is the joint venture company established for the water bottling
operations, Island Beverages Maldives Pvt Ltd. (IBM). Out of the 15,000 shares issued by IBM,
MWSC holds 51 percent while Joint Venture Partners Champa Brothers Maldives Pvt. Ltd. holds
49 percent. Island Beverages Maldives Pvt Ltd currently led by its Managing Director, Mr. Ibrahim
Anwar, who also represents MWSC on IBM's Board of Directors.

Island Beverages Maldives Pvt Ltd has played a pivotal role in overall corporate strategy,
contributing to our growth and expanding our presence in the industry.

Looking ahead, we remain confident in the continued success of Island Beverages Maldives Pvt
Ltd. Our strategic focus on innovation, operational excellence and customer satisfaction will
enable the subsidiary to thrive in a rapidly evolving market landscape. We will continue to provide
the necessary resources and support to foster its growth and capitalize on future opportunities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR.HASSAN SHAH
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Hassan Shah was appointed as the Managing Director and Executive Director of the Board of
MWSC on 21st January 2020.

Prior to his appointment as Managing Director of MWSC, Mr. Shah held the position of Chief
Executive Officer of Maldives Transport and Contracting Company Plc and Chairman of Maldives
Post Limited. He has also served at the Ministry of Environment as the Minister of State, as a
member of the Elections Commission of the Maldives and as a Director of Water Solutions Private
Limited. Mr. Shah is a registered Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Consultant.

Mr. Shah holds a Bachelor's Degree in Environmental Science from Yuvaraja's college, University
of Mysore, India.

Mr. Shah is an executive, non-independent director of the Board appointed by the Government of
Maldives. Mr.Shah is the Chairman of Board Directors of Island Beverages Maldives Pvt. Ltd (IBM)
to representing Male’ Water & Sewerage Company Pvt. Ltd.

MR.MOHAMED SHAREEF
DEPUTY MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Mohamed Shareef was appointed as the Deputy Managing Director and Executive Director of
the Board of MWSC on 28th February 2019.

Mr.Shareef served at different positions within the Government of Maldives and has served as
the Branch in-charge Manager of Bank of Maldives Villingili Branch. Mr. Shareef also serves as an
Executive Director of Alihavasaa Construction and Carpentry Pvt Ltd.

Mr. Shareef is an executive, non-independent director of the Board appointed by the Government
of Maldives. Mr.Shareef also serves as a Board Director of Island Beverages Maldives Pvt. Ltd (IBM)
to representing Male' Water & Sewerage Company Pvt. Ltd.

6
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MR.SHU KODAMA
DIRECTOR

Mr. Shu Kodama was appointed as a Director of the Board of MWSC on 18th October 2018.
Mr.Kodama serves as General Manager of Global Strategy/M&A, Corporate Strategy Division,
Water & Environment Business Unit at Hitachi Limited and has served at different positions at

Hitachi Ltd in Japan and USA.

Mr. Kodama holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from Columbia University, New York,
USA and Bachelor of Science in Physics from University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, USA.

Mr.Kodama is a non-executive, independent director of the Board appointed by Hitachi Limited.

MS.FATHMATH HANA YOOSUF
DIRECTOR

Ms.Fathmath Hana Yoosuf was appointed as a Director of the Board of MWSC on 06th March
2019.

Ms.Hana is highly experienced HR consultant at H-HR Consultancy providing consultancy in
employment law and HR compliance. Mr.Hana held the position of Manager, Human Resources at
MWSC from 2014-2015 and has served at several different positions within the Company during
her long tenure.

Ms.Hana holds a Bachelor of Business Administration (Hons) Human Resource Management from
Multimedia Univeristy, Melaka, Malaysia. Ms.Hana is a non-executive, independent director of the
Board appointed by the Government of Maldives.



MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
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MR.IBRAHIM ANWAR
DIRECTOR

Mr.lbrahim Anwar was appointed as a Director of the Board of MWSC on 18th July 2019.

Mr.Anwar has rich academic background and in depth knowledge in accounting, auditing and
taxation. Mr.Anwar served as Senior Manager (Accounts and Finance) at Far Horizon Pvt Ltd and
Financial Controller at Islanders Group Pvt Ltd. Mr.Anwar is also a part-time lecturer at Islamic
University of Maldives.

Mr.Anwar holds Master of Accounting from Monash University, Caufield, Australia and Bachelor of
Accounting (Hons) from International Islamic University Malaysia, Malaysia.

Mr.Anwar is a non-executive, independent director of the Board appointed by the Government
of Maldives. Mr. Anwar also serves as a Board Director of Island Beverages Maldives Pvt. Ltd
(IBM) representing Male’ Water & Sewerage Company Pvt. Ltd. in the Board of Directors of Island
Beverages Maldives Pvt. Ltd. (IBM) and is appointed as the Managing Director of Island Beverages
Maldives Pvt. Ltd (IBM).

MR.AHMED EVAN ISMAIL
DIRECTOR

Mr.Ahmed Evan Ismail was appointed as a Director of the Board of MWSC on 24th November
2020.

Mr.Evan serves as a Director at Triento Maldives Pvt Ltd, a company assisting in organizational
development. Mr. Evan holds a Bachelor of Science (Hons) in Business Information System from
University of East London, UK.

Mr.Evan is a non-executive, independent director of the Board appointed by the Government of
Maldives.
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors have delegated the primary authority to implement its policies and achieve
strategic objectives to the Executive Management Team (EMT) which is led by the Managing
Director. During the year 2021, the Company continued to be successfully managed by the EMT,
which consists entirely of local managers. The EMT managed the affairs of the Company within
the policy framework and ensured that best practices are followed in dealing with employees,
customers, suppliers and the community at large.

y

Hassan Shah
Managing Director

I

Mohamed Shareef
Deputy Managing Director

3
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Yoosuf Naleez Ali Shaheem Rusthum Mohamed
General Manager General Manager General Manager
Human Resource & Manufacturing Operation

Administration

| , | .

q Moh q

Mohamed Imran Adnan Ahmed Hunaif Bushra H
General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager
Depy Recovery ICT Engeering Business Development

In 2021, the EMT was led by Managing Director Mr. Hassan Shah since his appointment to the position on
21st January 2020. His appointment has been duly filed with the Registrar of Companies.



MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2021 the position of Company Secretary was held by Ms. Fathimath Liusha who continued to

hold the position since her appointment on 14th January 2021. Her appointment was also duly
filed with the Registrar of Companies.






MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their report together with the Audited Annual
Financial Statements of Male' Water & Sewerage Company Pvt. Ltd. (MWSC) and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS
UTILITY

Utility Sector has been the core business of MWSC since 1995 and has been successful in
delivering its key mandates i.e. provision of water, wastewater in Greater Male’ Region, K.Maafushi,
Hdh.Kulhudhuffushi. MWSC has also been providing integrated utility service (includes water,
wastewater, electricity and waste management services) to the people of R.Dhuvaafaru since 2013.

Maldive islands have been drastically developing over the past decade and it has been challenging
yeta fulfilling privilege for MWSC to provide such a fundamental right to the Maldivian communities.
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2022'S KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF UTILITY SECTOR BUSINESSES;
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11,699,175.48 CBM water produced

66, 458 total water meters were installed as of Dec 2022

MVR 7,997,172.62 invested to upgrade water and wastewater networks

MVR 1,809,873.47 invested to upgrade sewerage system

MVR 11,930,774.30 invested in water production and distribution

MVR 2,558,840.32 invested in water storage

More than 69,556 water quality tests were carried out encompassing
various chemical, physical, and microbiological parameters, targeted to
detect minute variations from our operational limits.

Ensuring 100% compliance with water quality standards is our utmost
priority. We achieve this by employing continuous monitoring of
production parameters on-site and conducting daily quality checks in
our ISO 17025-accredited Water Quality Assurance Laboratory.

Power distribution upgrade carried out in R.Dhuvaafaru with installation
and upgrade of main distribution transformer along with upgrade of power
distribution substations to cater growing demand.
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MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
COMPANY. PVT. LTD

NON UTILITY HIGHLIGHTS

MWSC began its diversification journey in 2004 with the commencement of turnkey water and
wastewater projects to outer islands. MWSC has since helped so many island communities to
access clean water and sanitation. In 2011, investments were made in Manufacturing business
followed by a third investment in Trading business in 2016. We have manufacturing plants in
Hulhumale, Gulhifalhu and R.Dhuvaafaru offering a range of products from PET bottles, glass
bottles and pipes across Maldives and MWSC's Showroom has been selling MWSC's own brands
of the manufactured goods along with imported water and wastewater related products to suit
market needs.

It has been a key objective over the years to strengthen non-utility sector businesses i.e.,
Engineering, Manufacturing and Trading businesses to bring in supplementary economic benefit
to the company.

2022'S KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF NON-UTILITY SECTOR BUSINESSES.

ENGINEERING

A

(@

Water and wastewater turnkey projects completed in 7
islands

Water and wastewater turnkey projects ongoing in 24 islands

These projects will help more than 20,000 people access clean
water and sanitation
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TRADING & MANUFACTURING

Completed TaZa returnable glass bottling project installation and
commissioning at Hulhumale bottling factory.

Began production of Maldives' first ever premium glass-bottled water
series named 'Aro'.

Conversion of R. Dhuvaafaru Bottling line to handle lightweight
bottles that would reduce plastic raw material consumption by 25%.




MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
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QUALITY ASSURANCE

MWSC takes pride in the uncompromising quality services offered that is reflected in international
standards obtained such as ISO 9001:2015, ISO 22000: 2005, OHSAS 18001:2007 and HACCP.

MWSC's water testing facility is one of the largest and fully fledged facility in the country conforming
with ISO/IEC 17025:2005 which specifies requirement for standardized water testing laboratory.

MWSC values quality assurance as a fundamental prerequisite and is in 24/7 watch to ensure

100% safety to customers.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2022

Utility businesses are MWSC's core operations, and projects such as water production and storage
expansion, water and wastewater network extension/ upgrading and long-term water security are
prioritized to ensure the Maldivians we serve are provided continued and reliable service. Utility
businesses reiterate MWSC's purpose ‘to help communities lead a pure life’. It is a privilege for the
Company to offer the best quality and uninterrupted service to Maldivians.

The annual revenue goal for 2023 is to achieve MVR 2.1 billion in total revenue of which 52%
of income will come from non-utility sector and 48% from utility sector. Annual revenue goal is
inspired to strengthen MWSC's non-utility sector to bring in supplementary economic benefit to
the company and the Maldive islands. MWSC's non-utility sector businesses increase economic
activity in the communities we operate and contribute to the GDP and overall development of the
nation.

KEY NON-UTILITY EXPANSIONS PLANNED FOR 2023;

A

(@ QUARTER 01

Provision of existing Engineering
Solutions (RO Plants, STP Tank, Borehole, Control Panel fabrocation,etc)

O )R TER 02

Construction of water & sewer project and
rectification projects

OB ) ARTER 03

Provision of Engineering Design & Consultancy service

OB | ARTER 04

Introduction of ARO sparkling

Introduction of ARO flavoured water

v Introduction of additional PET sizes (1.1L and 2.5L)
Manufacturing of Profile Extrusion (Casting)

Introduction of new range of trading products

Strengthen and enhance existing products and services portfolio







ANNUAL
REPORT 2022

INTERGRATED SUSTAINABILITY
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

We hold a strong commitment to making a positive impact on communities in the Maldives.
Our efforts encompass a wide range of contributions to various institutions, non-governmental
organizations, and local communities throughout the country.

MWSC is dedicated to fulfilling its role as a responsible corporate within
the communities where we operate, driven by our strong belief in making

a positive impact.

PRESERVING THE ENVIRONMENT

Our endeavors to address the issue of plastic waste directly contribute to the government's
Strategic Action Plan (SAP) aimed at reducing the usage of single-use plastic throughout the nation.

In the latter half of 2022, MWSC introduced ARO Premium water, a new brand of high-quality
water packaged in glass bottles. This innovative concept exemplifies our unwavering dedication
to preserving the natural splendor of this small island nation. The novelty of ARO brand is that it
promotes and provide an authentic Maldivian product that would reflect the Maldivian beauty,
culture, values and its people.



MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
COMPANY. PVT. LTD

SUPPORTING THE COMMUNITY

MWSC remains committed to supporting community development programs that encompass
various areas such as the environment, education, technical fields, health, sports, and the
empowerment of youth and women throughout the Maldives. Our allocated budget is utilized to
offer both in-kind contributions and financial donations to nonprofit organizations and government
entities, with the aim of fostering socio-economic progress within local communities.

In 2022, MWSC entered into an agreement and collaborated with the Ministry of Higher Education
to provide sponsorship for local principals. This collaboration aims to address the significant skills
shortage in this area, thereby benefiting the nation by fostering skill development.

MWSC also generously funded the establishment of a Dialysis Centre in Lh. Atoll Hospital,
prioritizing the well-being of the community and ensuring that patients in need have convenient
access to crucial life-saving dialysis treatment within the region.

Moreover, since 2020, MWSC has consistently provided support and funding to the Care Society
of Maldives as a testament to our unwavering commitment to empowering individuals with
disabilities. Through this initiative, we strive to foster inclusivity, create equal opportunities, and
enhance social well-being within the community.







MALE’ WATER & SEWERAGE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2022, the geopolitical landscape posed substantial challenges and exhibited high levels
of volatility, characterized by unprecedented inflationary conditions globally. As a utility and
construction organization heavily reliant on energy and material costs, MWSC too was not immune
to these challenges and faced significant hurdles throughout the year.

Despite these adversities, MWSC managed to achieve a revenue growth of 27%, primarily driven
by increased earnings in the construction and utilities sectors. While achieving revenue growth is
a significant objective, the enhancement of profit holds a crucial position in MWSC's value creation
strategy. During 2022 our net profit and gross profit was negatively impacted by soaring material
and energy costs due to widespread inflation, however due to the strategies implemented by
the Management, MWSC demonstrated resilience in navigating this challenging environment and
generated a net profit margin for the year 2022 of 12%, and a gross profit margin of 35%. In 2022,
the purchasing price of fuel witnessed a twofold increase compared to the year-ended 2021.

In 2022 MWSC's operating profit stood at MVR 258 million. During the year 2022 the company
recorded escalated administrative costs attributed to the recruitment of new staff members to
support the increase and magnitude in operations.

MVR Millions 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue 1,254 1,049 927 1,232 1,564
EBITDA 578 506 416 441 363
Profit After Tax 411 319 255 283 191
Basic EPS (MVR) 1,541 1,157 968 1,077 727
Dividends per Share 925 694 728 503 428
Free Cash Flow 382 216 249 28 (78)
Net Assets 1,441 1,499 1,572 1,666 1,726
Total Assets 2,182 2,469 2,891 2,891 3,444
ROCE 33.06% 24.07% 18.52% 18.52% 11.41%

*EBITDA (Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) is calculated Revenue Plus Other Income Less Cost
of sales, Administrative costs, Sales and marketing costs and adding up Depreciation & amortization.
*Free cash flow is calculated Profit Before Tax less increase in Working capital and Capital expenditure.

22
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REVENUE

MWSC's revenue primarily consists of income from water revenue, project revenue, and revenue
from the sale of bottled water and related products. These sources collectively accounted for
99% of the company’s total turnover in FY2022. The total revenue for the year 2022 amounted to
MVR 1,564.1million, reflecting a significant 27% growth compared to the previous year (FY2021:
1,232.3 million). The water segment remains the leading contributor to the overall revenue of the
company, followed by the projects and manufacturing/trading segments.

UTILITY REVENUE

The revenue generated from the Utility Segment, which includes water sales, electricity sales, and
wastewater management, amounted to MVR 854.5 million in FY2022, representing a 9% growth
compared to the previous year (FY2021: MVR 786.6 million). This increase in revenue can be
attributed to the positive developments witnessed in the Utility sector throughout 2022, primarily
driven by a rise in population within the greater Male' region. Notably, the Domestic category
emerged as the largest contributor to the revenue growth.

Utility Revenue (MVR in millions)

787
787

755
702 754

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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MANUFACTURING, TRADING AND PROJECTS REVENUE

Income from Manufacturing segment includes revenue generated through drinking water bottling
operation, (Intercompany sales to our subsidiary company) and Pipe Manufacturing and sales
from this segment grew by 23% to reach MVR 142 million (FY2021; MVR 116 million). The biggest
contributors to the increased revenue were Bottling which reported double digit growth of 18% and
pipe manufacturing revenue which increased by over 600% compared to FY2021. Manufacturing
revenue is the third largest contributor to the total revenue of the Company.

Manufacturing Revenue (MVR in millions)

142
128
19 112 1é

l l l l l
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

The income from Trading operations amounted to MVR 9.7 million in FY2022 (FY2021: MVR 8.0
million), reflecting a significant increase of 21% compared to the previous year. This income
encompasses the sale of equipment and parts related to Water & Sewerage facilities, Water
Quality testing, and asset rentals.

Trading Revenue (MVR in millions)

149

10.0 97

8.0
79

[ [ [ [ [
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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The income from Engineering Operations reached MVR 557 million in FY2022 (FY2021: MVR 322
million), demonstrating an impressive growth of 73% compared to the previous year. This revenue
primarily stems from the construction of Water & Sewerage Network projects provided by the
Government and carried out across various localislands including the 20 island water and sewerage
projects. The year 2022 witnessed a surge in external project revenue due to the substantial
progress made in completing these projects. This progress aligns with the Government's initiative
to provide sewer and water networks to the public, with the goal of completing these projects
before the end of the third quarter of 2023.

Projects Revenue (MVR in millions)

577

426
322
157

105

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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EBITDA

The company experienced a significant decline of 17.7% in Earnings Before Interest, Tax, and
Depreciation & Amortization (EBITDA) compared to 2021, resulting in a total EBITDA of MVR 362.5
million. This decline can be primarily attributed to the adverse impact of fuel and cost inflation.
Despite achieving a commendable 27% increase in revenue and a notable 29% increase in other
income, the company faced challenges due to the higher Cost of Sales to sales ratio in 2022
compared to 2021.

The decline in EBITDA resulted from a substantial increase of MVR 365 million in the Cost of Sales.
This increase was influenced by higher global fuel prices resulting from the Russia-Ukraine conflict,
as well as an upsurge in depreciation charges due to the capitalization of capital work in progress.
The average purchase price of fuel for the Company increased two fold in 2022 compared to that
of 2021.

EBITDA (MVR in millions)

416

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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PROFIT AFTER TAX

The Company recorded a net profit of MVR 190.5 million in FY2022 (FY2021: MVR 282.8 million). The
Gross Profit Margin in 2022 was 35% and the Net Profit Margin in 2022 was, indicating the adverse
impact of rising Cost of Sales and increased other expenses. Despite the increase in expenses, the
company was unable to absorb the incremental cost by increasing the selling price of utilities due
to the regulatory restrictions placed on utility tariffs. Furthermore, despite the alterations in the
business environment and the rise in inflation, the revenue generated from projects could not be
augmented due to fixed contractual agreements.

It is to be noted the Company's water operations do not receive any fuel subsidies which would
help offset the mounting fuel costs. To cover the incremental impact of the rising costs, two
potential strategies could be pursued: either increasing the sales price or obtaining subsidies to
cover the escalating fuel expenses. However, the Company was unable to implement either of
these options.

Profit After Tax (MVR in millions)

282.’;'

255

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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FREE CASH FLOWS

The Free cash flow* for FY 2022 was negative MVR 78mn. Capital expenditure remained at an
elevated level, MVR 40mn above the amount for 2021. The majority of the increase in receivables
are attributable to the Engineering segment which show a significant growth in Government
project related billings made during the year.

Free Cash flows (MVR in millions)

382

249

216

=

2018 2019 2020 2021

*Free cash flow (FCF) is defined as cash flow from operating activities, less net capital expenditure and net
interest payments.
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ASSETS

MWSC has recorded MVR 3.44bn worth of total assets (FY2021; MVR 2.89bn). These are assets
largely comprised of Reverse Osmosis (RO) plants, generators, bore-well, control pumps, water
network systems, sewerage network systems, buildings and right of use assets.

The Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) declined to 11.4% in FY2022 compared to 18.5% in FY
2021. The tangible and intangible assets of the Company are secured by insurance.

Fixed Assets (MVR in millions)

Net Assets ——— Total Assets ——@——

3444
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SHAREHOLDER'’S VALUE

The year 2022 financials shows, the basic earnings per share is MVR 727 / share (FY2021; MVR1077
/ share). The Company will maintain the dividend payout ratio same as the previous year. For
the financial year 2022, the amount proposed to be paid to shareholders is MVR 114.3 million
(FY2021; MVR 134.2 million), contributing to FY 2022: MVR 428/ share (FY21: MVR 503 / share).

Shareholder’s Value (MVR in millions)

Basic earning per share ———— Dividends per share ——@——

1541
ns7 068 1077
727
925
694 728
503
428
l l l l l
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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SUBSIDIARY PERFORMANCE

The subsidiary company established for the water bottling operations, Island Beverages Maldives
Pvt Ltd. (IBM), recorded a net profit of MVR 7.4 million in 2022 compared to a net profit of MVR
6.1 million in 2021. Out of the 15,000 shares issued by IBM, MWSC has 51% shareholdings and
Champa Brothers Maldives Pvt. Ltd. has 49% shareholdings.

In the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2022, IBM achieved a record-breaking sales volume of
4.12 million cases of TaZa bottled water. This outstanding performance can primarily be attributed
to the establishment of the Hulhumale Sales center, strategically positioned to cater to the growing
populations in various Hulhumale districts.

The introduction of 5G and glass bottles in August 2022 marked a significant milestone for the
TaZa product line, with the TaZa 5G sales positively increasing and expected to reach the projected
numbers by the end of 2023.

IBM's partnership agreement with MIFCO also played a crucial role in the company’s success.
Moreover, the decision to diversify the product portfolio by including Pepsi products served as a
pivotal step towards IBM's strategic direction.

MVR Millions 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Revenue 170 182 151 175 209
EBITDA 19 16 4 23 26
Profit After Tax 10 1 (11) 6 7
Basic EPS (MVR) 642 65 (724) 406 498
Dividends per Share 242 26 - - -
Free Cash Flow (12) 9 1 9) 4
Net Assets 53 50 39 45 50
Total Assets 131 145 135 124 138
ROCE 17% 6% -24% 15% 15%

*EBITDA (Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization) is calculated Revenue plus Other Income less Cost
of sales, Administrative costs, Sales and marketing costs and adding up Depreciation & amortization.
*Free cash flow is calculated Profit Before Tax less increase in Working capital and Capital expenditure.
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NET PROFIT DISTRIBUTION

In accordance with the dividend policy of the Company, the Directors recommended to declare 60
percent of the net profit of the Company for the year 2022 as dividend to the shareholders, and
the balance 40 percent will be retained in the Company.

STAFF BONUS

Ever since the Company started making profit, it has been customary for the Board of Directors
to declare a bonus to the staff which is based on a percentage of the net profit. The Bonus is
distributed to all deserving staff that is determined through the annual staff appraisal system.
The bonus is distributed pro-rata to the basic salary. With reference to a circular issued from the
Ministry of Finance to SOFE's, it has been decided that bonus should not exceed 3% of the dividend
declared for the year. As such, the Board of Director’s declared 3% percent of dividend as bonus
to the staff.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Since 31st December 2022 to the date of this report, no matter or circumstances have arisen that,
in the opinion of the Directors, has significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations
of the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future
financial years, which would require any adjustments or disclosures to the Financial Statements

GOING STATE OF AFFAIRS

There were no other significant developments in the state of affairs of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 not otherwise disclosed in this report or the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

We are pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report as part of our Annual Report for the
fiscal year 2022.

The Board of Directors of Male’ Water and Sewerage Company Pvt Ltd ("MWSC") considers
good corporate governance to be the foundation of a well-managed institution. The Board is
fully committed to integrity and fair dealing in all its activities and has adopted best practices
of corporate governance in all areas of its business towards enhancing business prosperity and
corporate accountability with the ultimate objective of safeguarding the interests of all stakeholders
and enhancing shareholders’ value.

MWSC's approach to corporate governance practices is founded on its own Corporate Governance
Code and seeks to apply the principles and recommendations set out in Code of Corporate
Governance for State Owned Institutions (“CG Code for SOE") developed by the Privatization and
Corporatization Board of Ministry of Finance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors plays a pivotal role in overseeing the Company's strategic direction and
decision making processes. Comprising experienced and diverse individuals, the Board brings a
wealth of knowledge and expertise to guide the organization.

Within a robust corporate governance framework, the Board of Directors of MWSC are collectively
responsible for leading the company in enhancing shareholder value and fulfilling its social
responsibilities by fostering a culture of compliance that values personal and highest standards of
corporate integrity, accountability and continuous improvement.

Assuming stewardship of the Company, the provides strategic direction, counsel and oversight
to the management of the Company in the interest of and for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders.

THE BOARD'S KEY RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, THE
FOLLOWING:

Strategy and Management Oversight: The Board engages in constructive dialogue with senior
management of the Company on their short and long-term business and financial strategies, and
reviews and evaluates management performance and progress in delivering on MWSC's strategic
goals for long-term shareholder value creation. The Board recognizes that creating long-term
value for the Company's shareholders require consideration of the concerns of other stakeholders
including customers, employees and the communities in which MWSC operates.

Establish Effective Internal Controls: The Board has ultimate responsibility for implementing
effective systems for internal controls and have oversight of MWSC's risk management activities.
The Board's Audit and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in overseeing management's
risk assessment and risk management activities within the areas delegated to it.

Protecting Integrity of MWSC's Accounting and Financial Reporting Systems: In ensuring
the integrity of the essential reporting and monitoring systems the Board sets and enforce clear
lines of responsibility and accountability throughout MWSC. The Board also ensures that there is
appropriate oversight of senior management through the internal audit system that reports to the
Board.within the areas delegated to it.
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BOARD COMPOSITON

MWSC's Board of Directors have vast knowledge, experience and insightinto the financial, business,
human resource, operational as well as commercial aspects and opportunities in various business
models and are therefore able to exercise objective judgement on corporate affairs independently
from management.

The Board presently consists of seven members of which six Directors are appointed Government
of Maldives and one Director is appointed by Hitachi Ltd. Out of the seven Directors, four are Non-
Executive & Independent Directors.

MWSC considers a strong element of independence on the Board vital for good corporate
governance and it performs an annual review of the independence of the Directors. An Independent
Director is defined as a Director who is independent of management and free from any business
or other relationship, which could interfere with the exercise of independent judgement or the
ability to act in the best interest of MWSC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors of MWSC exercise independent judgement and participate
in the deliberations of the Board objectively with no individual or small group of individuals
dominate the Board's decision-making process

The current composition of the Board is shown below and there were no changes to the Board of Directors

in 2022,
Hﬂﬁlﬁﬁ 5'-'_|ll3h Ml s Shesnsad SEhis kadaio
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ROLE OF CHAIRPERSON AND MANAGING DIRECTORS

The role of the Chairman and the CEO/Managing Director are distinct and separate; the Chairman,
being non-executive, is not involved in the day-to-day operations of MWSC. He plays a crucial role
in ensuring the smooth functioning of the Board and encourages healthy debates on strategic and
critical issues. He chairs Board meetings and arranges separate sessions with the Non-Executive
Directors to review Management's performance.

The Managing Director oversees the development and execution of MWSC's corporate and
business strategy and is ultimately responsible for managing MWSC's day-to-day operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The number of Non-Executive Directors on the Board of MWSC exceeds the minimum %
requirement laid down in CG Code for SOE Guidelines.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the past year, in addition to the regular reviews of significant policies, business and other
proposals which require the Board's approval, the board also held monthly meetings to review
reports on MWSC’s financial performance, internal and external projects and investments.
Furthermore, ad-hoc Board meetings were sometimes called to deliberate and assess corporate
proposals or business issues that require the Board's immediate consideration. When exigencies
prevent a Board member from attending meeting in person, he can participate by telephone-
conferencing or appointment of a proxy as permissible under MWSC's Articles of Association.
Board's approval for urgent matters may be obtained through written resolutions approved by
circulation.

All Directors are supplied with information on a timely manner. The agenda for each Board
meeting, together with detailed reports and proposal papers to be tabled, are circulated to the
Directors for their perusal in advance of the date of the Board meeting. When necessary, senior
staff are invited to attend Board meetings to provide the Board with detailed explanations and
clarifications on proposals tabled to enable the Board to make an informed decision.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of eleven (11) Board meetings were held. The
details of attendance of each Board member are as follows

36



ANNUAL
REPORT 2022

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of eleven (11) Board meetings were held. The details of
attendance of each Board member are as follows

Name Pos Attendance Appointed Date  End of Tenure

Mr. Ahmed Mausoom el EET) 1111 06 - Feb - 2019 28 - May - 2023
Non-Executive

Mr. Hassan Shah M oned NoDIeCton 11/11 21 - Jan - 2020 -
Executive

Mr. Mohamed Shareef DhEckel 11/11 28 - Feb - 2019 -
Executive

Mr. Shu Kodama BINSEE) 05/11 10 - Oct - 2018 -
Non-Executive

Ms. Fathimath Hana DIEED 11/11 06 - Mar - 2019 -
Non-Executive

. Director,
Mr. Ibrahim Anwar BT 11/11 18 - July - 2019 -
Mr. Ahmed Evan ismail LIRS, 11/11 24 - Nov - 2020 -

Non-Executive
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MAJOR KEY DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS DURING THE YEAR

To enhance its effectiveness in discharging its fiduciary duties, the Board has established the Audit
and Remuneration Committee of the Board which operates within specific delegated authority
and functions to complement the Board in the execution of its responsibilities.

REVIEW AND APPROVAL
OF FINANCIAL REPORTS

STRATEGIC DECISIONS

MATTERS RELATED TO
GOVERNANCE

38

Approved the Audited Financial Accounts for the year 2021
Approved to declare dividend for the year 2021, to be proposed
for shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting 2021
Approved the business plan proposed for year 2023 and
continued to review monthly and quarterly financial performance
Approved the financial statements and Directors' report of
2021, to be proposed for shareholder approval at the Annual
General Meeting 2021

Approved the Appointment of External Auditor PWC for the year
2022 to be submitted for EGM

Approved the quarterly reports of 2022

Approved to Amend the MOA of the Company to be proposed
for shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting 2021
Reviewed the recommendations presented by Audit and
Remuneration Committee based on internal audit reports and
approved to implement the recommendations

Reviewed all business segments and projects undertaken
by MWSC, offered guidance and recommendations to the
management on improving business performance and
profitability

Approved Compensation and Remuneration (Project Fixed
Term Contract Remunerations) Policy

Approved Compensation and Remuneration (Expatriate
Employees) Policy

Approved Social Media Policy

Approved Team Building and Engagement Activities Policy
Approved revision to Policy on career advancement & growth
& Policy on employee compensation and remuneration - Local
employees

Approved Water Leak Adjustment Policy

Approved appointment to representing Director to Board of
Directors of IBM
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BOARD COMMITEES

To enhance its effectiveness in discharging its fiduciary duties, the Board has established the Audit
and Remuneration Committee of the Board which operates within specific delegated authority
and functions to complement the Board in the execution of its responsibilities.

The Audit and Remuneration Committee has its Terms of Reference which set forth the
responsibilities of the Committee. The Committee ensures that MWSC has an effective and
independent internal audit function covering financial as well as management audits and
recommends appropriate remedial action on a regular basis. The Committee meets frequently as
and when required.

BOARD PERFORMANCE

The Board has implemented an annual performance evaluation process, carried out by the Board
Directors, to assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole.

Each Director evaluates the performance of the Board by way of a Self-Assessment Questionnaire
completed by Individual Board Members. The assessments are made against the pre-established
criteria in the following areas: Board Composition/Structure, Board Process, Board Governance
and Major Responsibilities of the Board

Results are compiled for the Board's deliberation and the results of the performance evaluation
are reviewed and discussed for improvements among Board Members. In the annual assessment
of the Board performance for 2022, the Board was satisfied with its current size and composition
as well as its mix of skills which is made up of individuals of high credibility and necessary skills and
qualifications to enable the Board to discharge its responsibility effectively.

CODE OF ETHICS

The current Code of Ethics adhered to by Company was adopted by its Board of Directors in 2009
and has served the Company well in ensuring its affairs are conducted with. As of 2022, the Board
of Directors are in the process of reviewing and approving a more comprehensive, improved Code
of Ethics, expected to be adopted by the board and implemented across the Company in 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

While the Company currently does not have a separate policy governing related party transactions,
its Code of Ethics currently regulates how such transactions might be dealt with and approved.
In 2022, developing a more comprehensive Related Parties Policy which is aimed at further
strengthening our Corporate Governance Practices and ensuring transparency and fairness in
our dealings with related parties was carried out.
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DIRECTOR'’S INTERESTS

The Directors of the company have no direct or indirect interest in contracts or any other
transaction of the company except as disclosed in the accounts. In accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code of the Company, a register of Director’s Interests is maintained and updated by
the Company Secretary.

KEY MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Audit and Remuneration Committee of the Board reviews and recommends to the Board,
the remuneration for Board Directors and Key Executives of the Company in accordance with the
company's Remuneration Policy.

As the remuneration for board directors of SOE's including the CEQO's are now fixed by the
PCB, the Audit and Remuneration Committee is no longer able directly ensure that Directors
remuneration is tied to performance and in the long-term interests of the Company. However,
the Remuneration Policy of the Company envisions that the remuneration for key executives
are determined based on scope of work, and measurable performance goals and other relevant
factors. Total remuneration paid to Directors and key executives in 2022 are MVR 1,065,310 and
MVR 5,820,381.00 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognize the importance of effective risk management and internal controls in
safeguarding the Company's assets and ensuring business continuity. The Board of Directors
remain committed to continuous improvement in shaping the Company’'s approach to managing
risks and to ensure that a strong, integrated risk and compliance culture is sustained.. The
Company's risk management approach centers on continued assessment, monitoring and
reporting of risks which may impact the progress of delivering our strategic priorities.

The overall responsibility for the system of internal control, designed to ensure the reliability
of the financial information and compliance with reporting obligations, lies with the Board of
Directors. The Board has approved policies, procedures and frameworks for effective internal
control including procedures for the delegation of authorities for significant matters, to ensure
approval is sought at the appropriate level. Our risk management framework identifies, assesses,
and mitigates risks across all levels of the organization.

The Company’s controlling processes are maintained so that management at all levels receives
updates on projects and financial information in a timely manner. The actual performance against
business plans, budgets and performance indicators, financial risks are monitored and presented
to the Board through regular and frequent reporting.
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An independent Internal Audit Function that reports to the Board of Directors carries out annual
audits, based on an Internal Audit Charter that is approved and reviewed closely by the Audit
and Remuneration Committee of the Board. Risks, together with their controls and treatment
are regularly reported to the Audit and Remuneration Committee which assists the Board in its
oversight function. The Committee provides regular reports to the Board.

GOVERNANCE POLICY FRAMEWORK

The Board has ultimate authority over, and oversight of the Company and regards corporate
governance as a critical element in achieving its strategic objectives. The Board strives to ensure
that the Company meets high standards of safety, performance and governance in recognition of
its responsibilities towards its shareholders, customers, employees and suppliers as well as to the
communities in which it operates

The Company has a comprehensive governance framework established and strengthened over
the years of by its Board, in close cooperation with the Company's executive management.
Governance objectives are guided by the Company's Corporate Governance Code, Code of Ethics
and adherence to the principles contained in the guidelines for Corporate Governance Code for
State Owned Entities published by the Privatization and Corporatization Board of the Ministry
of Finance and Treasury. The core elements that make up our governance framework include
the Company's organizational structure, policies and standards developed by the Board which
are evaluated and updated on a regular basis and the international standards that the company
adheres to.

Policies introduced in 2021 to improve the governance of the company include revision to debt
recovery policy,amendments to Procurement Policy and Procedure, seal use policy and procedure,
write off and accounts receivable policy and procedure and revision to Document Management
and Retention Policy.

LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Company's legal and regulatory compliance is continuously ensured by a dedicated team
of inhouse lawyers along with its external counsel. The Company ensures that its operations
are carries out in accordance with the Company’'s Act (Law No. 10/96) and operational license
requirement and has established procedures that ensure continued compliance.

AUDITORS
The external Auditor for all the State-Owned enterprises are Auditor Generals' Office of the

Maldives. The Financial accounts for the year have been audited by PWC for an audit fee of
MVR 471,967.00
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DIRECTORS STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL

STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTOL

This Statement on Risk Management & Internal Control is made pursuant PCB guidelines contained
in the Corporate Governance Code for State Owned Companies which requires the Board of
Directors to include in its Annual Report a statement about the state of its internal control.

Accordingly, the Board is pleased to provide the Statement on Risk Management
& Internal Control that was prepared in accordance with the guidelines provided
by PCB in the CG Code for SOE’s. This statement outlines the processes adopted by

Company in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITY

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility in establishing a sound risk management
framework and internal control system as well as reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness. The
Board is of the view that the risk management framework and internal control system are designed
to manage the Company’s risks within the acceptable risk appetite, rather than to eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve the business goals and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable,
rather than absolute assurance against material misstatement, fraud or loss.

The Board has established appropriate control structure and process for identifying, evaluating,
monitoring, managing and responding to significant risks faced by the Company in its achievement
of the business goals and objectives.

The control structure and processes are reviewed and updated from time to time in response
to the changes in the business environment, and this on-going process has been in place for
the whole financial year under review and up to the date of approval of the Statement on Risk
Management & Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report.
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THE ROLE OF MANAGEMENT INCLUDES:

@ Identifying and evaluating the risks faced, and the achievement of business objectives and
strategies;

® Formulating relevant policies and procedures to manage these risks;

® Designing, implementing and monitoring the effective implementation of risk management
framework and internal control system;

® Implementing the policies approved by the Board; and

® Reporting in a timely manner to the Board any changes to the risks and the corrective
actions taken

INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE

The key processes that the Board has established in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management framework and internal control system include the following

@ Established an organization structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility, authority
limits, and accountability aligned to business and operations requirements which support
the maintenance of a strong control environment.

@ Extended the responsibilities of the Audit and Remuneration Committee of the Board
to include the assessment of internal controls through the Internal Audit function that
reports to the Board

® Acquired international standard certifications or accreditations relevant to the core
business of the company, strengthening the processes there by providing quality services
and products consistently to the customers/stakeholders’ satisfaction. The Quality
Management Systems (QMS) of the company include,

® 1S09001 certification strengthens and improves the quality of our core
processes through efficient document management and risk mitigation.

® OHSAS18001 enhances the work environment by making it safe for
stakeholders, especially our employees.

® 1SO22000/HACCP certification for our bottling factories ensure that bottled
water produce by the company is free from food safety hazards

® 1SO17025 accreditation of our Water Quality Assurance laboratory ensures

that the quality of water provided to the households is monitored properly
and results produced by the laboratory are recognized worldwide.
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@ Policies, procedures and practices are updated regularly to ensure relevance and
compliance with current and applicable laws and regulations.

@ Strengthening the internal audit function, which provides independent assurance of the
effectiveness of the risk management approach.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Internal Audit function undertakes regular reviews of the Company's operations and the
systems of internal control to examine and evaluate the adequacy and efficiency of financial and
operating controls. Significant risks and non-compliance impacting the Company are highlighted
and where applicable, recommendations are provided to improve on the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control system and governance processes. Reviews by Internal Audit are
carried out on units that are identified using risk-based approach taking into consideration input
from Management, the Audit and Remuneration Committee and the Board. Management follows
through and reviews the status of actions on recommendations made by the internal auditors
and takes appropriate action required to resolve issues covering all aspects of business and
operations.

The Audit and Remuneration Committee meets on a scheduled basis to review issues identified in
audit reports prepared by Internal Audit. Where required, representatives from the parties being
audited are requested to attend the Audit and Remuneration Committee meeting to enable more
detailed deliberation and speedy resolution of the matter at hand. The Committee also follows
through on the actions required.

The Committee has active oversight on Internal Audit's independence, scope of work and resources
and evaluates the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system. It reviews the Internal
Audit function, the scope of the annual audit plan and frequency of the internal audit activities. The
Audit and Remuneration Committee regularly reports to the Board and tables an annual report
to Board. The details of the activities undertaken by the Audit and Remuneration Committee are
highlighted in the Audit Committee Report.
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ADEQUACY OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
STRUCTURE

The Board is dedicated to operating a sound system of risk management and internal controls and
recognizes that the system must continuously evolve to support the progressive business growth
of the Company. The Board is of the view that the risk management and internal control system
is sound and adequate to safeguard the Company’s operations and assets at the existing level of
operations.

No material weakness or reported shortfall in the risk management and internal control system
has resulted and/or give rise to any material loss, contingency and/or uncertainty during the
financial year under review.

The Board, with the assurance received from the Managing Director and Deputy Managing
Director, concludes that the Company's risk management and internal control system are
operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects. This statement does not include the
state of internal control in associate companies and is made in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors dated 19th July 2023.

AL =

MS.FATHMATH HANA YOOSUF MR.IBRAHIM ANWAR
INTERIM CHAIRPERSON AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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AUDITED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 2022

MANAGEMENT STATEMENT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We, Hassan Shah - CEO & Managing Director and Ajith Lanka Garunayaka Hitihamilage, Chief
Financial Officer of Male’ Water and Sewerage Company Pvt Ltd, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, certify that we have reviewed financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022
and to the best of our knowledge, information and belief:

a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;
b) These statements together present, in all material respects, a true and fair view of the

Company's affairs, the financial condition and results of operations and are in compliance with
IFRS accounting standards.

HASSAN SHAH AJITH LANKA GARUNAYAKA

MANAGING DIRECTOR HITIHAMILAGE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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DIRECTORS DECLARATION

In the opinion of the Directors of the Male’ Water and Sewerage Company Pvt Ltd (“the Company”)
the consolidated financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Law No Company’s Act
and give a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31st December 2022 and of
its performance, for the financial year ended on that date.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

IAAPL

MS.FATHMATH HANA YOOSUF HASSAN SHAH
INTERIM CHAIRPERSON MANAGING DIRECTOR
19th July 2023

Male', Maldives
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AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit and Remuneration Committee through its Terms of Reference which set forth the
responsibilities of the Committee ensures that MWSC has an effective and independent internal
audit function covering financial as well as management audits and recommends appropriate
remedial action on a regular basis.

During the year 2021, the composition of the Audit and Remuneration Committee made up of the
following members, all of whom are non-executive and independent Directors with a combined
knowledge and experience in the area of accounting and finance, and Human Resources. The
constitution of the committee complies with guideline SOE Corporate Governance Code and
MWSC's Corporate Governance Code.

Audit and Remuneration Committee members as of 31 December 2021 are as follows;

Name Position Attendance
Ms. Mr.Ibrahim Anwar Chairperson 25th November 2020
Mr. Shu Kodama Member 10th October 2018
Ms. Fathmath Hana Member 15th July 2019
Mr.Ahmed Evan Member 25th November 2020

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of fourteen (8) Committee meetings were held.
The details of attendance of each member are as follows,

Meeting

Member Remarks
Attended
Fathmath Hana 8 25th November 2020
Shu Kodama 0 Director based in :Japan however reviewed aIIJau.dits and committees .
reports and send in and r as and when required.
Ibrahim Anwar 8 15th July 2019
Ahmed Evan Ismail 8 25th November 2020
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The Audit and Remuneration Committee is required to report to the Board in writing detailing
the meetings that took place in the year and to contribute its report within the company’s annual
report for the benefit of all the shareholders.

During the year 2022, 08 meetings of the Audit & Remuneration Committee were held with the
other members of the board and the committee invites the management to attend the meetings
as and when required. These meetings were carried out with relevant head of departments to
obtain information and at times to further clarify matters raised in the audit reports, departmental
operations and challenges. This has facilitated deeper understanding of the work and risks
encountered across different areas of the Company. The Audit Committee continues to benefit
from holding its meetings as and when required.

INTERNAL AUDIT

MWSC has its own Internal Audit Department which directly reports to Audit and Remuneration
Committee. As per the guidelines from PCB, a qualified Chief Internal Auditor was recruited during
theyear to headthe Internal Audit Function. During the year, the Auditand Remuneration committee
reviewed a total of 07 audit reports undertaken by company’s Internal Audit Department. The
Committee Endorsed Internal Audit Plan for 2022, revised the functional structure and approved
the Internal Audit Departments Framework.

The main focus of the Committees in the year was to review and provide opinions to the Board on
the adequacy and effectiveness of Company's internal controls which includes, risk management,
compliance controls and governance, financial, Management and quality assurance of data
submitted to the stakeholders.

Identifying and investigating alleged cases of fraud and corruption within the organization was
also prioritized and carried out through the Internal Audit Department. For the purpose, a
comprehensive Whistleblower Policy was implemented with the approval from the Board. During
the year a total of 13 whistleblower cases were received, where 4 were proceeded for investigation.
The Committee reviewed the investigation reports and recommendations were given to the Board
and management for further action.

Overall, the Audit & Remuneration Committee is satisfied with the aforementioned changes

brought and the audit functions carried out by the Internal Audit Department during the year
2022.
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EXTERNAL AUDIT- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR END
31, DECEMBER 2022

The Committee reviewed Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2022,
and is satisfied that appropriate measures were put in place by PWC and MWSC to ensure the
independence and objective of the external auditors. The audit was conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Accounting (ISAs) and in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code).
External Auditor for the year 2022 was PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) and was appointed for a
period of two years in year 2021.

DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

Audit & Remuneration Committee is also responsible for determination of the remuneration of
the Board of Directors, which must be approved by the General Meeting of the Board before a
specific agreement on incentive pay is entered into.

The remuneration package of the Board of Directors is set as per the requirements implemented
by the government on SOE's Directors allowances.

MR.IBRAHIM ANWAR

AUDIT AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

19TH JULY 2023
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pwc

Independent auditor's report

To the Shareholders of Male® Water & Sewerage Company Pyt Lid

Chir RN

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of Male" Water & Sewerage Company Pyt
Ltd (“the Company™) and the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) give a true and fair view of the finaneial pesition of the Company and the Group as af
31 December 2022, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the vear then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group,
which comprise;

* the statement of finencial position as at 31 December 2ozz:

= the statement of comprehensive income for the vear then onded;

= the statement of changes in equity for the vear then ended;

* the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the financial statements. which include a summary of significant ascounting
policies,

Hasis for u;r'm'u.‘r
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described tn the Auditors Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Finoncial Statements section of our report.

We: believe that the audit evidenee we have obtained i sufficient and sppropriate to provide a basis
frar our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Stendards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (TESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical reaponsibilities in accordance with the TESBA Code,

Keyv audit matters

Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the oontext
of our audit of the financial statements us a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a =eparate opinion on these matters.
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by muhit matber

The C-nmpmp". Construction contracl revenne

Refer ti the sgnificant accounting polley Note 2.5.3 (b)
and Xnte 3.1 to the finamcial statements,

congtruction  project | sontracts

557,307,688,

amounting  MVE

Bevenue from constroction  projest  confrmcts are
recognised over time. The Company uses the input
method o determine the amount of revenues to be
recognistd in a given period and the stage of complation
is messured by referenee to total cost incurred relative
to total eatimated cost,

We focused i this arca due $o the significance of the
revenie recognized during the year from construstion
project  confracts, and beonuse the percentage
cormpletion of ongoing contracts invelved estimation of
future costs for each of those contracts. Any error in
Judgment or [ntent while estimating fture costs conld
resulft in an over/understatement of revenue,

Heww aviie wiiit aldressed the Key aomdii
il ivr

Specific work that we performed on the estimatied
eontract  costs for complétion used to cabeulate
pereentage completion  of construction  project
contracts determined by the mansgement in the
mput method of revenue recognition induded the
Tollowing:

- We understoosd the buwdgetary procoss for
individual contracts, the inbuilt comtrols  and
checked the effectivencss of the relevant controls,
aver the pracoss,

= Checkod the sccuracy af the budgetad sagts of the
projects completed subsequent to the reporting
dates, by comparing the actual costs of those

projects wit the respective budzets.

- Checkixd the approved summary of contract
hudgets on a sample basis with reference to the
detailed bills of quantity {BOQY, estimated labour
heure and related sosts and other overbead costs,

Impairment of trade receivables, receivables
from related parties, contract azsets and other
receivabiles

Refer to significant aceounting policy Notes 2.5.1a V),
and 29.3, Notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements,

As at 31 December 2022 the Company's  trade
receivables, recefvables from related parties, consract
arsels and other receivables amounted to MVR
901857243 before provision for impairment. An
Impeirment provision & recognised to mdjust the
receivable balances to the present value based on the
estimated  future cash flows. The prosision far
impoirment of trade receivables, receivables from
related purties, contract asssts and other receivables
umountad to MVR 136,536,208 as at 31 December 2022,

Our audit procedures on this matter included the

Tl lovwing:
= Tested the aceuracy and completiness of the
trade receivables, recaivahles from related partios,
coatrart azsets and other recelvabhles considered in
the impairment provision caleulation by checki
the arithmetical accuracy of the listing obtain
anid matching the outstanding balances with the
general ledgor,

- Checked the seouracy of the data conaidering
individual contract sssets, other recelvables,
recebmbles  from  relsted partles and  trode
receivabics balances and the aging of such
balanees on & sampie bagis, to determine whether
management's: identification of assets requiring
impairment provision was appropriste,



By audit mantier

How our audit plddressed the key guadit
e

Impairment provision is caleulated using statistical
methods and historical collection trends adjusted for
forward looking information. Significant estimates and
pssumptions wsed by the management in such
caleulations and the basis for impairment is disclosed In

_aceounting policy Note 29,5

We considered the caleulation of impairment provision
a3 a key audit matter as it is a complex ares requiring
management judgement on significant estimates and
assumptions made on customer payment behaviors and
sinee the amount of impairment provision recognized in
the financial statements s material,

The Group: Revenue recognition of the
_subsidiary Company -

Refer to the significant accounting policies Note 2.5.5 (2)
and Mote 3.1 to the financial statements.

The subsidiary Company manufactures and sells bottled
drinking water to its customers across Maldives, mainly
through its own distribution network.

That Company recognised revenue from sale of bottled
drinking water amounting to MVR 208,516,819 during
the year ended 31 December 2092,

We considered revenue recognition as a key audit matter
due to the following:

= There is a potential risk that the revenue is subject
Lo e retate.

reparted revenues,

- We tested the key underlying assumptions used in
the caleulation of the impairment provision by
evaluating the process by which those were drawn
uprand their sources. We also checkad the sensitivity
of the forward-looking information wsed in
calculathon of expected credit losses.

- We checked the appropristeness of the
methodology spplied in the determination of
impairment provision caleulation by referring the
requirements of IFRS g, Financial instruments:
recagnition and measurement, and tested the
witksheet  formuolas  and  logic  ineluding
mathematical accuracy of management's model
used to ealeulate the impairment provision.

Our audit approach ncluded both control testing
and substantive procedures performed as follows:

- Understood and  evalnated the design.
implementation and aperating effectiveness of
controls  over  initiating. recording,
processing  and  reporting  of  revenue
transactions,

- Tested the general IT controls environment and
key IT spplication controls relating to IT
application layers to the revenus recoghition.

- Tested significant revenue transactons on =
sample bagis during the vear, to ensure that
revenne hid been recognised in accordanes with
the contractual terms in the correct accounting
period and the requirements of the relevant
dtcounting standard.

- Tested significant revenue generated from
related party sales on a sample basis during the
year to ensure that revenue had been recognized
in accordance IFRS 15.

- Tested on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recopded before and after the
finamcial year end date with the undedying
gonds delivery ordets to assess whether the
reloted revenue had been recognized in (he
cormect financial period,

- Pedormed inquiries of management amd
appropriate analytical  procedures to
understand and sssess the reasonableness of
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Cither mformation

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information eomprises the Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon which is expected to be made available to us sfter the date of this auditors
report,

Onur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not BR[OS
any form of assurance concluzion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respongibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, In doing so, eonsider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtzined in the
nudit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is 4 material misstatement thersin, we ave
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Sinaneial staternents

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Internstional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and for such internal contral as
management determines is necessary to enable the prepacation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due io frand or ermor.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated finaneial statements of the
Group, management is responsible for assessing the Company and the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, us applicable, matters related to poing concern and using the E0ing concern
basis of necounting unless management cither intends to liquidate the Company and the Group or to
cease operations, or has no replistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversceing the Comparv's and the Group's
financial reporting process,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial staterents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statcments as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issne an auditer's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarsntes
that an audit condueted in accordance with 1545 will always detect & material misstatement when it
exisls Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually o in
the aggregate, they eould reasonably be expected to influcnee the economic decisions of users aken
o the basis of these financial stateinents.

As part of an audit in accordamce with 18As, we exercize professional judgment snd maintain
professional sceptietam throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
te fraud or ermor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is aufficient and appropriate to provide & Lasis for our opinion, The risk of
not detecting o material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
errar, as frawd may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internel contral,

4
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the sudét in order to design audit
procedures that are eppropriste in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of exprossing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and the Group's inteomal contral,

= Evaluste the nppropriateness of necounting policies used and the reasonshlensss of aecounting
estimates and related disclossires made by managemant

+ Uonelude on the appropristéness of mansgement's use of the going concern hasis of accounting
end, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether 8 material uncsrtainty exists ralated fo
events or conditions that may east significant doubt on the Company's/Group's ahility ta
contimue as o going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertsinty exists, we are raduired
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of
Company and the conselldated financial statements of the Group or, if such disclosures ane
isadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenes obtained up
te the date of our 2uditor's report. However, fuhare svents or conditions may eatse the Compaty
and the Group to cese to continue a8 a going eoneern.

+  FEvaluate the overal]l presentation, structure and confent of the Anancal statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements regresent the underhing rransactions and
events in o manner that achieves fair presentation,

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence vegarding the financial information of the entities
ar business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financiil
etatements. We are responsible for the dircction, supervision and performance of the froup
sudit. We remain solely respansible for our audit opinion,

We communicute with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matiers, the planned
seope and taxing of the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant defleiencies in
internal control that we identify durlng our audit,

W elso provide those charged with wovernance with 1 statement that we hive complied with the
ethical requirements in accordance with [ESBA Code of Ethies regarding independenes, and to
comeunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may ressonably be thought to hanr
an our indopendence, and whene spplicable, related sofemuands,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that wene of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and ane
therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in aur suditor's report unless lew or
regulation precludes publie disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumst apces,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report becanse the adverse
consequenices of doing so would reasonably be expected 1o cutweigh the public interest henafits of
stich communieation,

The: engagement partner on the andit resulting in this independeant auditor's reporl b5 Mobhamed
Slra) Munesr,

MALE" For PRICEW,

/9 ;:"m& 2023 .

HOUSECOOPERS
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Mivharned Sirai M
Asmpoiate Fartner




Male" Waler nnd Sewerspe Company Pvi Lid
COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year pnded 31 December 2022

GROLUF COMPANY
Wear enided Yonr erwded Y ear emded Yuear emled
3-12-2022 31-12-2021 3-12-20:22 31122021
Mode MYVE MYR MYER MYR

Resenie 3 L630GAT.671 1,381,002 474 | 564,152 263 1,233 3TH A5
Cioest of suks {037 20 300y ahd 12 S05) {1,020.995 21T {GE6,24 ], 1440]
Ciross prafit L0488, 301 G1E, 768,583 B4, 157025 ST0,037.430
Crher incoms 4 100431 662 TTEN)EOS B2, 7042 THIR5.A402
Admini=trative expenses (RETIE6,06T) (202 550, 044) (337207 602 {266 4872137
Selling and marketing expenses {31,135,018) (1,343, 177) (22,513,99%) {11,553 343]
Impairmeert of loss o finnnelol asccts [ 26497 A2 {24,685 108] {47,033 (W34 {25082 337}
Operating profit 5 268,282 378 360,653,150 150,353,473 152,430,460
Finenet incoine 161,345 596371 161,345 63T
Finsnce &t {Hh400,645) {20,012 916] (35,254 i34} { 18.58E,59F)
Mot firasce post L {36,240,298) {19.5] 6 245) {35,093 209 {17993 24
Frofii befare tax from continuing
nperatinm I3L,IMT 05 X410 50014 a1 N2 A34.457,:82
[neoime tax exporse T (34013301 (52254 338) (3227052 (51631249
Frufil fer the year 198,408,770 LH3,.8A1,17% 13,533,132 LBL,H05,983
(rther comprebonsdve lacome
Irenrs et will g e pevcdassified fo proji
iy foeny
Re-meacmnement of retireinent henefi 4, 197,534 S hdd RAS 4,157,455 48RS
b ligaivey
Rilited tam 1623 475) 846,733 (6Z0ETE] (B4, 733)
Mither comprehensive nesme Tor
il year, set of @z 1,568,159 4,798,152 3561159 4,798,152
oinl rumprelcosive inpome ZOL5T6938 293,680,432 (IR IR 404,135
Atiribatable to:
Equiay halkders of the parei | #7,215.3T 1060 515 154,10 250 287404135
Moa-contralling Gderest i1 Jh3,060 298002 =

201,57h, 430 TUAARMATY 154, 1001, 2590 25T, 04,135
Barnitigs per sbasy B 741 | 059 127 1T7

The ncoounting polizies nnd notes on pages 11 ibrough 39 Torm an imsgrd pamal il financlal steemenis,




Male' Water wnd Sewerage Company Pyt Lid
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A mt 31 Degenmileer 2021

GROUE COMPAMY
Az ar Mew g A i As x|
1-12-7932 Ei-13-k021 FI1-12-E022 M-12-2021

Asseri Mgile MVE MVE MVR MVT
Son-currenl aseiy '
Froperty, plust od equipment L 1,023,657 265 GRS 420,544 046 AB2,521 917,008 224
CEpial wirk-in-propress 1 525 176 206 AN3RIL43L 506,744,749 4E3 33828
Moght-cliuse assels 153 254663417 LI0.084, 785 242962802 104, B70515
Ietangifale npgls 1 2463014 3,595,407 1.71e Ty 087660
Iervegimeenm b wuhal dfary 12 : . 7,550,054 7650000
Imvestmen panperty 1% 17 406 549 13201, 50% F1.505,549 ER, 500
Dhelermed mx assets i | 3457010 590,30 £ 177677 et 1 [

127055561 1,639.086,317 1727.335.310 1837 33077
Carvaml assels
[mvenlurics 14 G036 278 A5 T2, 246 A1 R0, 317 444830 5%
Exteraal project work-in progress 15 13,781 14,088 13.7E1 14 ]
Lanlrss! ixscls I AAGA2E 603 2 Au5 A FE0A TN B Z10, 593 3T0
Trudis umd ogker ptecivables 17 S2gedl agz 431, 3346 ST 622 B0 S0 035 501
Cagh anil éach equivalents 18 126374058 143 H2R CHT 123,135,845 150,200,804

1,683 T 1,317 308, 530 L'.fl‘:'.ﬂﬂ& IJH.I!?EJ
Tatal assets 1,512,350 563 1,947 AR5 84T AA4 07 650 1,591, 471655
Exquity sl Enlsilitpes
Share copiial v HT000 000 DET 400, 000 47000000 2R, N
Bhare alkimend gain p{1] 3442 3042 3042 dnaz
Gieneral moserve 1,233,705470 I, 132,583,077 FA53705 470 IR0 580077
Beelnined anreenps 142 961,024 P EN T T | I'HL!H-I Al 278,147,750
ﬁ’;f&"ﬂﬂ:::?' equity 1,743.670,440 1,681, 182,570 1,725.649.912 1,668,733.850
Monscontrlling inbepst ) | 24,168 245 21 097 542 - Skl
Tetal gquiny 1,708,830, 085 I a0 a7 1, 725,6:4% 912 1,665,133 50
Mon-currenl lnbilities
Inicresl-lanng bomrowings Iz 274,885 218 116,934 471 I3 .28 11633247
Liase [kabiliges 32 D58 ESE, T 122,065 204 254,005,358 L0, [ 95 B854
Cinveruven! prazis o 10,157, Ti& 1], BEE {EH] I.E-lh‘?j,'.‘lﬁ- | LSS D00

S 056,67 LA, B15, RS 539,135,202 237,100,325

Cwrrent linbilities
Ineresr-lmmrag bamewings 1z T8, iy, 520 AW, 2 A 10 T, 523 L TG
Lease liskalities L] B2 4,00 102 4101, 12 25454
Cosenument grums 4 D28 IR QIR 7R 92R 234 AR08
Lomirgl Beadlities 15 0,051 LD, Sk SE5a1H31 40 460,560
Taexle and ather payabies b I A5 535,357 HETe] 554 LR L5056 EAE AT LY
liianine tan Tiakiligy 13 4135810 20074 814 2549 %59 22,530,737

1180355200 001,760,710 L LTO501, 442 R, 522471
Tatal equity and liabilities 3,512, 350.503 1047 ARSB47 3444307, 856 2891 472685
The Boanl of Diregioe is - nagpensible Tor thase finnncial simemonms.
Ao for nod oo behalf of the Board by,
Maame of the [Mrector Signaiare

o HPSEAN BHA i
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Male’ Water anid Sevwerage Company P Lid

CONSOLIMATED STATEMENT OF CARH FLOW

Year cinded 31 Decomber 2022

Crprrsting activities
Mrodin before oo Erom contirging opermion

Adjustments to recanelle profit hefore tax is et

exsh Minaw

Non-cushr
Depreciation of propesty plint aod squipment
Amarizanion of imegse mscn
Depeecisiion of mvmtmen properiies
Depeecision of Aght of nse asssic

Cratuity provishon

Lass an dispasal of propernty, plani s oapeprmant

Uitin oo tenminardon of nghr of e issds
Finises incemns

Fritiaced coal
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Feversal nf ke ahiliiks
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MALE' WATER AND SEWERAGE COMPANY PYTLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 Deécember 2022

1. Corporate information

Muls" Water and Eewerage Compuny Pyt Lid (the “Company™) is a limbted lability Company incorporated and
domiciled in Republic of Maldives since 1% April 1985, The Company & engaged in the treatment and diswibution
of water, providing sewerage [acilities and water related coastuction conincts in the Maldives including
supplying electricity facility in Dhovaafara Idand, The registered office of the Company is beented s 2004
Ameenee Magu, Mackchangolhi, Male', Republic of Meldives,

The Government of Maldives (GOM) has 2 controlling interast in the shares of the Cormpany.

The Group consists of the Company's interest in & subgidiary umderiaking, Islond Beverage Maldlves Privaie
Limiteil, a limitxd lability company incorporated aad domiciled in the Republic of Maldives, which produces,
supplics and solls bottied mineral water in the Republic of Maldives, The Company owns 5 1% of Bsucd and peid
up share cnpatal of the aubsidiag.

L1 Complianes with 1FILS

‘he censelidated financial statements of the Male’ Water and Sewermge Company Pvit Lid and its subsidiary,
{eoliectively, the Gronp) have been prepared in accordance with Tnternational Financial Reparting Stasdards
(IFR3) =nd micrpretations issued by the IFRS [nterpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable Lo companies
reporting wder IFRS. The financinl stalements comply with IFES as jssued by the International Accounting
Standards Beard (IASHY,

1.2 HEtorical cost convention

The consolidared and separate fineancial stiaiemenis have been prepared on the kistorlesl cost basis. All the assets

ol finnciol asseis amo messured af Wistorical cost and amonised cost basls and po assets are measured al Tair
il

The preparation of congolidated fmnscial statement in conformisy witl IFRS requires the use of certain criticel
Beoounling sstimates, It adso requines monogement to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
pecourting policies. Thens are no areas invalving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, ar aress where
aesumprion and estitnates are significont are set out. No adjustments are made for inflationary factoes affecting
tiese consolidated financial statements, The censclidated fmancial statements are presented in Maldivian Rufivoa
(MYE) and all the vabues are rounded to nearest integral, except when otherwise indicated,

The eonsolidated Anancial soterents of Male” Wiler wnd Sewersge Cumpuany Py Lid for e vear anded 31
Decemibar 2022 were andhorized for issue monccordamoe with a resolution of the board of directors,

13 Lse af estimntes and judgements

The preparation of financtal stalements regaires the use of acoountimg ssimates which, by definttion, will seldom
eunl the actunl resulls. Management alan needs o sxercise pudzement m applying the group’s accounimg
policies,

This note provides an overview of the ansas thet involved a higher degres of Judgement or complexily. Dutatled
information about eachy of these cstimates and jodpements i inaluded in other noes fogether with information
ehoul the bagis of calealation for each affected liwe item in the financial statetents.

The areag involving significant esimates or judgements are:

- Lags allowance for expected credit losses - note 2.6 ond notz 31.3.

- Estimnted uzeful life of property plant amd eguipment = note 2.6 aml pote 2.5.7.
- Estinanted useful life of intangible osset - note 26 and note 2.5.8,
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L.3 Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

Estimtion unesrinintica and judgoments made in relation to lease sccounting - iwoe 2.6 ud note 23
- Estimation of fair values of investment proporty — note 2.6 and note 13.
= Estimation of defined benelit pension ohlimation - note 1.6 and noss 26.4,

- Extimation of recognition of revenue relating w constriction revenoe stream -note 26 and note 3.1

- Estimation of Net realizable value of inventory - nate 2.6 aod nole 14

1.4 New and smended standords adopied by the group— spplicable for the first lime for periods
cammencing | Janoary Hi22

Thee gronp has applicd the following starsdards and nmendments for the first time for their anneal reporting periods
commiencng 1 January 2022

L Amendment to TAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

Froceeds bofpre imended wse <this amendment prohibics an encty foom daducting frons e cost of an itsn of
PPEE any proceeds meceived from selling items produccd while the entity B proparing the assel Tar 1S intended
fagd. It alea clarifies that ai entity is “resting whether ihe asset 1a funclioning propaily” when it assesses echnical
and physical perfomance of the ssaet. The fnansial performance of the asset 15 not relevant to this gssessment.

Entities st disclose separately the amounts of procesds and coste relating 1o ilems produced thal are not an
aulput-of the entrly’s ordinary activities

i Amendments fo IFRS 3, Reference to the Canceptual Framewark

Minor amendments were made to IFRE 3 Business Combinatinns to upda the references o the Conoeptual
Framewodk for Fimncil Beporting and to add an exception for the recognition of Habilities and contingent
liabilithes within e scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Asscts and Interpresation
1 Levica, The amendments also confirm that contingent assets should wot be recognised a1 the acquisition dare.

i Amendments to LAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fullilling & Contract

The amendment 1o LAS 37 clanfies that the dirsct costs of ulhlling o conimet melude beth the ineremental costs
of fulfilling the confract and an allocation of other costs directly related o fulfilling contracts, Before recognising

& beparale provision for an anerous contract, e entily recognises any impairment Mss thal has occurred on assets
uged in fulfillimg the conmract.

. Annuaal Improvments o IFRS standards 2018- 2020

1.5 Mew standards and smendments bsusd but sot effectlve or early adoprod in 2022

The following standards and interprotations kad been issned by IASE but pot mandatery for apiual reporting
perisds ending 31 December 2022 Further, the group has not carly adopied these new stendards andlor
arrendments

L Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current = Amendments e TAS 1

The narrow-scope amendments 1 LAS | Presentation of Finencial Siawements cloarify fat liebilities are classificd
as either currend or non-cument, depending on the rights thet edst at the end of the reponting period. Classifieation
is mnngfected by the expectutions of the entity or events after the reporting date (e, , the receipt of & woiver of o
breack of covenant), The emendments also clarfy what [AS 1 means when it refers to the ‘seftloment’ of a
lLababity,
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L5 New standards and amendments issued but not effective or early adopied in 2022 (Continped)

The smendmonta eould affect the classification of lishilities, particularly for entities thot previously osnsidered
managernent's intenticms 1o detsrmine classafication and far seme liabifities that can be corvertsd into equity.

They st be applied retrospectively in accordance with the normal requirements i 1A5 B Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

In May ZOZ0, the TASH issued an Exposure Drafl propesing o defer (e affective dade of the amendments to 1
Junuiney 2023,

iR Disclosure Inftlative: Accounting Policies - Amendments io TAS 1 and IFRS Practice Siatement 2

The amendeents 1o LAS | require companios to-disclose their material accounting policy miormation rther than
Lheir signiltcant accounting policies, The amendments o IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidonce on how (o
apply the concept of materiality to accountmg policy disclosures

The amendments 1o TAS | will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,
fil.  Definitian of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to TAS 8)

The smendments introduced the definition of sccounting eatimates and included other amendmests o LAS 8 1o
belp entitics distinguish changes in ncconnting esfimates fom chenges in sccounting policies. The amcadinents
oré effective for annual periods beginming an or aftee 1 January 2023,

iv. Amendment (o TAS 12 = Deferred fox related o assefs and Habilites arising from a singls tranenetion

IAS 12 Income Taxas spocifics how a company accounts for Income tax, incleding deferred tax, which represents
tax pavable or recoverable in the fuire, In specified circumatances, companies are exempl from recogmising
deferred tax when they recogmise ssgece of lisbalities for the first tese. Previonsly, there had bean some uncertaingy
ehout whether the exemption applied o tansactions such 03 laases and discommisslioning obligatums iransuctions
g which coonpeniss recogmise both an assef ond a liability.

The amendments clarify thot the exemption does not spply and that conpunics sre regquired fe recoaniss defernsd
tax on such transactions. The nim of the anrepdinents is fo redoce diversity in e repombng of deferved tax on
lznses and decommissioning ohligatians

The amendments ere effective for pnnoal reposting periods beginning on or after 1 Jannany 2003,
2. Bipnificant Aecounting Policies

2.1 Hasis af preparation

The consofidated financial statements of the Mabe' Water and Sewerage Company Pyt Lid and i3 subsidiary
collectively, group have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reponting Standards (IFRSs)
o5 pssued by the Intemational Accounting Stendard Board (JASE). The Consclidated financie] staseimeils are
prepared on e hstorical cost basis

The preparation of consoiided financial satement in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain ¢ritical
pecouling estimates. [t also requines mansgemment (o exonelse s judgemeant inibe proceas of applying e Group®s
accounting palicies, ‘There are mo areas involvisg & hizher degres of jidgement or complexity, or sreaz whers
saaumption snd eStimates. arg signilicand are sot oub Mo adjstmends sre mede Tor inflatioesry feclors affectiog
tlsese contolidated finaneial statemonts, The consolidated fsancial satetvents ane presented in Mabkdivian Rufivaa
IWVE) and all the wvalees are rounded (o nearest tegral, exeept when otheraizs indicatsd,

The consolidated financial statements of Male' Water and Sewerage Company Pyt Lid for the year endad 31
Depember 2022 were autherised for issue in sccordance with 8 resolution of the board of dinsclors.

13




MALE' WATER AND SEWERAGE COMPANY PVTLTD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2022

2. Slgnificant Accounting Pelicies (Continued)

2.2 Galnp concorn

‘The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Group has sdequate rescuses to canlinue it operations in the
feresecabie future. The Directors have canchuded that the going concera basis of accounting is appropriate far the
year 2022 and they do not tntend either to liguidate or cease trading.

Furthesmore, In the going concern assessment the manogement have taken inio consideration the existing and
aticipated effects of the Cevid-19 outbreak on the enidy’s business activities. Since the Group has made profit
[e the past few years, the financizl statements are prepared on the going concem hasis.

Matagement is nol sware of any material uncertnintics that may cust significant doubd upon the Group's ability

tiy conlzmez ax o going conceen. Therefore, the Financial Stalemests continae to be prepored on the going concern
hasis.

L3 Comparative information

Comparative infornation including quantitative, sarrative, and deseriptive informetion as relevant is disclosed in
respect of previeus period in the Financial Statements.

The presentation and olessification of the financial statement of the previous year has boon amended. where
relevant for battes présentation and to be comparable with these of the cumment yeor.

2.4 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financsl aaements of the Company and its sabsidiary as at
31 December 2021, Control is achieved when the group is exposed, or has rights, 1o variable retams from its
invalvement with the invesiee and has the ability to affect those returns theough its power aver the investee.
Specifically, the group contrels an investee if, and only if, the group has:

¥ Power over the mvestes (i.c., cxisting rights thal grve it the corrent ability to direct the relevant actviles of
e investes)

* - Exposure. or rights, (o varable returns from ils involverment with B investes

¥ Theability to use its power aver the investes to affect its retums

Generally, there is n presumption thas o majerity of voting rights results in control. To support this presumpiion
and when the group Ties bess than o mujority of the voling or similar rights of an invessee, the group considers all
relevent fecis and circomstances in assessing whiether it has power over an invester, incleding:

B The contrmchual srmangement(s) wills the oter vode holders of e investes
= Rights arising fram other contractual ETARFAIETILS
B The group's voting nghts sod potential voting nghts

The proup re-pssesses whether or nol it contrals an dnvestee iF facls and circumstances indicate that there are
changes fo one or monz of the three clements of control, Consclidation of 2 subsidisry beglng when the growsp
obtains control over the subsidiary ned censes when the group leses contral of the subsidiary. Asscts, lishilitics,
incame ard expenses of & subsidiary acquired or dispossd of during the year are included [n the consolidated
financinl statements Trom the date the group gnns control until the date the group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or kass sl cach comgorenl of QO] are attributed 15 the equity bolders af the parent af the Ciraugy and 1o
the non-cenmmolling intsreats, even i this rosults o the non-contrelling interests baving & doficit balanc:, When
necessary, mbusments are mads to the financial statements of subsidiary ta bang ther sccoimting palicies i lnme
with the group’s accounting polizies. All intm-group assets aed labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows nelating Lo transections between members of the Groap are sfiminated n fall on consclidation

A change in the ownership interest of 4 subsidiary, without o losg af control, 5 aceounted for a8 an oquity
franssction,
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L, Bignifieant Accounting Folicies (Continued)

i Busis of consolidation (Continued)

If the group loses control over a subsidiory, it deroeognises the related assets (including goadwill), liokilities, non-
controlling islemnst aml ather components of equity, while any resuliond gain or loss 15 recogmized in prafit op bosy,
Ay ivectivsegt retained s recognizsed af fair value,

Ae nancial statement

Inveatiment in subssdisary is messured ot cost less acounmibated impairment in the separate nancial statemants.

241 Subsidiaries
Subsicinries and their costrelling percentage of the groug, which have been consolidated ar: as fiollows,

Subsldiary Eiffective l!ulgg “' Principle activity

022 | 2021
Esland Beverngea Maldives Private |- 51% 1% Manufacruring, distibuting, and
L imyited gelling of o batlled woter called
TaZa" in the Republic of
Maldives

1.5 Summary of Sigmificant Accounting Policles
2.5.1 Business combinntions and poadwill

Business combinutions ane sccourted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the aggregate of e consideration trensferred, which is measurcd &t acquizition date fair value, and the amount
of any pon-contolling inlerests in the acquiree, For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measune e non-contralling interests in the nequiree of fuir volue or at the proporionate share ol the seguine:'s
sdentifiable net azsets. Acquisitions-related costs are expenssd as inourred and inchided in administrative expenses.

The group determines that it hes acquired a business when the acquired 22t of activities andd assets include an
inpar and & substantive procsss that together significanily costribute to the ability to cfeate oulpiets,

The acquired process 18 considered subsnntive if it is eritical 10 the ability to contivuwe produsing outputs, and the
inputs peguinsd include an organised workforee with the necessary skills, knowlsdge, oe experience o perform
ihat process oF 15 stgnificantly contributes to the ability to continue producing cutputs and iz considerad wigue or
stung or capred e repincsd without Significant cost, sffor, or delay tn the abilitoy o continoe produecmg ounpus.

Whin the Group acduires a husmess, it assesses the firancial asses and linhilities assumied for appropriate
clazeification amd designation it scoerdanee with the contruciunl terms, 2conomic circumsianees agd pertinent

conditions a3 a1 the acquisition date, This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts hy
thie aequinss.

Any contmgent consideration o be transfecred by the acquirer willl be recoguisad al fnir value ot the acquizition
date. Condingent consideration clazsified a: equity 18 not remeasured and i3 subsequent seltlement is accounlzd
for within equity. Confingend conatdération clissifved as an asset or hebalily that = & fimoncial mstrument end
within the scope of [FRS ¢ Financial Instramests, is measured af fade vadue with the changes in fals vae
recogiised in the stemient of profit er loss i accondanes with TFRS 9. Oiher contingent cosslderstion that iz pol

within the soope of TFRE 9 (s messaned of fabr vobee ot coch repoiting dote with claoges in fuie valoe recogoised
m prodit ar loss.

Goodwill is infitally messured a1 cost (being the excess of the aggrepate of the congideration trunsferred andd the
amount recegnited for pob-controlling inferests and any previous interest Beld over the net identifoble wgets
acquired and lizhiliies assumed), If the fair value of the ned assets acquired i in excess of the appregste
considecation trnslersed, the Geoup re=assesses whether 8 hes correctly deniified all of tee asseis acquined and
all of the liabilites asstmed and reviewss the procedures wed to measare the amounts 1o be recognised ast the
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L. Sgnificant Acconnting Policies {Continmed)
2.5 Summary of Significent Accounting Policles (Continned)

15,1 Business combinations and goodwill (Contlnued)

pecjuigition date. If the renssessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets aequbred over the
nggregate congideration immsferred, then the gain iz recogidsed in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is messured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Far the purpose
of impairment testing, goacwill acquired in 2 basiness combination is, (rom the ocquisition date, allocated to cach
of the Group's cash-generaling units that are expected to benefit from the combination, imespective of whether
cther assels or Habdlitkes of the scquire are sssigned i those units,

Where goodwill has been allocated to o cash-generating unit {CGU} and part of the operation within thit unit is
cigpoacd of, the goodwill assaciated with the disposed operation is bwluded in the canying amount of the
cperation when determining the gain or loss on disposal, Goodwill disposed in thess drcumstances is measured
bamsad on the relative valies of the disposed operntion and Ibe postion of the cash-generatmg unit retained,

4.5.1 Carrent versus noa-current clussification

The Group presents asscts and liabilities in fhe satement of fisancial position based oo currenynon-curment
clasifiontion. An pasel s eurrent when il is

*  Expected to be renlised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cyele
* Heid primarily for the purpose of rding
®  Expecied to be realised within twelve months alter the reportng dale

Or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restrigted from belng exchanged or wsed to sertle a linbility ot beast twelve
madnths after the reporting dafe.

A lssbility 35 coment wlen:

o [t is expected to be settled in the normal aperating ovele
& It ig beldd primanly for the purpose of trading
® Tt is due to e seitled within twelve months afier the reporting period

Or

*  There i o unconchitions] right to defer the settlament of the liabilite for at least twelve months afler the
reporting peried.

The Groap classifies all other lnbilities as pon-turment. Deforred fox essets and linhilitics sre cirssificd ns non-
curment passts and hahalities,

153 Conversion of foreign currencles

The Ciroup®s financial statements ene pressiied i Maldivizn Bafiysa (YR] whicls i the CGopup’s fupctiona] wod
presentation cumency,

Transactions in foreign currencies are intiolly recorded by the Growp ot their respeetive functional currency rares
prevailing af the dare of the transaction, Mosstary assets and Labilities denominated in forsian cumencics are
reiranslated ot the functiomsl curreney spol raie of exchenps naling af (e neporting date, AlL dilferenees ure laken
i the statemsnt of comprelienaive income,

Mon-monetary items that ere measured in terms of histwrical eost in a foreign currency arg translated using the
exchange rates as ot the dates of the initial transactions. Non-maonetary items measured &t fair value in 2 Toreign
currency age translated wsing the exchanes mies of the date when the feir value i determined.
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2. Blgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)
45 Bummary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

154 Fair vale mensurom el

Fair value iz the price thut would be receivad to gell an aseet or paid 1o transfer a liahility in on ordecly transsction

between market pacticipints ot the measurement date. The fiir value measurement is based on the presumption
that the wransiction to sell the asses or transfer the liability takes place cither:

#  Inthe princapal marked Tor the asset or liability

Or

¥ In the shseroe of o principal market, in the most advastageous market for the esset or liability
The principal or thie most advantagesus masket must be accessible by the Groap,

The fair value of an asiet or & liahility is measured using the assumptiors that market perticipants woukl we when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that maske! participants act in their economic best intenest.

A fair value messurement of a non-finmeial aeeq wkes info account a markel participant’s ability to genernte
ecmomic berefits by wsing the asset in {8 highest and best wse or by seling it to another market participant that
wiorald use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Group ases valuation technigues that are appropriste in the circamsiances and for which sufficient daa are
ovailohle to mensure falr valse, marimising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the we of
unokservable inguts.

All nssets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed m the financial statements ore eategorized

within the fair vahse hierarchy, descried a3 follows, based on the lowest level inpel that is sigrificant o the fair
yalue imessurement oz s whole:

#  Lovel T — Quoted (unadjusted) mirke! prices m active markets for identical assots or lizbilitics

r  Level 2 — Valuntbon technicoes for which the lowest level input that ts significant to the fadr valoe
measnrement is diresly or indirectly observable

#  Level 3 — Vuluatton techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
eagusetient is anobservable

For assets and Hiabilities that are recognised in the financinl stubemends ot Tt ealue oo @ recurring bagis, the Group
celermines whether ransfers heve acewrred between levels inthe hiesarchy by re-assesting categmrisation (based
an the loweat level inpat that is significant to the fair vohue measurement os o whale) at the end of each reporting
period,

Far the purpese of fair value discloseres, the Groop has detcomined clasees of assets and fahilities on the basis

of the nature, charncieristics and riske of the assetor Ligbitity and the level of dhe fair value hierarchy, os explained
aherve.
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L Slgnificant Accounting Policles (Contiaued)

L8 Bummary of Significant Accounting Policies (Condinued)

L85 Bevenue from cantracts with cusiomers

The Group is largely in the business of sle of water, électricity and, Contracting of wuter and sewernge projects
em behalf of the government, Revenwe from contracts with customers is recopnised when the contral of the goods
or seTvices ars ransfered 10 the customer ot an ameunt that reflects the consklerntion (o which the Group expects

to be entitied in exchange tor those goods or services. The Group bas geoerally concluded thot it is the principal
in ifs revenue Arrangements,

g}  sale of water and Electricity

Revenme from Sale of water and clecimcity sre recognised over the time since they are supplisd as series of
sarvices that the customer simmltancously receives and copsumes the benefis provided by the eatiny's
perfarmance as the entity performs and measured based on eutput method of units supplied. The normal eredit
term is 30 clays upen billmg

b} Canstruction projects — Water and sewerage

The Group carmes oot waler & sewerage construction projects under bong-term conrasts wlth goverament. Such
cantracts are entered into before consiruction of such projects begins. Under the termia of the contracts, the Croup
it confraciually restricted from redirecting the propertics o another customer and has un enforceable zight Lo
payment for work done. Revenue from water & sewesags constrction projects are thereliore recognised over fime
on @ cost-to-cost method, ie based on the propostion of contract coats incurred for work performed to dste
relative to the estimated tofal contract costs. Management considars that this input methed is an appropriale
measurs of the progress wands complele satisfiaction of these perfonmance abligations under IFRS 15,

Fevenue froan construetion-related conirects 13 recognlsed wpon satsfaction of a perfomance obligation agreed
it ibe confract. At confract inception, the Group defenmings wivether it satiafies the performunce oblization over
fime ool o poinl in time, The revenue recognition Goours &t & poiat in time when control of the assen s irana ferred
i the customer. For each pecfomince obligation satsfed over time, the Group cecognises the nevenue over Hime
hy measuring the propress iowards complete satlafaction of 1hat pesformance ahligation

When hie ouwicome of @ construstion contract can be estimaied reliably and it is probable thes the comract will be
profitalles, contruet revenue i recognived over the period of the contract by reference 5 the siege of completion,
Contract costs afe fecapnizid &2 expenses by reforence to the stage of completion of the contract sctivity of the
endd of the reporting poriod. When it 18 probable that tatal confract costs anll excesd tofal cantence revene, tie
expcted loss s recopaized asan expeise immedintely,

When the outcome of 0 comstroction condract cannot be estimated reliably, conlract peveme is recognized only b
the extent ol contrect cosis incunred that are Hkely 10 be recovarable.

Varislions in contract work, claims ind incenérve payvments are included in contract reverme to the extent that
may nave been agreed with the customer and are capable of beiig relishly measured.

i th atateenant of financial position, the Giroup reports the nes contrmet position for each controct as either an
axxel or @ linbilsty. A contrect represente sn asset where oosts iscomed plos recognized profits (less recogrized
kiases) exceed progress billings; & contmet represents a liabilicy whers the opposite is the case,

In delermining ¢osl incurred up (o year end, any cosis relating o fohee actvvity oo A coniragt are cacluded ancd
shown ns coniract work in progress. The ageregaie of the cost beured and the profivioss recognized oo ench
contract is compared pgeinst the progress hillimgs up to the vear end. Where the sun of the costs incurred and
recognized profit or loss exceeds the progress billings, the balance &8 shown under receivables and prepaymente

1% due from cusomers on contracs,
Critleal aeeouniing estémales ond judiementy

The Group uses the percentage -of-conpleticn method in accounting for its fixed price cantracss to deliver design
services: Use of the percentage-of-completion method reguires the Group to estimsate the services performed to
date 25 a proportion of the il services to be performed.

8-
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2. Sigmificant Accounting Policies {Continued)
2% Summary of Significant Accounting Folickes (Continued)
255 Revenue from controcts with customers |Conflnued)

Whers the proportion of services performed to total services fo be pecfummed o differ by 1% from managerment’s
estimates, the amount of revems: recognised in the year would be increased by MVR 14,077,322 if he percentage-
af-completion is incressed by 1% and the amount of revenue recagnized in the year would be decreased by MVE
14,077.322 if te percentage-of-completion is decreased by 1%,

Fr'mm.'ing COmpaenLn

The duration of the comsruction projects at times goes beyord one year and in such case the Company realises
Wi gales proceeds after mising milestone hased billing during the project duration and significant sdvances are
nol received and the duration from the receipt of advances till the next hilling date do not exceed one year

The Company does nod bove a practice of changing different price depending wpon the payiient teiin of there 1%
no cash selling price as a business practice'nature of the business and therefore, there is no sipnificant financing
component inchuded in the transaction price mentioned in the agreement.

Thezefore, the transaction price in the revenue agresmwents doe oot have o significant financing comporent that
need 10 be sepaseted from/ added to contract price when recognizing the revenuc.

c)  SHale of goods — Water bottles, pipes and other water refated ltem
The proap sedls water botiles, pipes and other valer related items directly (o suslomers.

For snle of water bottles, pipes and eiher water related items o customers, revenue is recognised by the groug at
& paind in e when conirol of the goods Tes iramslermed 1o customer.

1.5.6 Government grant

Government grants are recognised whes there 15 a reasonable assurance that the gront will be received, and all
amtached comditions will be complicd with, When the grant relates 1o an expense ilem, 118 recognised as moome
ol i Spalematic Dasis over the periads chat the related costs, for which i s bvended 10 compensate, are axpensed.

When ilve grant relates 10 an asset, it is recognised as ineome in equol smoants over the cxpocted usstial Lte of the
reloted nagot,

When the Group recsives grants of non-manetary nssets, the asset and the grant are recorded ol nominal amounts
imd redeased o profit or Joss over the expected useful life of the asset, bazed on the pattem of consomption of the
bensfis of the underlying asset by equal apnunl instalmenis.

2.8, 7 Property, plant asd cquipment

Aldl propesrty, plant and equipsaent, which ace initinkly recorded at histonical cost, s suled of cost less depreciativn,
Histarical cost includes expenditure dhat is diroctly stiribuiabl 1o the scquisition of the iterms.

Subsequent costs ere meluded in e nssct’s eRrrving omaust oF recopnised e o separsle sssel, as appropriste,
oy wiser if 15 probable that fiture sconomic beoefits associated with e Hem will ow 1o the group ol the cost
of the item can be meesuwred relinhly, The carmying amount of any compoment accommted for as n separate asses is
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o profit or loss during the reporting
perind in which they #re incusred,

Depreciation is calenlated using the straight-lise method, over their estimated weefil livesor, i the cose buiklings
sonstructed on leaschold land and improvernents made to the baschold premises, fhe shorter of lease tenn as
fiolEows:

Public rainwater scheme pnd new waler scheme

Sewiorage system

Reverse Osmeoss (RO} plant, generdor, bere well ond mnchinery
1. Significnnt Acconnting Palicies (Continned)
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4.5 Summary of Significant Aceonnting Folicics {Continoed)

1.5.7 Property, plant and ¢quipment (Continued)

Modor vichicles - B4 years
iDffice equipmen - 4 yeurs
Other equipment - 03 years
Furniture and {litings - D8 years
Computer hardware - 03 years
Diesalination buitding sml fisel Grm - 20 years
Buildtings = 20 yeors
Vesstls = 20 years

The Group reviews the estinapted residuel volues and expesed usehul lives of assets st leass anmanlly. Tn particular,

the Giroup censiders the impact ofhealth, safety and ervironmenial logiskation in its asseasment of expected nsefil
lives and estimated residisal valaes,

An i of propesty, plant and equipmen and any significant pact ingtially recopnised is derecopnissd upon
disposal {j.e., af the date the regipent oblains contrel) or when oo futurs economie benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Amy gain or loss arising on derecopnition of the asset {calculated as the difference botween the
net disposal procesds and the carvying amount of the 251} is included in the stacemecnl of comprehensive income
when the asesl 15 derecognized.

The assets residunl value ond usefil Ives ane reviewed, and adfusted I sppropriate, al cach ceporting date,

1.5.8 Intangible asset

Intamypible asses acquired separately are messured on initial recognition at cost. The coat of intangible assets
acguired in a business combination iz their fair valee at the date of aequisition. Following initial recagiition,
miangible asgels are caried At cost less any accunulated amorisation and sccumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated svangibles; excluding caplalised development costs, are not copitalised and the relatd
expondinure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in whick the expenditure is incurred.

The useful hives of miangible asserts are assessed oy either finite or indefinite.

3) Brand name

Brand name is shown at histencal cost. Brand name hos a fintse nsefil life and are carsed at cost less pecumislaed
amortisation

b} Compuoter sofftwars

Cost assogisted with mainiaining compater softwore programmed arg recognized 85 an expense as incurved.
Devetapment custs thit ure direetly atributable 1o the desgn and teating of wdentifiable and unique software products

enimlillad by e group are nocognived as intamgible assets when the required erieda ore mel. Compuies sofiwarne

development’ nequisition cosf recogmised s amets wre emoriized over their extimated asefial lves, which doss fot
exceed] five yeam,

L.3.9 Investment properties

Investment properiies are measured af cost, inchiding ranzaction costs. The camang amount inclodes the cost of
replacing part oft an existiog mvestmend property at the tme that cost i incared if the secopnition critesia ane

met; and excludes tha o8tz of day-to-diy servicing of an mvestment property. Cost of the investment property is
grartised over the useful ife of the property.

Bulidingy 20 years
[Fher Equlpfnﬂ‘l! i 5 years

[mvestment properites are derecoghised when either they hive been disposed of or when the investiment property
is permancndly withdrawn from use and no future econoniic benafit & expected from 145 disposal, The difference
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259 Investment properties (Continued)

berewen the pet ﬂ':.q_:uu-ul me'vuud; ond the r.'u.rr_','ing wmownt of the nsset is n:n.-g::'.u:d tn the incomme stolement in
the period of de-recagmition.

Tranafers are made to of from investmend property only when there is o change in wse, For a transier froo
investment proporty o owner accupicd property; the decmed cost For subsequent accounting is the fair valuwe at
tic date of change in use IT owner occupied propenly becomes an investment proparty, the Group sccounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under peoparty, plagt aad equipmest vup to the date of changes
in usge.

L840 Fimancial Instroments = Inltial recopnithn and subsequent measarement

A finamgial instrument is any contract that mives rise to a finencial asset of one entity snd o financial ligbality or
equily insrument of onother enfity.

a)  Fiaancial assels

L Initial recopnition and measorement

Finaocial nssets we clossifled, av inftlal moognition, as subsequently messured o pmortiaed cosl, fair vahes
throaegh other comprehensive income (OO, nd fadr value through profit or loss,

The claszification depends o 1he entiny’s business imodal for maneglag the financial aszets and the contractual
lierims of e cagh Mows.

For assets measured a1 fair waloe, gaing and losses will esther be pacorcimd i poodic or foss or OCL For iImvestmeants
ey equty irstumends thod ere ot beld for sruding, tis will depend an whether the group hes made an imevocable
glection ot the time of ioitial recognition to account For the equily imvesteent ai fair valee through other
comprehensive meame (FVOCT),

The group reclassifies debi imvestmonts when and only when itz basiness model for manoging those assets
changes,

Il. Financal ingtruments — recognition and derecagnition

Regular way purchasss and sales of fnancial assels are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the
group commits io porchase or sell the dsset, Financial mssets are derecognized when the rights 10 moeive cash
Mowes Frost the finsncnl asets have expired o have been transferrved and {he proup has tansfemed substantially
all the rigks amd pewands of awnership

III. Measurement

Al mitial recopgnitian, the group measores & finaneial azaet at it i valee plus, in the 2ase of B finoncial asset not
at Fnir valwe throwgh profit or loss (FVPL), ranssction costs (bt are directly attrbulable o the neguisition of the
financeal asagt. Tronsaction cots of financial assets carmied a1 FYPL are expensed in peofit or kiss,

Drelt Instraments

Subsequent measurement of financial istruments depends on the pooup®s business madel for masnging the assed
i the cash fow charsctucistics of the asgel. There ure three meosurament calegarica info which the group
classifies its financial Instronenis:

+  Amorticed cosn Asaers that age leld for collection of contrectual cash fiows, where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and imteres, ore measured ot gmortised cost, Inierest inceme from
ihese financinl ass#1s is inchided in finance msome ngng the effoctve inferest rte method. Any gain or
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2.5.10 Financial instruments — inftial recognition and sabsequent measorement (Continued)

lngs mmiging on derecognition ie recognised directly in profit or Jogs and pivgented in other guine/{losges)
tapeihicr with forzim cxchange gaing and losmes. [mpakmment losies are preieted o separate line Hem i the
statement of profit or loss

&  EVOCT Assets that arg held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the finamcial assets,
where the nssets’ cash flows represant salely payments of prinipal and interess, are measured st FYOCT,
Movements in the carrying smoant are laken through OCT, exeept for the recognition of imparmment

»  paing or logses, interest income and Toreign exchange gains and losses, which are recogrised o profitor
koss, When the financial aseet is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previausly reeagnized in OC]
i reclassifbed from equity v profit or Joss snd recognised 10 othor galnstlomses), lwred icome fram
thess fimancinl azse1s s included in [nance income using the effective tnlerest e method, Foreign
cxuchange pains and lases ans presented i other gaineflomes], and impairmont oxpenses are presenbod
au depernti line item i the glalement of profit or loss.

o FWIPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised costor FYOCT are mensured af FVPL. A goin
ar loss on o debt investment that = subsequently messured ai FVPL = recognised o profit or Loss and
presemied net within other gnine/{losses) in the period in whikch it arses

Equity Instromenis

The group subsequentty miseswnes all sguily invesments &l fale valoe, Where te group's mainagensent bas alecied
o present falr value gales and losses on equity invesuments in OCE, (here is no subsequent reclassification of fair
vales poins ond losecs fo profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
invesiments continue to be recognised in profit or loss s other incoms when the group's right 1o receive payments
ig edtahlighed.

Chuges i the fair value of financial nssets gt FYPL are recognised in other gains! {Iosses) in the satement of
profifor loss as applicable. Impairnient losses {and reversal of impaimaent Josses) oa cquity Investments measunsd
at FVOCT are o reported separately from other changes in fair value

Financial assoels at Tair valie thrangh profit or loss

Fiancial assets at fulr valee through profit or loss include finapcial assets held for racing, financlal assets
designated upon initial recoguition ot fair value through profi of hoss, or finencial assats mamdatocily tegquired o
be mensured st fair value.

Finemal assets ame classificd s held for trading iF they are acqintsd for the purpose of selliag or reparchaging 1n
the tear term, Derivatives, ingluding separited embedded dervatives, ere alse chassificd as held for reding unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Finnneial naeets veith cosls Nows that are not selely payiments of priccipal and inberest e clossifed and msgansd
at fpir walee throogh profit or bosa, irrespective of the Pusmass model. Motwithstanding the criteria for debs
instruments o be elassifiod at amortised cost or at Tair value throagh OCH, a8 described above, delst instruments
may be designated at fair valoe through profit or loss on initial recopnition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatzh.

Financinl assets at fair valie throngh profic or loss are camied in the smfement of financial position at faic valos
with nat changes in oy value recogmsed i3 the stalement of comprabiensive fncoms,

This eafegory includes derivative insiruments and Listed equity investments which the Group had not irmevocahly
chected 1o classily af Gir value throsigh OCL Prividencds on listed equity investmends sre sl recoghised as othes
incomme i the statement nfcumpﬂh:nsiuu incoame when the right of payinent lhas beoen eslablizhed.
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4,518 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subseguent measurement (Continued)

IV, Derceognition

A laseisl asset {or, where applicable, 2 part of u financial asset or part of a Group of similar fisurvcml assols) is
prmarily derecognised (i.e., removed fram the Group’s consolideted satement of financial position) when

The tights to receive cash Mows from the asset hove expired

Qr

When the group has transferred its sights to receive cash flows framm the asset or hes assumed an obliganion 1o pay
the received cash flows m full without marerial delay 10 a third party under a “pass-through” amangement: aad

eithes 1) the Group has tansferned subsinniially all the rlsks and rewards of the asset, or (1) the Cirgup has neither
transferred nor recained substantially all the risks and rewsirds of the asset, but has ransfeered control of the nsset

When the Group has ransferred it rights 1o reesive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
urrangemnient, it ovalustes if, and to wha? extent, it has retained the riske and rewants of pwnership. When it has
neither tmnsferred nos retained substantially all of the risks and rewnrds of the wsset, nor tranaferred control of
the asset, the Group continues 1 necognise the transfiorred asset to the extent of its continuing isvelvement. In
that cuse, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transfirred assef and the associated tabilily are
mezsured on a basis that reflects e rights and obligntions that the Group has retained.

Corfimiing involvement that takes the form of a gusrantee over the trensferred asset is measurod o tae lower of
the ariginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay,

V. Impairment of inaneial assets

The Group applies a simplified apgproach in caleulating ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets, 1 hersfore,
the Grroup does not track chanpes in credit risk, but instead recognises & loss allowance based an lifetime FCLs
if cach reporting date,

The Group has establshed 2 provigion matrix that is based an s historical credit loss experience, sdjusted for
forward-lecking factors specific to the deblors and the economic environment,

A financial asset is written off when fhere i3 1o ressanable expectation of recovering the contrsctual cosl Nows.,

b) Financial dabilities
L Initial recognition and measurement

Finansinl linbililios are clasaified, st mitlal reogiallieg, e fancial Habilitics ot fair value ibrough profh or hoss,
loans and Dorrowings, payables, or as dervatives designaoted os hedging inatruments in an effective bodge, ns
HRpT IR

All fnancial Tiabilides are recognised initially ot fair valwe and, in the case of loans and borrowings ond payvables,
nst of directhy attributabls transaction costs,

The Group's financial lmbilities imclode trade and other pryables and losns and borrowings incleding hank
ovendrafts.

Il. Subsequent mensurement
The measuremant of financial Hatdlibes depends on their classification, as desarited bekow:

il %
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ML Loamns and barrowinges

After initial recognition, nveresi-bearing loans and borrowings ane subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in stawemont of profit or loss and comprebensive moome when
the lubilides are derecognined as well as theough the EIR amortisation procoss.

Amortised cost is caleulnted by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fiees or costs that
gre an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation i8 imoluded az linonce costs in the sivtement of
camprebensive income. This citegory generally spplics to interest-bearing loans and bomowings.

IV, De-recognition

Financial lighility is de-recogmised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cungelled or expires.
When an existing finencial linbility is reploced by another fram the aame lender on substantially different tarms,
or the terms of an existing liability are subsantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition ef the original linbility and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the respective
carrying amvounts |5 recognised in the statement of comprebensive income,

LA 11 Contract asseis

A contract assed is the right to considaration in exchange for goods or services tmnsfermed w the customer, IT the
Gnesip perfomms by iransfeming goods of servioss 1o customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, 0 contract pssot ls pocegnisad for the camed consideration thit is comlitional.

1.512 Imventorics

Irventories are stated at the lower cost ond net reslized value. Cost is dotermined using the weighted verage cost
methsd, Cost ol inventory includes purchases, transport and bandling costs. Met realimble value is the estimaied
selling price o e ondinary courses of business, less the costs of completian snd variable seling eapenses, Wikee
Becessdly, proviskon 1s made in lbe Aoaocial stetements for obsolets, slow-moving und defective Inventory,

1513 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consoliduied stabzmens of financial positon comprise of cash at banks and casly
in hand

Casn flow statement is prépared in “indirect method™,

1.5.14 Other Liabilities and provisions

All knawn lisbilities have been accoamted for in preparing the finnncial statements. The maboriality of the ovents
ocourring after ihe reporting period heve been considered and appropriate adiustments aad provisions hsve been
made in the financial statements whers necessary.

Laabiliics classified as coment lmbilities in the stfement of financil position are those, which fall due for
puyment on demund or within one year from the end of the reporting period. Non-cument linhilities are those
balances, which fall due for payrreit after one year from (he eod of the reporting periad.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has & present obligafion {legal or constroctive) a5 a result of & past

event, it & probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economiv benefits will be requirsd 0 sette the
vl sgation aoid @ reliable estiimate con be made of the amount of the obligation,

4.
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1.5.14 Oither Liabilities und provisions (Continued)

When lbe Group expects some or all of & peovislen o be reimbursed, for example, under an irsurance corsract,
the reimburseusent s recogmised &8 @ separate asset, but anly when the redimbursement is virtually certain. The

expense relating 1o any provision is presented in the statement of comprehersive income net of any

meinbumanent,

2,515 Contruct liahilities

A coniract liability is the ohligation 1o transfer goods or services to & enatomer for whach the Group has received
consideration (o an ameunt of consideration & doc) from the customer. [Fa customer pays consideration befiors
the Giroup transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made,

ur ihe payment is due (whichever is earlier), Conact Habilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
petforms ander the cantract,

2516 The Group operates various post-cemployment schemaes, including both deflned beseflt and delinad
contribution pension plins

The Group operates varivus post-employviment schemes, inchuding both defined benefic and defined conmribution
pension plans.

Rotirement gratully benefit

The hinbility recognised i the statement of fnancial positos i respect of definel benalit pension plans is the
presant value of the defined besefit oblignthon a1 ilve end of the reporting pariod. Tle defined benelit obligation is
cileulsted nomvually by independent wetunricd using the projecled wmil coadl mathod.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the eatimated futire-cash outflows
izsing interest rades of high-gualiby corporats bonds that are desominated in the carrency in which the benefis will
be paid, sod that have terms approximating io the teems of the velsted obligation. However, in Maldives there iz
no deep marked inosuch bonds and therefone market ates oo pavermment bonds oes used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applylag the dbsount mite to the ned balases of the defined benefit obligation.
This cost 5 ingluded in employes benafit expense in the gatemant of profil o loas.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments snd changes in actuarial sssumptivns are
recognised in the period in which: they occur, directly in ather camprehansive income. They are included in
ratsined exrnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of finoacial postion.

Chenppa in the present value of e defined benetin oblignon resattng from plan amendmenss of curaiiments are
recoguised umedialely in profit or loss ns pust service costs,

Diefineed contribution plan - pension conteibution

The Cirpup ix lable 1o enral the emphneess in the Retrement Penseon Scheme weih effeot from 1 May 200 1 baged
on the Regulation on Maldives Retiement Pension Scheme published by Government of Maldives ond sliall oanke
comfributions at a e of 7% frore the emploves’s pensionable wages on behalf of the emplovess of age belwean
LG muwd 63 wears to the pension office, The Group's conlribution w retireent pension scheme is at the rate of T%
on persionable wages,

ComlFibubion: b retirsiisit pd:nﬁi:_m Echeine 15 'rw;nsni:md. A Aa :n‘lpln'_t,'tt heiedsl ExaTRE i the @atcinent of
comprehemsve incuawe,
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3517  Expenditure recognithon

Expanses are recognised in the copsolidated sfatements of comprehensive imceme on the bags of a direct
sasociation between the cast incurred ond the eaming of specific items of meome. All expenditere incurred in the

mnging of the business and i maintaining the property, plast, and equiptmet io @ state of efficiency his been
charged b inomre in armving ak the profit for the year.

Expenditure incurred for the purpose of requiring, expasding, or mproving assls of & permancnt mature by moms
of which to carry on the business or for the purpose of incriasing the caming copacily of the business has boen
Ireatizd ms cn:pitnl Erpendih.lm.

A8 Taxatlen
ap Crirriet gy

Provision for inctmie (% s based on the elements of income and expendifure as reparted in the consolidated
financial stabzmtents and g computed insccosdanes with the provisions of the relevanl x slatutes.

b Deferred tux

Deefurred laccation {3 the tax afirbutable to the temporry differences that arise when inxation suthoriti=s recognise
and measure asgets and liobilities with rules that differ from those of the consolidnted finoncial statements.
Dwferred tux is provided using the liabilicy method an temporary diffisresces at the reporting daie between the tax
bases of msets and liahilitics and their carrviog amounts for Goancind reposting purposes. Deferrad ey Habilities
are recopgnised for all taoable femporary differences. Deferred fox assets are recognised for all deductible
temporury differences, imused tix credits and tax losses carried forward to the ectent that it is probable thet toxahle
profit will be available against wlhich the deductible temporary differences, he unused tix credits and tax losses
curried forward can be wilised. The carrying amount of determed tax e is reviewesd af each reporting dane and

reducad o Uee eatent that it s no longer probable thas sulfickent inxable profio will be avsitnble so aflaw all or par
af the deferred inx assed 10 be miliasd. Unrecognised defrred tax nsscts arc reasscased at onch roporting date and

are recoguized to the wxbent that it lsae beeonmo probable that future mecable profit will sllow the deformed fay asset
i be reomesred.

Dreferred tax assets ond liobilities are measured &t tax mies thot ore expoctod to apply to the year when the assel

& realiged, or lizhility iz settled, hased on the ta rates and fax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
1= at the reparting date,

Defenmd tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, I o tegally enforeesble raght exdsts o set ol current tax
Esduls againsl current tax linbdlities smd when the deferred taxwes relate 1o the sames tresbie en'tl':}- aned thie ansse
tuvation authority, Deforred tax hems are recopntesd s correlation to the uidetlyving transsction eithet in othes
somprehensive income of directly imequity,

el Sl fax

Revenne, CRpEnEes ARSIl Are pecognised tet ol the asneunt of sabes tax, Receivable amd Fru].':l.l;llr.s that are siaed
with e aovount of dales tas igcluded, The net wmound of aales s reseverable (o o FH.}'HJ}]E Le» Lhie lmxaliom
nuthosity is inchded as part of receivables or paynables in the coasoludsied satement of fineancial position.
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2519 Leases

I The Company's leasing activitics and how these are accounted for:

"The Group hag several conlracts for the use of Land and building in 1is operations. The Group's obligations under
it fenges are seeured by the lessors' title to the loased asses. Currently, there are 14 nip of bmd lease agrecments
wihich were cniered by Use Compuny with following panies:

The Creevemmiment of Ru'Fuhlin aof Baldives (Gold)
Howgdng Developmend Corporation {HIN)
Thilufusi Cosporation

Secretarial of Dhuvantom Conneil

Secreturinl of Khuldhufiushi Council

Ministoy of Housing and Infrastructure

The buildings and cerladn ather fixed assees were erected on Jand leased to the Company from the Government of
Maldives for 20 years in sccordance with Clogse 17 of the Agresment and the Assets Tranaler Agrecment dased
30 March 1995 and 0 Seprember 1995 recpectively. The leasehold rights wo the land were derived from the ssid
foart Venfure Agresment and Assels Transfer Agreement, The Campany has received an exiension of bease feTms
for n farther 30 years from the Govemnment of Maldives on 1dth March 2010, During the year the balance has
transferred 1o right of uae pesols,

Lease income from operating |eeses where the group is & lessor is recognised 1o lncome on a siralght-lne bagsis
en'er the lease terom, Iratinl ditect costs ineurred in obtaining sn operoting leass arc added s v corrving amount

of the underlying asset and recopnised 08 expense over the kense torm on the snne basis &= lease income. The
respective beased asseis are inchaded i the balunce sheet haged om their naturs,

Ass214 andd Habilities arising from & leass ane mnitsally measured on 4 preseat volug basis,

Lease linbilites include the mel present valae of the following lease pryments;
« fixed poyvmends (including in-substance fixed pavmentz], le2s any leids incentives receivahle

-variable lesa paymsent that &re based on an indax or o rate, mitaily mesured osing the mdex or mate as @t the
commencement date

« amounts expecied to be payable by the proup under restdual value goaraiises
« the exercise price of a purchase option if the group i= reasonably cerain b exenciae that optsn, and
- payments of penalties for erminating the lease, if the Tease term reflects the group excrcismg that ootion

Leage poyrvents 1 e made uisder reasanably colein extension opioons are else tosluded m s iovadurcment of
(b Irability, Wiere possible leess ppvmients are discounted using the intessst rate impicit in the lease, (P that rane
cormat be readily desermined, which 8 penerally the eaza for leazes in the group, the lessse®s incremertal
harrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lesses would lave to pay o bormow the Tands ocessary
v abisin an asset of similar value to the right-of-nse asset in a simdilar ecoromic environment wich sinilar terma,
securily md conditions. As such, since the mmplicit rabes were not available for the leasze (the Company has
comsstered the incremental bomowing mie for secared boans atwhich the Company conborrow for s peniod sundlar
gy Iesie period for an nmount squal to right-of-uss of the respactive leases,

Lease payimenits ane allecated between principal and fmance cost. The finance cast & chirged ta profit or lazs
awer (e loase period o a8 o prodwce & constant periodic mile of intérest an be remaining balonce of the fability
for zach period.
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MALE" WATER AND SEWERAGE COMPANY PYTLTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2022

2. Bignificant sccounting policles (Contlnwed)
L5 Bummary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
LE51%  Leases (Continoed)

Right-of-use asseis are measurned ot oost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability

- mity Jease payments made ol or before the comanencement date lzee any leaps incentives received any mifial
direet cosm, and

-festoratian cosls

Eaghi-af-use azsets are generally depreciated over the shorber of the nxset' s weeful life and the lease term on
straight=line bosis, [f the group is reasconably certain 1o exercase a puschase eption, the dght-of-use adset i
dipreciated over the usderlying nsset’s nsefl life,

Payments asaociated wilh shor-termy lesses of vessels and bouses ore recognized on a stroight-live basis os an
LS LA E th ].‘.lr-urll of lage, Shorl-berm leases are beases witk o lense t2rm of 12 months or l=gs withowt o P‘LI:IEhI:II:
aptin,

Extension and termination options are inclled tn & number of lease across the group, Thesears used 1O maximise
opecationsl Aexibility in terms of mansging the pssels used m group operations. The maperity of cxlension and
termination optuns held are exercisable only by the group and not by the respeciive lessor,

Lo Sigeificnst nccounting judgements, estimates and assumplions

The preparstion of consolidated financial statements requires the application of cortin critical pudgements,
estimates and assumplions relative to the fisture, Farther, it raquires management 1o maks judpments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amoumts of revenues, expensss, assets and liabilitizs, and the disclosure
of comingent liabilities, af the end of the reportmg period. However, uncertainty aboul these asumptions and

estimates could resaltin cuteomes that regquire o material adjustiment o the carmyimgs amount of the s=setor liability
affected En fiture periods.

a) Impairment of finaneial assets

The loss allowmces for financial asseis are based on assemptions about risk of default and expecied loss rates.
The Teaup uses judgenient iy making assumpiions and selzcting the inputs 12 e impoimment Salculation, based
an s ﬂ:uup"u posL ]l:iILl:rr_'r and cxialing market condlilions, as well o forwand leckiny estimebes al (he oned of
ench peponing period

bl  Estimated Useful lifetioe of the Progerty, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

The Group reviews annually the estinted usefol lves of FPE and intangible assend based on factord such as
business plans and strategies, expecied level of usage and future technological developments, Future resulis of
pperations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought aboul by changes in the factors
mentioned, A reduction m the esomated lves of PPE and btangible assets woild increass the recorded
depreciotion and amomization cherge and decoeose the camying valos,

¢} Depreciation of property, plast amd qqu.ipq'utnl

The Group assigos usefiol lves and residual walues o propesty, plant end equipment hased on penodic studies of
nctunl asset [ives and the intended use for those assets, Changes in circamstances siach ns technalogical advances,
praspective ecanomic ulilisation and physical condition of the assels coneermed could resull in the actual dgoful
lives or residual values diffening from initial estimates.

Where the Company detcrmines that the usefal kife of property, plant and equipment should: be shomened o7
residual value reduced, it deprecintes the net casryving amouns in cxcess of the residunl value over the revised
remaining wseful life, thereby increasing depreciation expenss, Any chanpe in an asset’s life or residual valoe is
reflecied in the Company s financiol stmements when fhe change in estimale i5 detérmined,




MALE' WATER AND SEWERAGE COMPANY PVT LTD
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2022

L. Significant accounting palicies (Confinned)

L6 Significant sccounting fudgements, estimates and wssumptions (Centinwed)
d) Tax

Uncenaistics exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulstions, changes in tax lavs, and the
amount and timing of future tocable income

Giver the wide range of intermational bosiness relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing
comtraciual agreements, differences anging between the actunl resulis and fhe assumpdions made, or foure
changes 1o such sssumptions, could necessitale future adjustments 1o 1ax income and exparse alresdy recorded.

The Group establishes provisions, bosed on reasonable estimates, for possible consequinces of audils by the tax
nutherities. The amaunt of such provisions is based on various factors, such as differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the Groap and the responsible tax autherity. Such differences of interpretation may arise an @ wids
vanedy of ismes depending on the conditions prevailing in the Malkdives,

¢} Hecognifion of deferred [ncome tax aiscis

Deeferred inoome tax sssets are recognised to the extent that itis probable that Tutsre Lixahle profitwill he availahie
against which temporary differences can be ufilised, This involves judgement regarding future financinl
performance of n pamicular entity in which the deferred moome tax asset has been recognised.

I} Hecagnifion of revenue relating to construction revenue stream

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumpiions with respect & the recognition of revenne relafing
to corstraction revenoe stream is explamed m Mote 2.5.5

E} Estimation uncertuintics and judgements made in relation to lease acconnting

In dejermining the lease term, munagement considers all focts and circomarances that creats an economic
incentive to exercise an extension oplion, or nod exercise a termination opticn, Extension option {or pariads after
termination option) are only included o the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain 1o be extended (or nol
terminnfed).

The lense term is reassessed if an opchon is aciually exercised (or not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged 1
exercime or nol exersias it, The asscssmient of ressonable cerfinty is only revised if 2 sigeificas event or o
gignificant change in circumatances oecurs, which affects this asscssment, and is within the cantrol of the lessce,
Estimation uncertainbies and judgementa madi in relation to lease sccounting is explained in Note 25,19

h) Capitalization of property, plant and equipment and projects under construction

Assels are tmnsfemed to Property, Plant and equipment from assets wder conatnaction when They are ready for
ils intended use. Tho complex natare of the asseis is such that jedgment ix required es to when that point is
reached. Also, judgment is required 10 determine whether the costs incurned on those assets can be capitalized or
can be recognized as an expeise in profie or loss,

il Inventory-NRY

Inventomes are held at the lower of cost and net realizable value. When invemories become old or sbsolsle, un
estimate 15 made of their net realizable valae. For individually significent amcunts this estimation s performed
on an individual basis, Amounts which are not individuslly sisnifiesst, but which aré ald or obsolets, ore assessed
collectively and a pravision applied according to fhe inveniory type and the degree of ajeing or nhesolescence,
based on histoncal sclling prices,

|1 Estimation of defined benefit pension obligation

Estimation uncertaintes of defined berefil pension obligation & explained In Note 2.5.17
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Yeor emded 31 Dacembor 2022

1 Revenue from cosiract with cuciems

L1 Mhsmgmregated revenos lnferssation

Cveap
Fnrlh:'r:.'-m:l ] ] mher 2012
“Water, dlecirichy | Canstraction Botrbed watcr Pipe & othor maler
Srpmicni and srwerage praject and (bake lee relatimd ibemy Tutal
of ol periicea NIV M MYER MVE MV MVE
Sepply of otilliles LU R b - . - K3R48 505
Crzasmntin wverun - 557,157 648 z ] 557,497 55k
e of boctled wter & flain loe f 2 HIE STk A4% L TR AR R4
Suh el pipe oed adher water relaed imns - - - 8,711 460 PRATE ]
‘Tsinl revemiie Tram combracty wilh cioiimers [P RSN 57197 5RE pLUL A L 1,1}& r_.Eun'.ﬂl
Timbng of reveaus recagebion
Oiver g BSR4 549 A0 147,307 288 - - LAl T35
Puiind . Ly - . JUEHIY 328 0.Ta 40 JEESAIAIR
Teinl revemne from comivect wilh cistomers [EFELNTY ] g;en_qm; B8 344 !.?}iﬁ LEABEIT.ATI
{iraup
E ar enided 31 Decemnbsie DB2 |
“War, deciricily I"-"—Irwln Baciled water  Plpe & sibar wader
Segment il SEwerEED pirajeal sl fl=by Tew refated iems Taial
Togs of goads or services _MVE MYE MYH NV M¥E
Supply of erilites TH5 G0, 530 - - TR I
CuAia L lios fveaie L A2 1 34K 124 - s 32134314
Sale af bl Al waler & Doz Lee = E LaF, 465,087 - At 403,007
figle ol piae endl other wivier rofated diems - - ESIR S SR aw
Terad pevenne from candrash with custemers THE 640, 430 AT AR 1T K% 455,017 EAAE R 1,207,003 470
Timling af e recogaition
Ot time TR, b, 150 53| MK |3 . - 1. E0EAHd Ak
P'oimt in tine - 115 465,007 EOGRFT 171509, ks
Tokal revenuy Fross cantragiy with custamers TREAANLAS  ARLAEE LI LIS, 865, 01T LEHR 38100347
—— i N e - |
St halow in the dimggregati o of the Cieopls revpmme froes coneract wigh ¢lslosers,
CUMPANY
For i year caded 31 Decomber 2022
Watir, deciriclty Coairucsien  Dotilnd water  Plpe & sdber water
Segment wml Sewernpe v e amat] flake Tye relabed items Tainl
T al geals ar srrvices = AV MVE MVE MY MYE
El.pplj' of nrilaies A5, 540 GEX - ] - A54. 54% A5
CEnsimilom reveane - SSTA0T.6EE - a 55T AT AES
Bale uf Bakled waisr & flnkaz oo = 2z |, 413,40 = (ERELT I
Sple of gepe and uler st rabuied ilame S i . " BT A6 %731, did
Ewtad revenig Fros eanfracts with costamers 54540665 SRTATARE 142463 400 8,731 458 156410836
Thu.l-l al reveoos Ll 1L
Crear Hime 254,820,664 157507408 141 1,947,353
Ferdrmmamee-relived imllesimss = - E - -
[eini in tine 5 K L, 433,440 4 T31 AGH 51184, 1173
Total revinue from cantracis wiih custenies BRL5006E8  BATARTARE  B414%3.440 0TI AR 564 1AL 202
COMPANRY
Fiir 1B yoar cadid 31 Nivember 1902 |
1'-!-". sagivigily  Cesmiruciien  Hadiled wader  Plpe & siber waler
Scgment prsl VENEPRED e ] Mlskoa Tea Fulated ftoma T il
Tupe af grods ar services MVE MVR MYVH MYR MYE
Supply of sisines TRE G40, 599 = X - TR #0359
Coislniellos Feviesig 121445134 - - 131 B4R 124
Sale of barl sl witsr & Mk Loa - - TEERELLT . IREESLNLT
Spdo of pipe mad e water rélated iloms - 2,038,070 RS
Tt v from conrac ik coomers TS ML USASIT __swaen _imimes
Timing of revesis: recipuidiom
Cxer Unie TAE 40 519 J2EA48 k25 - - |0 AEE A5
Performmnce-resnted milosons : = = -
Pusn i 1 = - TEEENT LFEL Ak [ ]
Tetal ravems Trom comirect wiil customers THLHLIER ﬁh'“ ﬂ_ﬂﬂg_ B EAE TR 550
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 Decomber 2022

GROLUP COMPANRY
Yeur ended Year wmibed Vear endid Year ended
Ii-12-2082 31-12-2i21 Ii-13-2412 J-12-26
d  Oiher lecoma MVR MYR MYH HMYR
Fleed monthlby carges T2 534 455 1534 051 2LR3E 455 1R300 ]
Upiraizanal income 44,665,473 Hra8a 013 44,665,471 15296013
Rental and masagemen! mcome 10,535,683 5,022,531 12,599 644 762,531
Penalises, surcharpes and fines (Mote 4.1 (B,294,245) 12.640,31% (4,274,245 13,600,519
Incoane Thons dissomection’
recrmnnctinn're|ocotl o tenninglim it ] 18,702,553 33,XEE a0 18, TOE 553
Oovemmens grant A5 UE IR GIN 284 G R4
Miscallameous mcome 112,900 243,393 . =
Dhvikend imocene 1,241,033 - 1,240 1k -
Clain oo vermivakon of fight of use asseds 43,297 - 43,207 .
{ProvissonyFeversal oo impaleneeni of slow
rnd o e livenbacies - A0k 58] - HOL MK
IO0ABNGEE  TTSTOANS  10a7dr _ 7edesaia

41 This sceoumnt meinly consiss of sucharges billal to cusiomers agringt overdue oillly bills, [t was a manageesert decision 1o
waive cff the suscharge ircoin s diring e year against the MCOe fecopRized prsvious vear

& Proflt frem eperating sclivities

wlated after charging,
Sl comis (Mo 5,0 103 4000 357 156,676,345 180,643,750 (44537618
Liiregiors’ e | 566,600 1368314 | D MY | hES 210
Dieprecaion o properly plani and
equpments (Mot ) L5564 1,208 848 G5, 007 265 BLO4L 965
Bank servico charges and commisiion | TS8R, 789 16,356,458 11463, 167 16141 505
Emport duty and Treight chargs 15510624 SA13 402 15,510,624 5343366
Fepuir sz muintznance 1304775 1, TH6.552 21542 005 INAIT AT
Trareapori and Iravelling sxpenses 72735 1,034,357 ol e 4%1 44
Lizal undd oflice rentals {I0ER - .
[nsurance cxpense 3,051,994 050404 3 FRG I 5307 607
Whaner enpanse 4 g ATy 5974016 3, TES 020 5,318 hlin
Gloctricity expease [339R.6T4 w340, 7200 13,831,331 5 0FE 455
Fuel exponsc 20| 688 1 1000 1,741 658 (M LR
Telepianna antt peslape expens: 1570243 3571107 1023, 140 0G0
Prirling and sintiorary sqense 1,445,350 1309351 1001, 708 L0k
Paart] mesting expenses AETTH 0953 4, TTE 50,053
Enteriminment expense TARS RS LIRS0 034 BEE D50035
Dlonntions expense 5,754,633 |27 303 5754633 1,907,335
Ly mupenses 1,217 115,18% 1207 1,204
51 Seaff st
Selanes mnd wapes &A1 TS G SGEORY ELAA5.TH L Bl )
E1alT howns 4436077 6,257 18274677 26,257
Allrwanset sipenke 57035051 55 E56.663 6T, 735,053 55 RS0, 64
Crreriime expenss 916 £ T2 60T 643,900 500 T
Chverens irmining eopeses 12,040,677 41254011 130:0,577 4125051
SRl welian: dxpone HANL2S S.R62A30 2,534, 7R0 7385
Local training expenaes | 278407 B R4 1,275 407 H30, 154
BinfT proveicent find 443 1.E6T 4 IR 0as 266, 72T EEIL R R
Retirzment grateity benali 18,98 861 L4, NG5 18050891 14,245,493
Sl recruitment and work pemeit expenses | 5 460 ERE.T1E T1T.B30 0], 050

15404357 156,a76344 10,643, T3 L 44,537.618

Al
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RNOTES TO THE CONSULIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 Decomber 2022

L Ml Mnamce cost
il Fimange income
- Interzst income an shert term deposiis 161,345 L | 161,348 SR6.371

&1  Fimance expenyey

= Interess eapeim ui bomewings THA 18 143341 11,404 103 5343 14
- Met frelgn cxchange loss hi55 504 320063 o4, 2R 0k 368
= Imterean expenin an lesse Tiahiliies 34,141,860 10,247,507 23,304,157 i PR
6401647 2112916 38,254 634 |18, 538,399
ar fikance coat 36,140,108 19,516,545 S3000, 180 17,992,118
T Ineome nx expumses
fiwmes revogmized fn prelic o loas
M Carrent tax expense
Coreenl tax expemse [MNobe 7.2} 3,470 140 %4,434047 HA B0 4,434, 34T
M 479 48 B a54 747 MAE 423,587
Dlerred tan ndjustiscats
Deformd tnx maset recognized (Mie 7.4) (112701 {3, 04E271) (2608 684 (3053, 504)
Dieferel inx labilicy recognlzsd (Mo 7.5) 1, E6E 14451 250 1077433 250291
(446,547 {2, | ROOEZ) R L) 12 B3 00H]
Income tax axpons 4,033,301 53144934 32,717,052 S0 G40

T2 Beconsillaton wiwesn nooonmting profit and iazable income:

LHOLEF CIFIPANY
Viear ended Year ended Yearcended  Year ended
J1-12-M1T J-12-1021 31-12-281} H-12-121
MYR MY MYR AR
Fiodis before tax 233042 080 3, sl 223 20 E A4 IMATIN
s of subticlinry which is pon subleci wiax = 4 156500 . =
R RN RE] ] 245,393,521 225,264, 184 131417,273

Tex caloulaied o ihe rae of 15% 4. 806,312 11,BO0% 020 140 0K 0165, 585
AR T cry Boomdiiscie Gxpenas 17,780,975 4,300,937 25,bak, 520 22 464,143
Less: 1mx an dedoztibles CEPESCS (R 052,999 (L1680 15y (22,751, 745) (LR BS% 281
Less: Tax fhek allownmes 75 .00K) (37 S00) {17,500} {37,504
Incowmse inx en tnxable profii al 15% 34,479 348 S 34347 AR S, 008, 34T

Fresoi fax bas been caleulsfed ol L 5% on the texable profit for e year anded m occorderco winh the Income Tax Act a 250019,

A reconcilinion beiween tnx expense and the product of acemnting profit matiphed by Maldivss domwatic tax taln for the year
el 31 Desumbar ie as follows:

T3 fagomse tax payabibe’ {refumd)

Ag b | Rasgy 21,074,814 A1, 786, 754 ZI530,717 33242677
Taw charpe foo the year 14,479,348 54434307 34313203 S4.4%4.347
Paid during tha yer (51 41E 546 (3,146,267 {51, 299.181) (LERLLE 3
A al 31 [ecomber 4, 105 616 1,074,814 5 549 850 2R SA0,7AT
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Mak® Water and Sewerage Company Pyt Lid

NOTES T0O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wear endbed 31 December 2022

T Deferred tay soit
Asat lst My
Dreferral tax aspet recognined curing the year
Axat st Deeeber

75 BRefierved tnx Halslily

Azt =1 Janusy

Diefurral tak Eabiliny recogiled during the
yuer

Phefarred tax Eabilicy recognized inother
comprebensiveg incoee

At I st Dezembaer

Mol Delforred dax assei

s Dylerrad tax
Temperary difference,

O property, plant and squipment

Ui debbars general provision

n #lick pemeral provision

O emgloyin retdrement berefil prosision

Tax caie

eferred tax Rability as ot 315t Decembir
Deferred tax Assets as af 11xl December
et Deferred tax awst

GROUP COMPANY
Yoear ended Wear ended Year eaded Year endied
31-12-2022 Al-12-m021 M-12-3a22 10-1X-B03]
MVR MWH MVE MVE
AL AYTATO A7 T G0 HROTE 155 ATOLE, MG
1L.312.71010 Y127 2,6 [ 3,053 4889
32,950,581 11437870 AL 740,804 30472155
27797252 25439241 26,456,054 25,758 630
| et il | 461,259 14077433 230 .49]
a1 AT% 8§45 78] B ETS 46,732
;!‘,ﬂﬂé'ﬂ 17. 797,212 4,563,062 !HH.I!-I
I AT 010 EREL R 4,177 ETT 3,214,000
RO DOMFANY
TR Asnt A i Ak
$-1z-022 FE-12-Z028 Si=13-2022 31-12-2021
MYR MVE MVE MYR
{196,623, 04 (RS I148RY) (150871 070 (1T 35T)
13, 123034 134,585,651 134,724,773 FEEELIBLE
23544 ade | 7,455 612 I3 Rad. 450 I'F AUt
3. E 030 U 419.5]] 61,7030 AL
13,040,736 1427851 ITRE1IT 0,440,674
5% 154 18%% 15%
(29438, 571 [ET, T 23T {28,567, 067 ) {1 B, 084)
JL0R50.581 1407 870 3L T40 830 B0, 158
14T 008 E ] 177677 2216001

[Meferred tax liabiities are caloulated on wll emporecy differences ander the Liakdlite mathid reing tha eMective tar mie of 15%,
Deeferred income tax: lisbiliiesasseiy for the Group and the Company are arising  from aceelerstod tax depnecistion snd (he
provision for had defe. The net movemene on the deferred imeowe tax s os follows:

& Earmings per share

B Esrndagd por alore js enleulaied by dividieg the profit fx the yom aiishuiablo in oodisary shareholbos of e Campeny by the
weighie averagn number of cedicary shases outianding during the year, The weighted sveisge auvber of crdissry shanes
culstancing during ke year and s previous year ore sdjusted for evenls chat hove chonpial the mamber ol ondinny shares
ocutstunding, without  eomesponding clange in the ressarces fich s o boouy s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 Decensber 2022

L] Earnings por shace [coniinug)

B2 Thefallowing refleets the incame: and share date e in ibe basic samings per skare sompuistioe

GROLUP G COMPANY
Year ended  Yearendid  Year coded Year ended
Al-1R-2H2X A1-132-202E Jl=12-Z0XX J-13-Zrkd
MVE L MR
PeafT nhrlbml]ﬁlq.luqu:],'lﬂﬁin: HTFAAT 200600519 104 10 200 ARTA, 105
Wiiganeil averaps number of «
= uniimary shores it e TET 00 20T {0 2067 000 261,000
Fagls parmings per thars T4l 1,089 TET 1077

B3 IWnidendds per starg

AE e B annual peneral smwang held oo O4h Sepiember 2022, o Anal dividand |n respranl ol thy finaeciad year 22| of MVE SIV- per sheane (302
BIVH P28 por share) steuntiag 1o o wial of M2 MVE 134,185,227 (2021 MYE 194,302, 574/.) wis dechired, Theso Bancisl stricmenis relleds
this: divirdend, which s heon neoowted under statmment of ahanges i sgusty us an spproprioson of reiabied cesings during thay pear

L ] Property, plist and equipment

81 Cros carrylng anesumis

Bulidings, desilinmtion plant sod fuel firm
ubliz razn wwicr and nesw water sapply
sehomie

Sewsrapt sytem

Fhrik film blowing erachine asd preform
AYELSH

Peveme cmmpets (RO plants, penemice,
perwell and coutial panps

Mlosor vabiches

Office mml olher squipmeant

Famstureand fiiings

Cowrpuer hagdwen
sk

01 Acedmslaied Depreclation

Tealldings, desalinatios ghint asd fil fgom
Tallic rain water ani new swancr supply
schene

Bewemge sysicm

Sbrink Fl blowing iachiss and prefoom
wxnlum

Meerie pomnanie (RO plans. geassraton.
el and ontrol pumps

Muoter whlos

Office aml other squipment

Femiture and fiitings

Coenputer handwice

Viserls

wimoup
Tranlers to
Balance as sl T ranafiprs Blalnmee ag at
platzgzg  ddftonsdmeestmet Ly Dispos) 31113422
Progerty
MYVE MYR MVER AVER MY¥H YV
XE3 565,000 ] i 1A Sl 1,524,218 . AT 668
2% 004 ETE - - 9,571 495 - 32308037
161 653 137 5 - 4275 16k " L8 07 w08
Do 50,6100 3954 . AR A METZT06)  342,160.242
a3.5856,916 08,166 - 17.562.215 L1 30 oy ETARIT A
I15.4651,231 a4k 30 . AT AT (7 TTaaTY 123,138 223
EIT01 SES &01T.8T1 . 3,553,708 (&4, BTy 06 | AT
15454413 L5, 116 " - - UL R
433116, 146 1,509,117 : 3092 158 (4T3 L8y 5347030
53,243,714 = : E - 5324174
R80T, 13,518 418 (U400 EEE  IJAAAT,IPE  (IBSILIVH]  LObS0ALeln
Finlance s sl Charge Trams s, i BnlEnos &0 47
01,01, 202 pat bnvestmemt Desporad 322002
Fear properiy
MYRE MYER MVE MVR WE
L1 Z7EERG 16,31 (57,9515 . | 20 S|
45 438 007 5479373 A - 08 6L 230
105, TH4 9510 4611252 - - 10 3,242
f9, 5T S| |10, 2¥7 54 ; ETA2.061) 2330, T
Y5150, 105 32 ruaT a (L2068 FH2TRE TS
S93.EW 01 ({1 MBER ] F L Y O 21T g
B4, 135447 T AL - [hE4.6370 TEATRALS
15,R01,975 L1406, 508 = i 16581 454
39,907, 18 R - 130 21k} 44045 3=
10,570,747 2603 FET = £ 13,238,934
_SEALARAE 104 9RHATE {557,951} (16.203.57%)  EALIRE ]
[ LERFLETT] 1 T.085
L L'
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Mude” Water and Seweropge Company Prt Lid

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YWenrended 31 Detcimher 2023

23

ui

B4

Froperty, plant aad epolpssent (Contined)

Lnal

Buildinga, desalinailun plent und fus|
farm

Publie min waler mid pew waier
wapoly schense

Sewcmge sveiem

Shrink [Eim blowing mach e wsd
profam aysbain

Revere oy {(RO) plano,
goeormier, brwewedl and comrol peingps
Moinr vehacles

Office and other eqeinswen

Frarnitu e ami fioings
Conipu ier hundwose

Voastls

Arcumnlnted Depreeistion

Puisi il bsgs, desiilaiilive jjlasd wned Sl
farm

Pulsiic rsdn waser and now water
supply scheme

Suugrags wysiom

Shies filmy blosrisgy machine and
prefing Sy

Hevirse oamadis (RO planis,
generator, borewell st okl pumps
Moo velicles

(a[Eize and ather eopipaem

Fumivase wiad fittings

Compmer Bandwars
WVienmls

Toral cxrrying smeunt of properiy
plust and sguigment

COMPANY
Truasliors to
Halance &t at Tramsfers Halagee ag al
stonzosy  vddMiom levestmem L oL, Dispesl REET ]
prupsTty
AMYR MYE MYR MYR AVH MVE
287573074 . {1,409, 566} LB - 26594
21302 ETE 5 | a%2.028 BaTE A% 230445 000
Erl653337 - - 275, Led - |65 918 505
205, 328337 L] - BT 36,0 | - 275008 181
ANY P80 75 509,184 (ASLEN) ITEE 28 11340003} A52370, 512
107,155,324 . : 5470307 (7, 776670} 103,348,085
TRATLTEG 5 ARE FE1 : 1,555, 70K {14, 64T Br463 150
13457304 I 0 fd 2 < = 11,603,517
43T 3 4R 6d a 7,000, 1 5% (A0, 21K} 5,006,711
51343734 . . 2 ; £3,243 714
1, B 884,065 LR S ] (AP SR D& DI5500 [, THLEAT] 1.5918,486,58%
Tramsfers to
vyl SR
Proprey k
MVIE MYR MYVR MY R MYR
B AT, 168 15.491,34] (557050 10l 430558
UL 415 7 5420 33y = T2 A0
10, TR0} 433,252 - L, SuE 240
(5,036,324 14,073,221 - . TR
335,740,857 31,250,479 - {1 2388) 2370
A (a3 5013 T.TLLELR - (7T A LR
B2 4 307 TEq7, 4T . | lad 57 51,329,953
11,972,728 570,234 - - §2,542 954
R H4.304 5008, 751 = 1307204 40,005 857
10 5T F46 20642, 18T 4 - J 128233
7 57,50 PLARLANE]
Q17068224 944 AHLA11
| s

The valing of filly doprocioted property, plant and equipment a8 she reporting dabe snsounied 1o 89VE 228,705,424/ (2005 MYR 237021824/ of
thie irogrn and MVE 118,715 4240 (3021 MVE 237,920,5345) of the Compaay.

Drepreciation expetses af MVRE 73,355,590 nod MVE 68,141 BG2: [2021; MVE 62,500,575 and MVR 57,712,125 have ben chargad m cosl
oF wales aned MVE 600 524 pad MVH 268654571 | 2031 MVR Z7.708.273 and MVE 23327961 }in sdminfsrative sxpenses of e Croap

il Coni iy pespachivgly
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Male' Water and Sewerage Compnmy Pt Lid
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Vear ended 31 Decemnlser 2022

* Praperty, plant nod equipmend (Cantlnued)
GO COMPANY
NBV By MHY NEY
na ml b Al il a8 a0
F1-13-Hrka H=11-2021 H1-12-z072 A=l 2-2001
UT Mt Book Valas MVR MYE MVH MVH
Buildmgs, desninnuon plaal and feel fane 243,040, 707 153580, 104 L2 f06. 436 LNk une
Puhtic min weser aed new water spply
schirm L30H38, 14 125,585 kel 130 4, S0 125,585 868
Scugrigd yysiem 57,5330, 262 STARR AT 51550303 57,860 347
Shrink tilm blowing ensching and
prelinm sy 195,531,448 137,017,708 Pl S i3 40221, 80
Reverss asmoss (Wi plina, penerator,
bogeaiclland comtrol pumps ELRNE ) YT AR% 4R ele BT T SUE 0 015
Whodir wehiclics 28,040, 0 3,777,431 50, B RN i
[hifice e othier ogquipreent 15,547 572 17076 138 1% 153,247 16337, Mna
Famiture and fittings RN LY 3752438 | G0, 173 1,534, |64
Dot ruiler bardewene 1477003 #41%170 352054 EALE 3o
WVemch L0004 500 A1 b B A, 004, B E ALnh 0l
—LRE ST IS 582420 844 S0 91 ]
%K Company's nssees pledged as secority far bans und borrawing
NHY m ol
Bask ! Lendor Currency Farility asmbmnt JE-12-2022
Fregerty, plamt nnd ¢guipmoat MVE
Prefinm mas hime (Hosiog POz HHL hiWVR T, 100, 0 TO0GT S44
el botlhng piant 12,004 BFHE HBL MVRE T3, 100, 006 15,830,345
3 (Wt Wy O iy Mlitsubesii B Capilal B0 1.AT 813 0, 38006
1ABW Cesermor el Minspasal B Capiod sk T AT P R
Sewermpe metwork sl punpeEion Ilrsbin] BT Capil LEn 378,417 LI0nITE
Crssomir serviee buidling NsBC MVR 154,100,000 T 10855
P'en bulsding M MVE %4, 2043, M) A TITAGSE
Drhaveafau-TTG MIB LS 4. 178,506 13,480,000
blmatushi-PPE MIE LEL 4,178,508 T A9T.0T
Cilass e Ratding Plaat weith and
el mlord asmens [ mechinerics MFLC 5D 1,400,000 5,0 K 4L
Tetal IREARL AR
10 Capital work-is-progress
LR P CaiPamNy
Ag wt A ml Anwt Aj al
11-12-2013 =l2-2011 A-12-20% Kl=122021
MVHE MVRE MVE MYE
A 4 Jorunry T SGAESLAN &7 416210 413 315828 G5 1L A5, 004
Mokl i ins BEE O A0 0344510 154, 211160 55,3504
';":;"‘l"'ﬂ“"m"'i‘;‘"“ﬁ""‘" = propey. (190,BR7, 1119} (221,264,044) [116,015.582) (R20,264.548)
Tramles 1o expenses {04, I 6800 - {14, BT g8 5
Prosssion o Capiiel Work in Progess . {2,011, 025 - (2,001,055
Reft e ficassion fo Prepaynead - 1 367,151 - -
At Dieeember EENRETT ORI RS S, TH6, 740 [EELTEFEN
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Male' Water and Sewerage Company Pyt Lid

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended 3 Decomber 2022

P01 Inthe course of construciion

Land Aeqeiaion mt Gulhifilla

195 466,75] 195 Hoh, 751
Conmsirnetion of Pipe Manufhciuing Stores 155312 1,550 44
CiulhdFalhiu Fuoel Stoenge Task 50T 333 B4 43,176
Ciutlhalialho Baimmsaber syates - 136,245
Malt Tastellntion of 000TPD RO Pl : 422,454
Supply & Install Stomgs: Teaks 11355000 T, h24, %0
Hmnle - Wt & Sewer Mewtork P2 111878643 ETZ 130
Chpernition vonired buildisg - Mele 22.27201R 1157, 3510
LConiraction of Mpelne vis bildge 46,067 75T %089 512
(ifalbm - Faoilidy Bullding B.S01 503 1355617
Power Productics Expansson Gl hifalba 2,927.851 1,927,951
Waber Producticn. Stympe & Distribuckon 2 RTERT IR35 073
GIF Manulsevering buildmp stompe deck 193721 1,193,721
Gifalia - Port Cosetruction 3046 . 187,545
Premizm Witer Masudncruring = HMIL 60, 803387 FETT 568
Constraction of Frefom Building ol Culbiliia 10,562 74 LGN, 26t
Constraction of Warchuess - Ofalhy IT 050124 L6, S0, 363
Constracticn of Waler & Bewor Meotwork (Thislst |2358L 123,952
Supply, inalafl & Commsion Boiuling Gne 8,087 ER-er s
Himale - Vetilalion system Totling LLT R 93,021
WAF Pee=Mlicmiion systaim 3135117 10K, L5t
CIF cleanbag syebeim for S0CGOTPD = il The
Flushing vEicks 53416 S35
Cengtragtion of Frodootive Faeclley = phese2 44 6536 234, (50
Feefioam light welghteing projea : | 35, SRl
ientilstion System - ER LA 1
Hulthumale! Fecl Line 4 TR0 2 5B 526
Ensiellzsg Propaid Waier Mevers - T,
Exterdion of Waser & Sower Metosork - Tushi 270 G0
Extensimi of Water & Seacr Meiwork - Kfushd 5,035 A03 10055, 863
Chumnney sack - HLM 2186220 L1430
2 mew Borehales - Male; - 3, TRE,OTF
Clsstrastion of barchobe = 1azy o4
EI'H project 1B 229457 13,492, 603
Oither Trojecis 41716840 %262 03T
Frovesion on Capaal Wark in Progress - !E.ﬁﬂi,ﬂﬂﬁ

15, 176206

| 95860, 510
355380
585,404

NECTHITY
111,878,643
Z232TZALE
46,067,757
A9 A8
2.927.951
2RSSR
1193721

5 B0, 987
111,306,274
17,150.124
123,982
5,246,367
931,021
3,135,117
AR
544,616

4,734,093

A0
F 35 EOA
2150220

A2 T N9

194,806,751
1,590,344
743,176
136,248

4 454
T334, 00
87,210,151
L35 TE. 551
30,0065 512
3383007
1,927,935
2 AYTHETY
L I¥ETE)
EN T ]
0,577,565
10,366, 266
16,804,365
123 952
5,622,179
#3102 |
3,005,136
26217
3416

S it
13,0051
5165908
2,298,320
TT1 A0
STl
3,083,565
2, k94220
A, TEROTS
| 23,914
39,282 0120
2,001 AIE3)

504 231,431 06, 746740 483238 018

Ll Conpamy's sssels Hedged ny secwrily Tor loans sid borrewings

0.3

WEY as al

Bark ! Lendor Curransy Facilily mmaued JE-12-1022
Capiead work-im-pregress MY
Wrbes & sewarape nebaork HM ph2 Mitsshishi HC Copital UED a,58%, 107 IS8 43
200 m! Fuel wnk, cransfonesr 1,9 M8 anl
oher s gl Dby B UED 4,173,508 3.106, 2012
Serwer pamp o & vehicle maimeTance warkshop
ond pifer asseis Mosfushl ah 4,378 506 $200L AT
Taisl 158.0115,241

Lowimg tlb yoar, the Company has incamed barnewing cast nmuunting jo MVRE 8205, 032 (2021 MYR TAZ0289) on qualitying msssts in

gapital work-in-progress.




Male’ Water and Sewerage Company Pvi Lid
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended M Decpinber 2023

11 Infangihbe asqily
GROLUP
111 Gress carrying nmoust Balance as ai Balunce ny wl
of coat l-01-z0z2 AdiEtions Diksposaly 31122022
MYH MYVER MYHR MVl
Lomputer 2okwane b Ik - ] ZED 026 W EIGA LA
Erand rame 25,000 . 25 00}
150 and HACCP Cerisficaie 264,330 . IG5 120
20427, T8 L858 B2 30, 1ETH
LE Acemmulabod amertlsaten and iepairmend
Balance as ni Charge far the Disposal Balnnce sx i
on-@i-1912 VEAT iranslers BT BY B
MVE MVE MYH MVH
Computer saltware 235315347 1 TS ki 1153503
Beumd naane 22,301 LI5S0 23,75]
156} end HACCE Conificme 15,250 17 65H . 02918
15938 398 1,711413 - IT 651,710
1.3 HNetenrrying smoant 3808410 2465814
COMPANY
Li4  Wros carryimg amoumnt Bulauce as ai Balance & ut
Cuigd Tl-9l-3iE Acdit boma [Hispnsa ks F-11-Z022
RMVE MVE MYH MVR
Campiter safbware i 342,034 W57 28467 453
Balance a8 ot Chimrge for the Dismpusal | Balunec a5 at
1.5 Actemmlated amartisniin amd impairm Ol-0]-2413 FEAr transfers 3p-11-2422
af cist MVE MVR MVER MVH
Comparier safbware 25254 633 1,453 447 26,748, L&)
et enrrying smaunt 10487602 1,718,272
IL6  Amcriiaricn change of MYE 7223439 (202]0 MVH 1.790.407) is included n administrative eapenses of the Gronp sl MV

1,493,547 (2021 MVE 1,549,359 i inctudad m sdminisiatne axpenses af the Company,
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Maoke' Waier and Suweruge Company Pyt Lud
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yenr eeded 31 Diecendser 2022
COMPANY
1t livestmnt in s beldinries A i Az af
A1-13-hk¥ Ji=11-421
MV wve
lilind Devemges Maldves Frivale Limitnd LASE 08 i L]

lieesimers in mubgidiany comerises invewinest made by e Comgiey i Tiland Drempges Meidives Privige Lisited & aoarpany nio el
i the Hepabilie orvialdvee. Tha Comgany halls 51% of i meeed 5.

1} Tsvesment preperty GROUFMCOMPANY
131 Ceads exrrying smound Balrr wx af Transker Malanee as
el L IE§ Ik AddiEons frem FPE H-12-013
HVR MVR MVE MY H
Ve'oat o raalaira beach pevalioe AN FG . - PO
O bwidimp Ind mad Hh Moo F31.TES < B4R
Feu beibding 21l Flowr 1,17 150 = . 11035
¥ beibding Ird Floce 2,917,432 - . 107,512
Py brwi B D Mo 5,346, 7% - = 534709
R heilding Aih Flaar B0 1,8, s - - 1 087,085
MWSC camvieen aaildivg - " 1,&5&& 1 ADG Sl
30, 50, PR - 1,404, 560 k]| 16
Avcumulited amartlsition sad impalraeni Eslanoas =i Charge for e Tramler Halmnce s ai
al rmsl IFL-0]-2922 yar fram I'PE AF-1E-2032
MR MVE MYR MVE
Wiest const psfane beack pavilion Lo T 434 - 1R
C% hwisding Ird pad 4th Mooy 165 444 B33 A3 - 3,517,587
Fen beilding 2ead Flose 1,501,424 18450 - [ LAE
l-'ﬂ'l.l:llll:lqu:l:n.l Flanse I,#33,131 57304 - B ARGS9
Fen huiliding It (foor 4,549 mA A 458 - 4,407,243
Fﬂ'l.h'lil:ll.rg Ath Foadr MIOHA B, 656 | ] ] A6k 5749
SMWEL comern iilding - a3l 557,053 SokAEL
FEETE 1456, 170 551,050 AT A8
et carvylog wmeani I, 201 51 17,555,940

13,2 Tie Croep hes rerced o cae of 1t Buildings of K (Wi coosi beech pavilion), C5 Bujbding Ind and th T and Foa buidding 1at,
Ind, Zed Mo m pestinn of &b Qs aed oaniem bedding 10 bind padticn and i sbnidiary with the misniion of ssming monthly eaisl
meurme, aed covpany has adogted cosl madel 1o resarae the @vainEn promriy

L3 lwvestmiint jroperties dhclosed af lulr vabse Falrvabue asat  Fair velseas s
3=12-2022 TL-0X-2m21
MVR MVH
Wzt comed raafanm heaok pavilion 15, (0 [HFE 14,5 (0 11 6
2% Bisbiag 348 and ik Foor 198, T3, 00d 1402 0 0 )
For B ddin g 2nd Floo 1%, ffls, TR 28 A0 Opg
P Bullfing 3rd Fline 21,460, 21, 350000
Fei Hekding bl Eoar [ 5960, M0 1§, 164,500
P Bailding 4ih Flowi ¥, T 1,412,530
AW Cannsen Alcn EM!.I]IM-
SAIELMN LTI
134 Comspany's oy plolged as securiiy for lasns nnd barresings
WBY anad
Hamk | Lsmdar Carrmey Facilliy anesumi ETE ERTEES
Imvessment progerty ATV

Caslomar sarvica bulifling MR MWVE 144, 500,080 A i3
Tatad %

125 Amounis recegnised lm profln e bag Tor [avestmenl praper s

GROUF COMPANY
Ay s o Ayt Asomt
E0-i2auxd F-EZ-R0ZL 31123032 30=12-2421
VR MYR MVE MVR
Reerdtal i M oponiding ks 10,500,565 5022331 15,659, 6E5 A 511
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Male' Water and Sewerage Company Pyt Lid
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year eisted 31 December 2012

141

in2

143

GROUP COMPANY
Inventories As mf Axal As al A al
I-12-2822 ¥1-12-3021 M-12-2022 Xi-12-Luzi

MYE MYR MVE MVE

Raw marerinks 37407, 145 15519, 525 5172785 22,453 314

Crorsumablis stack 459,542,278 297749, 6% £55 660 677 203,487,710

Finighed goods LE503, 111 10545 431 13,192,612 L0043 Ak

Wiler inventoey 1.247,823 I 556 847 1,347,823 1,990,047
515,930,356 356950 440 S06, 3RERIT 2 050,71)

Loaes:

b renest Sor slosw and pes-tinoviee ilems [23.544 456) [ 17499501 {23,144 4561 117,450 6025
497,085,500 EFLAETE2E] M2 53R 441 0,591,119

irki=im

Empirves hirusing unit 20,200,786 |35, 710,40 H1,290.786 E33,7 10,402

691,206,275 52,762,240 EALAZR2IT Ha0s

During the year, the Company has ineumed borowing cost amosating o MVR 3038,245.79 {2021: MVE Nil} on the smployes
hiiseg unit meark-in-progrees,

Esternal project work-fi-pregress

Exteraal projects 13,781 14,581 11,781 14,881

Condract sssels

lnhilled Reverie fiom cxiemal projects 304,919,714 | 54,206 457 M0.509.7 14 | %4, 206.417

Uinhilkd Reveisee fom waler consumplion A% 68 T2 i 30 AZEET72 45§74 540

Retentioen meosivable A.4481 061 0126 T G040, 125

Lot prowision for impainmesis 18,550, 144} [m.w.-ai,m: {16,561, 144) gm.mu.ﬂ-m
B34 478,603 IT0,453.571) 36,4 2R 407 AHLADEETH

Mevemeat of proviclon for imprirment bs & follewi:

Ukponlag balangy 10,088,552 = 1, 15502 s
Prowysion daning 1he pear 0, 370552 10,148,592 £, 3TLE52 BIL1RA, 552
Cloging balance 16,560,144 10,185 591 14,561,144 14,188,592

Ammoents relating o contmact assets are haluress dse from auslomers. from witer consamplion, webiled revenue fiom exierml
prajicts mad ponstriction rebenelong

Unhilled water comsumstlon lnclode witter mnsumpdion es of the ord of the repoming peciod smowstieng ML 19.628,372 (2021
MYR 458758005 which are not opened for billing cpcle

Ruverue recognised on pesceenikge comyHelion mmounting MVIL 300905718 Q021 MYE 139,206,857} but not invowed weeil the
npeed rotnbed  milesioes:s are achbeyisd,

Corslruction rebeniion is beld by castienore imiil the agreed nelnted - melostones me schisvad.

Aoy amommt proviouwsly recoguiscd as & shnlrmot assel is reclassified 1o rmle reecivables 3 Be poini ol which il is iseoioed o ihe
CUSICRT,




Male' Water und Sewerape Company Pyvi Lid

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2022

GROCP COMPANY
17 Trode snd sihier regelvables A al As @l Az i AS
3l-13-2021 Ap=12-2021 31-12-2023 31-13-2021
MVR MYE_ MVH MVER
Trade peceiviblas 1402573 o3 145476335 R, a4, khi) 131,067,521
Amouney dus feom releted parties Mok 315 162,405 31 &N 05T e 417,600,644 276,202,020
Lesia: peavidion for impainments of tmds
receivablie (Mote |7.0) {131,393.83%) 124 BT ) LR RN 1133,373,326}
44 008 TRE R L1616, 5TR 0L M3 300 ELER DA E
Biepeait and prepayments 126,200 409 173,480,001 Fdd, TH0 4R 170, 550557
Chier reecivnbies 3B 3T6TET T 2E8AYT AZ HOMEO3E 14,371,331
#5801 96 AR 073408 177,534, 521 245, N519TH
Trode sal sther rocelvables SER,GADSEE S b ST AL, AR

171 There ie no somoeniration of chedi rak with repect to trada recoivables, as the Group bas a bree suinler of cestimss,

172 Theamouras due from related parties are ormeonmed, imenes. frse snd heve i fxsd repsymmen| beemi: Acoardingly, these amounis are
ehiowen as Falling die within coe pear,

173 ihher recomvabiles of che Geongp imclude Letter of Credit MV M (2021: MVE 12,539,377}, LC mergin maney MR 4588, 315/
(20212 MVE 17,918, 1400}, receivable Eom noo-utility refated income ameundng MVE 13,557 068 (2021 NOVE 20,006 2509, bank
Euaranben mangta amoantiog MY WL (02T MYE 9,090,199, 6l lacs mnnanting to MVE T HSE0140 (2021 MVE
M5 101, veni recstvable amosmting MVER 642,883 (2031 MV 667, 50, saff adwvances amauniing MYE 150,380 (302
MWVE §56A4110, interest recevable I.E'I-d'l.l.l'n,p BVER 44,530 42021 MYR 44,530, redundable depessle snd other ameniming MYER
55677455 (2025 MVE 1 S61,0%5R),

174 Prepayimeits of e Group inclede adwvance peymens made o mgphers asearelng o MYRMYR (453715600 (2021 MVE
ITLR25 438}, secorily deposit MAVR J 338 REQS (2021 MR |48, 5000

I7.5  Provisivn for impalrmest of irode recelvalibe GROUP COMEANY
A ai A wid A wi As sl
o 18 e S | 31-12-2021 AN-1E-203F 31-12-2021
MVEE MY MV MYR
Exprovied cumdit boss umiber stzoplEfied approach :IEIE'-‘H-.H-? IE-!-IE[ﬁ"ﬂ IIEIWEIJH 13|3?3£1ﬁ

1786 Movensest of provisien for impairment is as follows:

Crpeulng balane 124,507 540 115,805,895 123,373,020 114,082, 63
Froviséon during tho year 20304 615 B S 20,430 0410 4 0363
Amil deix witben-oi (el Bed ) . {33,820 31K .
Closimp s lance 131373437 124,807 a1 Llgs7s154 113373336




Alal® Wakor and Sewernge Company Pyt Lid
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Weor pnded 31 December 2622

18 Cash amd ensh wpalvalentds in cash flow slateoeai

GROLE COVFANY
Axal A mi Aaat FT T
31-12-2011 J-12-1821 Xl-1 22032 3i<12-2021
MVE MVR MVE MVE
Lash i hasd 15,200 520 2T 7ET 11,2007 5y 5257767
Cask al anks NEF 157371200 TG 159409 BEMELT V)
Le= provision foo impairment on ok Eahnge {230 45 . (2504540 .

126,574,058 LirE2H, B5 T 118, 134, B4 159, 00614

8.1 pravision fes impairssent oa bank balunee

Provision dusing she year pE ECT 2 330,404 i
Chising halance A3 404 - 10404
1 Share capdial [hrtimary shores
Momber of sharss MYER}
AL | Fangary 2002 21, IHH) 247, 0000
AR M Dpowmber 2821 LT 247, a0

The satal aufhimiied pumber ol ordeary shares s 267,000 shapes (2021 27 000 shares) with o par valae of MWVE 1M pep akare (2071
WO 1000 prev alamrisy, Tl b, 267, THRD slearcs iog B ned Fally 'pu'd.

Ak al Asal
3-12-20E2 Al-12-102]
MYR MYk
Gavegrmnun of Mokiives - 21 2600 ordinery sheces 313, b e 20160800
Hitachi Loriiad - 51,000 ordinery sharcs 3, AL 53,400,500
O, e REAR000,
-1 Baairy alidment galn
The difference betwcrn e consideursn reesived For iares and the par value of shares aliciied by the zompany bax beer: thown = chare
wloimenl gain
Cansideraiog Yl of shares
puld for shares wllnited Galn
MYER = MYR MVR
Gioreerseat of Maline 16 T R .
= GHOLF
n Npn-ronirefimp inter e s g LI
Ak=11-2022 21=11-2021
MVE MAVA
M 1 Jorenry 21K, 542 IR %1ikR10
vk dectared {1152 565 a
Share of 1ol profit of peksidisry 161,68 2,001 F
b 31 Dheceaninid zlm mm
n Interesi-lwaring logns gnd barrowings ﬁ_B'.j'Il.'Pn'CI'.L\'IE'.ﬁH‘l'
AdEt As &l
F1-12-T0EL A-12-202)
Now- Carrest: YR L
HEBC 1oy baa N0, 1V] X500 19251288
BB e foses LR G =
Loas frors o relaied pary 41169 65T LGS
Ilaldives Finanee Lersing Company 15,295 704 o WL Kl
Habib Dank Limizd &) 4 05 -
ITLN 2R L6 334471
Current ;
HEBL e kein FE.550.000 1,534,712
WIEH leimi livan 4, T4, 108 -
Lean frean s relaed panty 12,713,500 21,300 267
W eramitiug Lot argial Blask b M
M akdivms Fimames Leaging Comnpany LR R B IERLORD
Hubih Benk Limited LO10 97 | 153334

Tutal lmrrowings i 41,741 155, 140484
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131 Mevemest of Enperest hearing linkilives

2L

GROUFCOMPANY

LT Loims A wl

#1012 abdained e priny mmcnd I-13-2023

MVE MVE MVE MVE
HSBC e o B EA0.000 B3, 3650 (01 o637 S| Edd 402 S0
BATE W Loy . &7, 516,503 ' G136, 53
Laiii [heers i relalied pariy HE GG 84 - CIESTRA5) o, 123,557
Habiil Busk: Limited 11,532,334 44,375,158 (10, 512.9354) EFR FLEELS
Mesiling Comnwrcial Bank . 237400 AL
Maklives Finuies Lindimg Conipeny 24, 678000 i [, T42.982] 16,889,018

IEJE 2T 626 AT E‘Hﬁﬂl; }ila-la'?-ﬂ

The expusure of the Graup'siCompany's borowings 1o imores nte chasges wnd sopteictial spricing detes ol the ond of! ilis reporiiog
=il ave g follows:

GROLPFCOMPANY
Ad ol Al
Ap-12-2022 M-12-2021
MVRE MVE
& muonths or Less lnsal a3 19,537,532
& « 12 months AT 820 LB R
i- years 2443310 LIE.038,870
ME543. L iS5 1d0LBES
The expaamre of the Grsap Company's horrewhogs is a follows:
Asat Aur ot
Ji=12-1022 3-13-20210
MVE MVE
-o wurinble roies 1ERSAT 453 34, 840,M0
« i fixed miss 1 539 306 G 15 5214, 300,BE5
A4R B2, 155,140,888

The carvring anmunl and the Talr vabee of the burrendags are o folloss;
Lbe carrying valuss spprinimass 1he B values
Carvying anmusl ay 51

31-1 21822 A0-11-2021
YR MYVR
HEDE ssom bean 144, 552 500 H0,540,000
BEIR 2t lodn 67,506,563 -
Laoam from & selmied party G0, 125,557 BEOrDE 552
hlauirEius Cammercial Rank 3,374,000 E
Mellaldives Fmance Lossiog Company 2K ENO DR 24 K52 o)
Habib Hank Lisniied 44,075,155 11530054
A48, 843,741 155,140,840
Ihe [nlr valpes are based on cash Mews discounted ssing fellowing borrowing retes:
LExz ML
HERC tem |nan 108 18%
IS Sore loesn ™ -
Lean from o elated pamy 2.55% F L
Mwaniiivs Commercial Hunk 1P [
Mol nvws Finance Lensorg Compomgy 1L 5% 11L.75%
Hahik Faske Tinsted e, B
The Gresp Company has the follewing sndravn berrowing faclbitles as an
3i-11-1n022 I-13-E020
MY WV

« Expieing williin ong yesr - -
- Expiring heyool nns s 12,734,843 121380, (0
I TLLEE 1 11.3460,00
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Tniorest bemring lmns ol horros gy

[retuils of ncerest bearing loans snd berrowings

Leader

Taisl kean
Taxiligy
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linterest Fahe

Sevuritieepldpal asets

Hubl buos Borralesd
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Feliskdveas Lilasvée
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Hewaie Sytam
Pregacth

Miisublshi BHE
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Ceplial Aai Facifie

Pelitaudsinhi T
e fusin Facilin

Wlabdives Finence
Lessizg Camnpany
{Can=s Moy
Prajoc)

Muiwiidy analvel of undisconnied nea-currens laans ad serrevings b as fallows:

Betveezn 1o 2 vean
Bevwesn 15 yours
Mbiiva § poans

MVH,
77.L00,0001

LIsr,
LREAR

MYHE
e 1

LEm
LRI

M¥R,
154200 DR

L1{n
1277813

LS, a1 AN

LIED,
2.UEN, [T

LIHE | b0, 0l

J‘a:lllh:'mwmjﬁ]m]ﬂ-ﬁ for
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MWECs exterzal prajocts and b bo be
mepadd within 3 years tom the ki
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e pociod fone B debiisanens

Faiabty bes bewn ublaimed on 16 Apnl 2819
Ear aeguinng ihe MMOm3 RO plant and has
Lav Be pepaiad s 20 quarterhy maialirseris

Faziliy s been obiained on T September
2022 Torr Ferssing 1lm waler storpe fcility
ot Cidhifftra and hea 10 Bo repaid m 72
munghly inslelimenis aiice o 12ty pooe
perind

Frcility haw been chising oo 58 Juse 2033
o (Enancing the Hives prodes siwer 1 ond
e loan b be repadd in 0 monibly
vigluenls aler 17 marths grace porus!
Fagilily was sistamed on 25 July 202] fiw
nanaing M WSS 20 lakored wator and
aruer peajicts, Loan dishurssveml s in ke
e in ¥ ecqual dishurssmest ol MR 20084
resflan, qut e which [ dibursesey hai
bexny mumde i 3000, Each disdnmsuned i o
be repald in 48 monily Ssralments s 13
rmeiihé grace penod.

Bacility bus biaen obiaiesd on § Fehnury
19 for fmancimp e supply. installabion
vl conmumissaning of n WOy B
plar im EHudhoesle phase 7 prolecton 15
Jaly 2019 and has 10 be repaiad in T2 sty
malements wilh |2 montks goos pariod

Fozility frasi leen vdtained oa K Feboary
201% er fnencing the sspply, irzialsion &
i bslonbing of | Bhls e mlon sid @i
Halsumele phass 2 peoject on 15 July 2009
el st b ropwid in s T2 moetily
izstinemin will 17 momim graoe perivd.

Pacity ke bevs ob@med on 8 Febmary
2041 9 For TnEncing me supply of waler &
seierage @yilem reberiaiy in Holbumalk
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12X seieths grace povwal
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Sl for Grancing the purchese. trpsport,
trsiell pioon, pomermissctung, wid otler
investment cosle of Dlass Disitliag Prjest
el b 1o b putid b 4% cathly inealmess
afler & inmslhin prace el

Betlay Talulll ruk &
1 044, ur Mear of
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b b &5
lige)

Fioved i 2 5.5%
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Fiscd raieai '

| moid T-bill rate
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Funed radee sl B35%
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Finial etz al
I LTS

L Adoergage eves iee miechinery | equljmess
being finsnced uader facilicy 2 {Hotded Water
FMlam Mo 3} Combirad Colkdemsiwith
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LR T ST
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Barvice Bullding Laad Area and Meorpags of
R} planis in MWST Male’ nuin comnjpronmst
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this fus sy

Matgage orer LAMW Geizesing 5o R
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Maicricis for Hulsemale® Phase I project
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THOUFTONMPANY
Adan ARl
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£}  Lraseo

i1l The Ciroup Fas severa] contracts. for the use of Land apd boildmg im its cperations: The Gronp's chlipations under 15 lezses ore
secnred by the bessar® tile 1o the leassd nascls.

Fhe aildings and cerain other fixed assels wone erecled on land beased bo the Company fram the Govemment of Maidives for
20 yeurs | scoordaace with {lause [T afthe Joint Venmre Apreement and the Assets Tronsfer Agreament dated 10 Merch | 955
and @ Beptember 1995 respectively. The Imsehald rights t e nd wee derived from the sasl loln Ventie Agreement ani
Asien Tmnsfer Agiesment. The Compauy b deodin] i axionsios ar lewss e Tof a fariler 20 e from the Goversmel
of Mpliliven on 14th Morch 2010, Duning the yoar the balonce has transfeered to right of use ssscts

Sl cut below are The carmymp pmomnis al it ol use deets recopnised nad the mavermena during 1he pofel

GROLP
LT Right of mse aseis Malé" lensehald Ll il inng Tetai
righi
Cost MYER MVER MVHE MVE
As 2t T Janeary 16,155,717 112,066,545 19,204, 448 147434 K 1H
Addetions during the vest - 11,622 407 EREE RG] 25368462
Madifieanons durinsg the yewr - 129,232 003 - 292N ARA
Dee-recoruitions during the year - - (551,795 {351,788)
Ad b 31 Dewembir 16158717 252,821,007 32646.75h A Tk, 5
Bepreciation
As ot 1 Jomuary 12587 0 16 ESG 234 TR ML TS2 37,440,000
Churge for the year B1,315 6,135,081 15T7.55 0,745,560
Derengnilioms during the vear {EILEITH (AILEIT)
As ol 31 Derember L3065, 314 | Lt e B | 7045 465 47,103,153
et book valoe 3L 345 238,025 b | 5.06d3 238 254,606 41T
COMPANY
B Righn of use aseeis Binle' beaschold Laml Bluilaling Tutal
righi
MVHE MYH MYVE AVER
Az at 1 Janmary 16,154,717 111,954 704 551,795 122 705,31 6
Audehitivon chrimg the vear = 11 &2 467 ERILEWE L3 A6R 656
Mindifications during the year - 12923215 - 129.232,045
[e-pecapnitions during the year = = 1541,7495] 551, 795%
As ot 31 Deecmber 16, [SET1T 51,548,254 3045, 180 ITLO5A, I6L
Depreciatinng
As ot | Janoary I 3.5ET 40 LOLTES, 353 61264 TLEILTHL
Chairge Tor the yeai B1.,325 5,135,082 1,088 6,237.45%5
Dercagnitians during fhe yes - (E0.437) (ALEIT)
Ad @1 31 UDecemlsr L3006k 574 5,2 3470 1513 25,051 139
Nl bonk valse 30150,343 218 20 TRA 192,674 43,063 R
%4 Company's mssels phedged as seemrity for lnuns sod beremsings
NEY oy wl
Rank { Lesder Corremcy Farility amsount  311-12-2832
Right-nf-use anei M¥R
Mad' |mashold land HEBC MY¥YR L34 2N ER LY
Liwevantarn land MiIE S 4,370,504 3,981,552
tedmafushi lazd am USD 4,578 %548 1975, 14T
Fralluimale |mped land plol 0004 MCH MYR L3500 TRAG5 570
Villimnle lazd MCH MR 1314900 10,475,707
Hulhumale |eazed land plof 10618 HEL MWVE 7,100,020 41,536,211
Tudal 141,246,119




Mabe' Waler aml Sewersge Company Pvi Lad

MOFTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year emiled 31 December 2022
b Lieases jrontinged)

o aul below o the camying amodnts of bease lahilities and e movoments during the: peried

GROLUP CINIPANY
IEE  Lease Halxilites A As A i Az at
¥i-11-3§22 Ji-t2-2021 Ji-1g-Tmia J=IZ-2021
Timperadl fale Mlabwrity MYR MYE MYH MYVE
M- caomeni T F023-2077 2068 855, M4 132,414,304 254 35 35K NER 105 354
Cursnt 5 el irki 120,571 q% 101 AL, e uze 440
l'ﬂjﬂ:!!; imﬁ? 1191313 1]
As ot | Janaary 26628, 36 [EFS L L O P 1117, 1H683%
Addition 28_551,857 12,5026 15,560 655 -
Aoomelivs af imanesi 2424 | R [0,247.507 230,157 KN 850
Termresion of kass (514,255 {3BIRILTH [ Skl A5 -
SlENcat s thinsg The o 129,232 U85 - 129,233,065 .
Paymens 27 260,213 25TZES(T) {23, 176485} 9, H7 O
AS ol ¥ Dhixembar 2 HLU'H 154 AV5ART N NFETRTT
Ve fallowing pre she amssunty relacheg 1o leases recognised in prefin ar lass:
GROLUP CIAPANY
Year codad Wiar ented Year ended Vear endssd
¥i-11-30k3 3i-13-3a3 Fi-ix-3023 F1-13-3031
Depreciadioas charge of Righl-af-ase-msots MVH MVIL MVIE HE'F'_E
LLemsehald righu ki 315 K1335 E1.325 31125
Land O, | 35,082 4 320 el B, 1A5082 05 097
Bulising 3527 55% 310 T1,088 TLOB
i, 743060 TALLITY 2 ¥T AT 4.397,51%
[ryteresi pcpense on e Hahiliie
Land 32,2402 A3, T 32064751 b UL
Iushdng 1,314, 53R 1,138,019 WD A 42,787
Equipmenis 304 T30 0,723 . -
24, 340.860 10 247500 L‘lﬁlﬂ LT
Toisl amaunt recogrivad in profit o lnss 34,085 ¥ 17 65H,ETH T ASLEST 13,149, 20%
LROL P CIIPANY
g Maiwrlsy aaalyyle of undbeounied weom-omrrenn g an A an As all Asal
lezine Raleilitios ko2 Moo 31-12=2022 3132031 Ji=12-2800F JE-12-1021
MVR MVR MVR MVR
Betwtar | to 2 yean 25 T BS8G A5 85T UA% 433,740 ETA18TH
Homwer, 2-3 yensy S5.415,083 2 TR A0 &5 00 dKE 204,160
Al & v id {rad E) 646, 143, 047 Sk, B0 000 143, |6k 37
1074, 267,031 HERCET Lie7.583 3i% 100, b0
kL Loverament grani GROUP COMPANY
LR Asat Az at A%k
i-13-Fnid Ji-12-30d1 ¥i-lz-20k3 A-i3-2gi
MVIL MY MY MR
Ay al | Jammary IR0, 284 fRR R T 12, 004.254 | 5892 Shi
Relessad Ba nilier tmeammn [k N |28 Ty 2844 {28 2B4)
Ad 81 31 Decembser [T TZO15,284 [ 12.014,26
— ———
5 on- el LN o e 1] 1104845 (KK} IECLET TG [RE<UEH i H
Cumeni qrER4 338 IR SR 1A 2R
IIII]EﬁJ.'r[II'I [ERE RS [INET T 12,004 284

The smaoun ceceived ws skave applicstion weoney frean Ihe povnsmest in be meonih of Famvery 2006, pow kxe boon considernd a3 grant
recaivesd from she povernment hedod on the eeprovdl reotived Mirisry ol Fi en Lt b A0 1E Tho shrve amount insisd oy m
gl izl wouhid b rpltased S0 inceme sSatowet 'ever [S yerss of pericd since dhen

Theere are ma unfoli¥ed cosditions or contingenets: anachoed  hese granls,

Copirmol Babilile

GROUFTCOMPANY
TR | A onll
A0-13-2022 3-13-HEL
MVR AMYR
Consinecfion refeniion 24515 451 163737
Cloniract schancst 1415380 M-
A MELAAL Ab %0, 560
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GROUP COPANY
I Treadeaid aiier pavables A 6t A sl A al Asat
Jp-13-2022 J-12-2831 J-EE-ZREE 31-E2-2020
MVR MVE MVH WVE
Trade pryebien 105,330,348 B, 05 4 55 L L5 Sn0 LR N
Arncunts due o relanal pecties (Nile 11 G GHT A1 21,918 103 ol 587,034 27 566,807
Acerued eepeases 1,443,624 3,801,581 1,417,243 204,040
Chier pavehic: 31,568 4173 32.232.545 51T BG5S 11.541.202
Dividend Mavable TR, T, TIH.0=4 33T TR TEE, 305 T8 Sl 538
Ritirement graiuisy beneff 53,703,010 {3410 5]] 1, 705, B 418511

_LMERIEE  EARMISNG L MLETANG _ BESTLIL

261 The ampourt due to rebaied parties are wiseciiral, interest firos and hovg no fined repayment poriod. Accordimgly e sntlee amme's dis
kave hizen presenced ag (ullimg dis willvin oon vear

262 Aconwed eupessen of ihe Group consis with G3T payuble off MV 1380 B0AL (3021 MR 2,570 80000, sudit fee peyuble of MV
A5G, 45 (2020 MVE 553 8301 wid olher sceruals of MYE 97/ (2030 MVE 686 255),

263 iher payablos of the Cempasy fncide D&M mlcr collection pmmble BVEL 7,001 &5 7 (30217000 81 W), O spase Fand pasabi
MYR L5140345 (202]: MVR | 314,040, sdwnce neeeived for Hiva erploee hosing poject i Hulhomale WVR 25 705 07
(021 MVE 19781 5520, Penalks Comporstion collectson pavable MWR 1ET, 1ROC C202 1 ROV | 847, 1800, ), Legnd experses payohle
MYR LE36, 10 (2021 Mil), Wishiodding tax prodsion MVIL 119564520 (2021: Will, and ocher pewshles of MV 10459 4500 (3320;

MY |07 S0
2654 Potivewsm gresnity benefb Group Company
by bl rh gy i
Dpesring baluno 45,419,511 41834, N0 44,414,511 41 026,700
Currsl pdrvics beal 1,67k, 12257 %A% 0,678,500 L1357 BhOS
i fis e 1,273,094 | MERATH 22730098 1928 62K
#uziusrial gain (4, 191504 (50 245 4,197 B4} (3,044 B2
o, 173,50 Si,F6H 314 €4, 173,368 HLGE.814
Lipes: paymenis during the yes (470,5381 [1,148.300) 47, 51E (MR
Closing halames 0, TR A dg &149.511 i, T A0 49410511
— TTIEErT ———————— ——
Fusllowimp mmetsts ar recognised i peafit or lees sed Chlier cneprehaise Beome tirkes the year in respest of mtirement boefl
Lrruup Company
Baky i 023 L
Amoiens Feeoguised b profin oF foee
Lurress senvies el { Mok 5.1 78, 12557 BOF 15.578,503 TEIST HGS
Erdcrest cost { Mioke 5.1} 2273250 284628 2215208 138633
13.55] 491 L4.286,49] 1895 1,301 1 Tad 405
Ammiar reedgaiasd b ofver compreirsrnive oasme
Astuquin] kees daw w0 chazges in wssumpticns - (24T 144E) - AT AR
destunnnl gain due to changes by caperbenes 4,197,824 A0 16 5] A 157 534 1146333
Actunsinl gin 4,137,834 51, HRE 1167 834 5544335

Raticement pramuiy bénefiz linhilicy & avturially waloesd by Mr. P, Gumscinm, AALS, ns ot 31 December 2022 and the appropsin:
uiljmdimimis have boen pdpaned in the financial naimmmes, Koy assumplions wsed in the calovlsiion e os follaws

Significam sslimeles: sotusrisd ssmmplioms vod Griap Company

sensitiviny maz ki 22 204

Expemad sniary nilation &7 AL TN 617

Dsiclount rme EN d AN 4. 600G A

Marinity o AL AGT TR AGTI L AT L

Btalf furneves rabe freuploage 60 Paouplo apgs & Peupto zge 6 T upto oge Sk

Dimsabilily iZlacss miz 1% wf 44770 1P off AGTTD  10% of ASTID 1 of AGTITD
Uk Lk L Ltk

7=
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MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26,3 Seusivivity of pssumptisns employed In acmansl valustion (cosfinued)

The following table demonscrates e scasitnaty to & rensonably possible change i key assumptions emploved with ull other
viiablies Geld constant in the empioyerend hesedli Habliy messmmemeni.

The sensitivily of the slemesl of Grmciel pasition is the «ffsct of the meimned changes in discouel rate and salory insremes
rate on the profic or kes g employment benefit oblignticn for the year,

roup | Company

b1k ] 20z2 iz il P
Llabdlity Change Linbility Change
Hae i3, TUA 831 63,700,001
1% Inoous: insahiry inflation rece T, 995.47H 14.59% TLOYEATH 14.5%%
1% decrease in salary indlasion ral SHGDAET  -1201% SEOG0EET  -12.00%
1% inerense in dscoumt rase 55, 550347 =12, 78% 55559347 -1 L TR
1% deresse fiv Facoam caie 73,784,523 15.83% TA V84 52N 15 83%%
1 %4 lerease in #8adf turnover rate 61,494 &5 AT il 34 R0 S I )
1% decrmase i stz T horaover rate fy, i B4 3 445% (il iR R 4.02%

Aiiilysla gl imaderdty profile

The apalyiis wis peeformed hoed an the fufure working (152 linse of cael indivilual cemplovee. The expected firmme working ife
cunngiders the probelsliy of en eadl dus 1o withdrewal, death or disability price o retremesi e

Group ¢ Companp s or 4} Decgpmber T017

Mmither of Avernge futmre || Hetirememt

Futurs axpeenid warloing life empluyees expecied benchit
narking life abligatien
Willsin the next 12 o ] 1 s UL
Botwesn 1-2 vears ] I a1 821
Berween 1-5 yean 17 4 T 12
3

Betwermn S0 yeary 9 SUIELLT
Bevort 10 yerirs b0 sl soemios
Toiml EET] n e TENTET]

Greaap S Company or af T Decombar 2021

Number o || Average Toiure || Belirement

Future expected warking life enmployies ixpietion benedll
lile -IIJHilI-UI
Wikhin the ngwt 12 momihs 1 TEE] 134,241
Between |-2 yeans i s 4 218331
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Made' Water 2nd Sewerage Campany Pwil Lid
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Yiur emded 31 December 1022

P

9

Loegal risims onid contingemcy

T Cosrgamy bas fikd 2 o= aganst Globel Projects Develgmient Privala Lasdind (5FD"] to recver Jiquisity damages amounting o ST
5, 100h, Ba 2 cnusnd e Do Uhe defays in completion of works awanded to the Ginbal Projects Developmist privete Linded (G0 by & comtmd dnsd
on # Oeteber 20011, Judgerand in fivour of MWSC wm pessived in the Civil Coun oo 27 Augsst 2007 bn WWSC0's ohbim agalos: SR for
liqmideted damages. GED qrp:dn“ll: dociainn, but bl iba High Crssni and Sug Conr upheld tha iz im Svor of MWES, WORET ins
(hledd fur enfestemenl of the payreent in Civil Court, bt GPE elalmed tsey lack the financial capasiy 1o pay and wne seeking dasmipes from seothor
pany. Mepodinbin Jus o spithament bitwoen tho paries are siill possibie.

Sports Engineerng and Recretion Axis Maldives Put Lid (S2EARA Malidwed) Tiad fed o segligaioe clam agains) MWSD wl the Uil Cout, The
claim sligpes thet the Compasy cased dimage 16 SEARA MakSives® sioceroan/siownom during the replacement of old waler meters by opening a
vave, pesulling m flooding. SEARA Maldives s sedking demapes totalimg MV 4,610 33087, which iscludes varinus loasos sach as rovarme fiom
daniaped imvmiory, canceled mmvidces and conORel, wWArshTEe RN SXNoa, ShOWRSN o ching Selay comg, brand imap: reovery, and loss.
The procgadings o the Gl Dot are carmeni Iy on podegs, nod go Gnel decisicn his beon renchall Howerer, il i unBlely that SEARA Maldiva will
b ke b esiovefink e plipenes on the part of Bse Company, oe ovieateon s sl besin eitabliabail.

# tomer Boerd Direstor hid fHed & cldm agendl MWSC ol the Civil Court afber the claiment's resigmation 2z a boand member resabed m e
termination of an apartmen! eflened o ihe clibmant under the employo: hosging =l The gl dlleges thas the Company bremched the serm
o T #ale e prorchame apreement. aven fhough the claimant kad slrsady jd the 230% glvame e eaking f2 of MVE 332,700 08 The il o
seeing @ debemmation of a vabd agrecment and a finding of boeach of cordract, as well as lagal foos ol MVE 28000 The Uiy s pesponited
to fhe alaim om 05 Ociober 2022, Hewever, thee: i no evideses pb suppor: the chimants claim tha gipned agropmomt exials besween the pastios i
i# Enparisnl & note that the clammint was gyes n oeodiivoasl [siver siehog bl both parties would sign o sals apd parckase nprecment Based oo the
ovailable elaim ol documests, # is unlikchy than the coert will role in fsver of the ols

Fhnamelal vigk managesmnt ehjectives and poliches

e Crong's priccipal fnancial lakilities compriss menesi-bearing boans and borrowings, irede and wher pesbles (noleding prvasles o celuind
parses. The main purpasz ol these dnancial lasilities i in reee finanece for the arraq's aperatiome. Tha (iroup's priraipal financial agests imclada
e e whies, cash in hand and belances waty the henks wiich arse directly from is spertons,

The Croup is repased &5 Toreign TRATENLY sk, "ql.h'dll.'lr plak.,medin sisk abed inlorest feke The Ghuup's P Enii e ey e Fha: msin g trsin|i
af these iisks amd thi Baand o Dirociors revices pxd agrees policics for maraging each of these tisks, which sre sumnparized helow.

Farslgn sareeney Fik
Esprraee i owerency risk
The Campany's cxpesure to Srsgn cammy fek in equnalent Maolévisn Eufiyaa is as folows

Campamy Hix kL
ELR 50 ELR BISDH
Trucli payainles - (838,504,011} = (105,520 G4y
Uesh ond cash sguivalents [ ORT] A1 456,750 A5 27K e, 50,05
Bummirsings - [ERAL RS = L2 M0E, 381§
e Sianginsal off nacdixd Fﬁlmﬁpﬂm‘f 13 200 [E3E 6041 R) 330 27E [T, 1T
Tha fall i ng &l gni Rt exchong: mile huve been upplicd:
Averape rate Spot rate
pirad {1k} it L2 1§
LIEE | MR ix4200 154200 154200 15,4300
ELE | YR IGA3LT 12802 151 1E3A AT
0¥ 203l
MVER MVR
Beel foreign enchanps pain | (loas) arising frens foneien purchases AT T ] 583,560
Ewchango losacs an feceign cusvency homoreing ingladed in france coss -
Tizad net forcipgn exchange (Insses) mcognised b profln belne moome mx for e period Hed 134 3568




Male' Waler and Sewrrage Company Pl Lid
NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Wewr coded 31 Desmbor 2012

%1

Farelgn carrency risk (Contlnsedi
Kinwigivity Anniyriv

A remenobdy possinle sidgihening deeakenmngh of the sora, US dollar sgminst all the oiber cumencies 38 Y1 December would bave nffecied he
FEEHWTGIRET 0F SRanEl nsnmwems denomisstod in o egigs cormeacy aed atfeciod oguety and poofin of 05 by the eneme: slown bdow The
nialynia psumes that all ocher varfables (e parteiiler ol mies, remmis poosant ignons amy impact of faccoast il and parchied,

Champd im LS Effeet om profit Edfect an pre-tax

Company e befare lnx en equity
a3z A% (ER R 12613001
b | 2611021 {12,61302 1)
a1 3% BI3EAS IS
kL 18,235 453 (8,235 4559
Changs: in EUR EMaer gm girsiie s un pre-lay
Cumpany FRLE Bifere iox mn eguliy
oz % (519 (081%)
b1 2.513 151
031 L (L& HfiS) (1885
i A0S 18666

In respacs of e meeneary assds @ liskilices denomimed in USEL the Corsgpany bag a lmilied fak sipoiine on sich halinses sincs tha
Mealdivian Rufiyaa is pepped s the VST withis o id W Ductiabe within £ 20% of the mid-paint of cachange rabe,

Liguidiny risk

Ther Crreip’s objectren o 1o maintem @ balance betosen comluuley of fundlig aed Neailsbty though the o of ilerpil braneg lonms, bank
avemdmitks s relitgd pisty borrosrimps. As o part of its overel]l prodent Bogmdily nemagement, the Group malnmias sufilclent lea) of mash wnd
< enquivalents 1o meet jis worloing spitad raquirnenl The conipay s B the process of adjusting the wey to meaage liquidcy o repand 10
the carrent markel tusocid by way af aliernative fusding isiegh workisg capial, nepotisting sappiie pasrents. debl iestesiunng sle.

Laomn Coavenknts

Lhadew the terms of (e majoe borronning faciBee, the Groop i required to comply with the fllnwing finamcial convenants:
Lamiler Fnrility Mnjor Loss Comvenmts

Eeahih bank limiced MVE. P cvardun with sy olhes ok under the mame o Male” Wirksr anil
[Fmanizg of coctersal 77,100, 0 Bewcrape Campany Pt Lul

pmjecis]

[E%auks Agqua-Tech LED, 1,333,000 Mo gpnifcs inancial convenantz

Ergissiing

Mlauriion Commercinl MVE ZA74.900 Mo dividend declarvion andtor payment siould be mode wighou te Bl s prver weine
Bassic (Wiler Searags) CopEe

BAabSroey Balamic Raak { TR AT 506 Mo sgnificant feonclal conveosnis

BANVELC Hivar Projesi)

HEBC Limited (300 Islard VR, Currend matio to ke martined sbove 10x

Wnler & Sewonipe Syslen  F54, 200,000

rrojusy Cezasing Twiio 10 b2 mEieminsd hekow |9

Dbt Bervice Creby Cowver ratin o e mamisiesd above 1,25
Dkt ity endvee o 5% 10 5% 1o bo mimtamed

Misubeski HC Copliad Asia  USEX 1, ZT700 34 Noaigaificant Gnessisl convenania
Facifi

Msuzisk HE Caplml Asin USID, 74 AT No significsnt Rnsneial cosverant
it

Minsuziskd HC Coplml Asia LS, 3UEE 107~ Mo cignilcasy Gnamial comenams
Pacifiz

Mltldives Fesinice Lesding LSS | 0l [y P wignilicu=a finnncial sonvenank
Company (Cass Botiling

Progeet]
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Fi

Lirguidity mick (Cantinued)

The tahle belaw anilyses the Groop's Gnancial libilites o rebevant maturity groepings bmsed on the rerainang peried o g stptoment of fnaocial
pitian cate W e comtmpetual matur ity dose. The aments Jidchissd in the 1ehke s $e confrctosl undisceunted cash flave

AL Biimber D2E
Tresfic and ather payabic
B

L rmse [imini i

At 31 Devember 21
Triwde ] gilier payably
Berroraings

L [ i

AL 31 Dheepmilior 21X
Trade ard other payahle

BorTawings

Lssuna Ll livaes

AL 31 ke cember 201
Trade and other pupabie
Bt ioraimgs

Lemea lapiliny

-Ai-

GROUP
Cinbrastuel Casli [ R FETTI Butween 1 yeary
Carrying Amsusi Fow a0l T yoars Bebween 25 years Abore Sves
H"I:E_ MVE MYR MYR MVR SV
PR T N Sa5S 40,210 505 PE TR R - = =
B B T 4B 8T 9T HIA69 (W= EE T [FEETER 25,600,578
ITTH 5 107 TR 1D J-I_,;':_!_J.l'-ll. 216, 737.459 5415081 G54, [k, 300
LT DM 1471 71,704 1068595 173 EAT AN0LAAR FELETD § RS, 65,105
ERS T4 002 BES 514013 IRS ST -
125,14 EE 191,180 40 FR01EATT 4TS 1A% W 3873T4 24,146 407
|26 6TY 1 LEL 0 TH A 018152 25 Wi S Ehl'.l'H:I,ﬁHl s T2 7
[N LI 388 i 15 SO0 A &3, 33057T 184 0erin s |0, 180,474
COMPANY
Conkraciunl Cmby L ss tham 11 Detween 1 years
Carrylng Amesm Flaw e kT Bebwous 2-3 ¥oars  Abmaw S vears
MYR MYR MVR MYVH VIVH
a3RH1TI0 0L.E17, 70 36317700 g X :
FEEBAL T4 Az RTY 107 ST IOEATT 11B642 5D 180 RES TRT 25 00 5T
A4 ATE 8HT 1,003 SR, 402 e ) SRR 45,5 T AR AR5 TR
1 580097 M1] 1453, 162, 183 [REERETNTE] 133,678 720 FI0EI AR LATE,| 71 560
Rl BOETS) winl i 71 e IR | - o
[B-RNE R 121119450 99 ESTT 42,767,133 T4, 287,374 2 | T
1 I{l.l]l.llr!_ IR OES S84 4RE A5E 124,111 30454 000 6T, LR AT
LI27.070 84 1.253,013; 768 [TEE R Gl LEB4S Tl 1404 1B65136T4




Male' Water and Sewernge Company Pyt Ltd
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year endéd 31 December 2022

%
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Financial ritk mansgement objectives and poblcies (Continued)
Credit risk

Credis riskc fi e risk fhat o counterparty will not mest its ehligatians under 2 finascial instrumant or customser contract, kending
o n fnancis loss, The Group is exposed w credif risk from ils opemting sctiviles (primarily ade recoivables) and from its
Timancing setivites, inshuding dopusits with banks, foreign exchongs trmnssctions aivd othe il insinoments, The maximum
expnme W credly nisk ot the sod of flve reparting period ia e carrying unsount of cch s of financial asscts montioned bedow,

The Croup frades only with recapsised, creditworiby third perties. It is the Group's palicy that all ike custmers whio wish ta
fracde on credil lenes ore aobioct to-credit evalaaion procedires. The Croup has on astablshad credit polizy spplisd by which the
eredit atsbugs of sach new customer is reviewed before condli & advancal In sdditlon, receivikbiz balances are momnitarsd o an
anpaing bosk 0 U b minimize the Cirosn's exposre o bad debas,

ﬂihl‘-‘-l‘-"l-l'll-':mrup irndes only with recegnized third pestics, there b no requiresnent far callaicesl,

Memsuring the ECL - Explamnation of inpats, assumptions apd estimnation techniques

The Flnmelsl mses of MWS5SC mainly. compeised of san-mierest bearing trade receivabies, Flence, stmplified sppooach wos
falbowed far calewlstion of ECL. IFRS 2 alloes an entity to usa 8 simplified “provissan moirix® for cboulating expecied kswes
w3 procticol expedient (.., tar tradle recoivablas), iff consistent with the genoml prinoiples for measuring eupested fosses. Tho
provision muatrix is based on an eatiey’s historical defwalt rates over the expected Efe of the tmde Tecaivables md is adjustad dor
farward- lnoking eerinaies,

The Cirowp ealcalines the Expeciid osees by grouping 18e noeviveblus into celegories of sharsd crodit rsk chamclerislios:
= Liility -Diomestic Cuslomers
= Litility- Commrercinl snd Indusisial Customers
= Lhility - Governtent or Insiitstions
= Liliy - Cither Sendces
+ Boun-Uility - Government Cassmners
+ Bom-Llilizy - Cabeer thon Guvcrmanent Custormers

BCL has ot been ealeulsted for siofF sdvinces, onsk nid bank balances and other inier -company receivables, Ti is azsumed thai
there will be i delhull in recovery of tels assets,

The axpuctel cradil losses ase based om the hisiorcal hiss experivnee of ihe past 24 years and the fuiure cxpecied loss retes are
then estinmied,

The hizlerical logs mtes e defermined by asbiaiping the apeing analyeie of Eifferont groaps of receivables and fhen analysing dhe
collection of receivnbles from ene ageing brackel 1o anoibir and obtain 2 Probabilily of Default (PD) sae for cach spoing
bracket, MWSC considers the credif rsk 1o have significantly increased for debis aged oves 90 days and therelfore over B0 davi s
tnken as defunli, Loss Given Default (LGDY raie is obtained by considening receivables moee than 90 days ard a discount mbz of
1055 1t msed for the bime valos of delayed repayient:

These historkesl los rates e sdiusied B surmesl anl Soreand-lookang: mfomeadcs where # b sleniifiad to be significant

MWSLC comsiders factors such 25 mneroecomsmils and national economds ontlecoke. Maldives forecasred GO pame 5 comesdensd
for zstiving ut forssnd looking PD based on fhe reporl avuiloble in she TMF website “workd ecosomic osllosk database™,
Tuclpermaental medel & sdopted to srive al the firward leoking scalar, where the relatianchp Setween te logs rate and Maldives
GOF is not begienl or by apphang the forsand lookiog PO s resaliani ECL does ot relleet the provicioning requitemests
beased an cunrend scenana. The PO is then edpested on the foreard Iooking scalar

The Expected Credit 1nss is then calculated as Liferinwe Expected Credit Loss = Carving Value of Regzpmbles x PDx LG

For relaed porty receivables, BOL be been cabeulived separntely, with the assungpiio tlsac it will be recnvered. Only time valoe
loss Bom related party receivablea hove Boen corsidensd aa BCL

Fox surchaipes receivales an milliy bills, it is & raporry palicy of Hw compaeor oo waive off mimchargs recelvahbles on
cusicngrs wis pay averdse bills glnce 2020, Therefore 100%: proviskon on sarchange receiviblces hag been provided os BCT,

B2




Muale" Woter und Sewernge Company Pyt Lid
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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i

Finamctal risk mansgement objectives and palicles (Contmsed)

The fallwieg tnhle privides informatson abour the Company's exposers t cradit sk and BOLS for nonsieberest beanng rude
recvades and oontravl assels o5l 3 | Depember 2001,

o Cempar
Gross Esposaire ul Tngs
Expected onrryving defaul (EAD) Allownnde
Fuss rate amn

s at 11 Deceembeer 2022 MVR MVER MVEH
Trade and oihir receivahles
1=30 dayw 1587% 26,527,040 11,793,454 253,70
31-60 days 491734 AL AR 0,155,714 4277208
6150 days 400 % 3,765 446 30012 L.741,247
01365 dme 04,775 I8, 10,238 26, IR0E15 BANCLIREHH
Mdore han 365 deayd TR 3% E3 039,537 5,059, 337 631159, 557

131263 852 112,533,733 SE631,4603
Helated party receivahles
1-30 dys BT T8, 150335 5130055 1,893,459
3100 days 16T 7617 525 ITEIT 826 5270
G]G0 doya 6. 2R '."JIIF;E.T-‘-S P e L] L el
U]-265 davn i 40mg 134,00 2 s 134,012 8016 B5IE, M7
Mere than 365 days 1795% W, 77012 BETTOIE 6,339,158

A7, 60 b4 17600, bl 21,343,460
ECL om esth &t huml a2l 100, 149 419 77 800 Rl 131,494
Camlruc awxeis 6A1E% 352,549,747 A20.573,567 16561, 148
Tutal T,012,016,002 U8, 500,571 134,700,102

The Communy sade @ provismn an gress corryng amound of trmde s other recavables, related party receivahles, surchargs
feretiliie. e ul banke, and omieeel aeswle nel ol enllb@tes] eeeuries .l.:rIH.I.HI.iIIg_ In MVWE 1363067 2] MYER
133,561, %18].

Company
iross Expasure ot Los
Expected earryimg default (EAD) Alluwaies
s rate aenaund

Al ardl Deeemibor 2021 MYR MVYR MYR
Trude and other receivables
I3 duys 4.12% 42,243,114 |5, TR0 2 000, 578
S1-00 days P 118 FEN Kk 3302304 170,50
61-50 daye 1. 20% | 550, 00E 3441517 I A0, 070
Q1-265 days 1. 70% 114,153 572 T 247.531 15,747,751
Miome than 365 days 1040004 24,134,509 16 da 53] 19,344 421

20E 44 52 6T 016,158 B DK 120
Rilated party receivahbes
1-30 days Yil% a5 065,104 57 S04 9T 20,624, TIE
J1=0] duys 4.28% 19,043 500 L5643 S0 o, Ll S
f1-90 days 50004 14 BE8.2EH I#, BiE, 2N 4,545,570
1368 daye [ i 180,054 594 Nis, 054, 5494 30587, 772
ore than 365 days 25 45% 73,660,508 74,260,714 22,702 Y55

6, 29T A2 LT, 2WEAZ0 84,465 M
Comtracr assels £ 3% %0 482 4l 80,321,903 10,188,502
Tatal TIT A4, 784 B33, 530,080 133,561,018

53




Mlale' Water and Sevwersge Company P Led

NOTES T0O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year emled 11 Deeembor 2023

1§ Finsniial visk nosagament abjectivis and pollcies (Continesd)

A8 Crmid rink

Ad i 31 Deeecmber 2022

Trally apd wtber receivables
{30 dns

3160 dr

61-50 dins

F1-165 dayx

Mlore then 563 daga

Ralsted party receivaklon
=30 tlays

F1-60-gays

i L} days

01-365 digs

Pefrme Than F6S days

ECL on cash 1d banks
Conrrsel issels
Tuial

L i
Weightil Laragn Lasz
AVETRpE carrving ::;ﬁ;;” Alewapco
loss Tute umauml
MVE MY MYR
15.00% 0 150,285 15 AE53T4 L 17rAIT
15 005 L LR e 4,ET8 435 RRIRE
¥1.0665% o0, L H) 3,30 803 LT, 504
TLTI% 19,811,401 17, HaR52E 14, i, 551
1L El!.l_a'“]ﬂ'.'_'.lﬁl 6, | 16 ATE O L LG Aa7K
141,150,719 122, 7HL 55T 1842, 460
2.00% 5,2 15635 5,215,835 2,850, 449
2.01% 32,653,735 32,853,735 A7
3.4% 68,7 IETAI 4.7 14,7h] LR IR
55H8% P07, 100 5% 1T, A%E 6,532 T47
9. 73% T4, 10T, 0 'J&'-"?l'.".:i"hﬁ L4 Sils 676
JE1AUS 3N MIAF231 29,530.¥76
Q30 117.4%,632 TTAISHE A0
b Wi 151940, 747 310,.571.347 L&, 561,145
FTLTIR, 59 ARY, 1020 T, 168,078

The Compmey mads o prevision on gosa m@mying amount of tadé and olligr reeeivables, relaed pasty peecivables, secharge reseivebies,
gy al hanks, aid eoeiees) nprts 10 of epdincral securitics amdanting w MYHR 136,163,073 {2021 MVE 1345550510

M al 1 Diwecmber IN21
Tradhe nnd adher receivables

130 dags
3140 deys

190 days

91349 duve

s Ihem 502 shays

Feiatad party recetvables
1-3) doys

1150 dnys

&1/ days

A1-3A7 davs

More tham 364 days

Cairact assls
Tatal

EenalBvily analyils

i e
Cirags E e Lo
Expecied carmving 5 Allonance
loas rabe amuouni SR EA
MYVR AV MYR
4.0i5% 4%, TN, TR0 21303584 | O, S
onTs 10, M7, HE] 3 L35 275 |48 TIE
1512% L3555 A, i P 1
47 G426 P27 GTR ll,l'i‘l.'ﬂ’ IlﬁﬂH.SI-ZI-
108.00% S 559,555 IS 458661 35 450,661
210,780 573 TR IS 525 41 248 /TR
A5 14250, 242 14 5250, 262 2,463,073
4340 14,405 300 14415300 L 87,505
A 154332 15 4HL33 L2ae0 112
i E1% A5 4575 RS D42 5T L4 Z51kROY
b 40,546,715 G240, T HLT15.84
220,957,447 2Z0.957 6N H1,541.341
5 bt 230,REL e IMEEEL R 10,188,592

T Bed BT ARdAGS I

ke

S ol below aee the clisges 1o e ECL o nos-inicres biuning comne 4550, ide and reloed pargy Teoevables s ot 31 Deceishio
T Wk weonld el o recsonslaly poasible chasges in the parenser Som the setuel assumption used in Conipang®s soonomis

SETiahie a8 s i,

Campamy
Loss pllowance 2z &t 10 Decensber 20232

ECL ECL BCL
MVR MVR MVR
L24% M-12:2012 0.24%
38 418 452 | 36,766,792 | 376950133
BECL ECL ECL
AR MV MVE
0.24% 31-12-2031 HL.24%
133,242,068 143,461,814 | 3%,RED, 865
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I8 Financial risk masapement ahjosfives and policies (Contlnued)

104 Indevest ralo risk
The toup's sapowre to mmarket risk B clanpes in intares) mles nelbes prmanty be e Gomg's loag-tenn @2kl chlipiome. The
inuesiment ducicione e made by Dareoiore Evimyy dus eelevarse ko e Grpap's (lnsssia] sl oy il nucked sicrest s,

T interesd e proffile ef tho Ciroup’ &' Compasy® 5 invares)-beering fnensial instrmeands as reponed (o the sanagesen of B Growg)
Coemqany ie a& fallowe:

31-12-2022 %% of faial louns I-12-283) 5% of ratal bsins

VIVR S BVHE
Varnable rate berrowings 133,937,655 5%y B S Oy 0%
Fined paie bormwingsropricing or meturity dnies
Loenn them | yoar JEAa0 02 U L TEE 2T I
I-5 yoarn 127,464,700 % AO14.6LS 5B
Choer 5 pemy
JER43,741 _nm. 155140545 1%

Ftr valae sensivhity sualpeis for fived-rafe dnsfrmmants

The Groups' Company dies sl seesinl Bty fixed-nte financil s or finanoial lohilites @ FYTPL Thesfun, o change in
Intgrost rades o the reparing dato woild not «lfqs profinor boss.

Camit fiow cemsliteliy amalisds for ienaile-raie frairumenis

A reasntly posskde choege of |00 hidis painli in ingéresl rvtex at the reporting dain would have jscresssd (decoeasal ) egel £y wendd
jreelil eor bt by Lhee mmoiinds shovwn Selowe This analvate assumes tat all other vaniables. in partizular fmoeim cumm oy exchanges ribes,

[EITLLLE Db DTl

Inercee J Iimjragt on sther
dicrizadn in bdsks ht‘:::'::.j compomenis if
polmis equity
Varnlkls rate lEstrumenis Fiite

Hrxp - 10 132315058 1126805
+ 1} (13231535 (112468053

Mzl « 1 155,105 T 15] 41532
1 1k {155, 0B 79 {131 333225

9.8 Accounting chssilieathen and fair vabues

The Babovwnng bl sbwwd the cisying amounis eed fair values of financial assets and fleancisl lakilitics, including the b bevels in the
fair value Bicrarchy. 1 does not Inchude el wilie InSmmmtion o fmncil resols md fnsacin Gebilitics nol mosured at farvalucif
the FRFVAARE Afosnl i3 3 reasonabie sgprocmation. of Tair velue.

LEruip Carrying smount
A wk 31 Drecembeer 2022 Flmasecbsl maseis ut Fnsncizl Totul
Maoiw amsarikerd sug) labligio: ol
amT it cosl

Financlal aszeis mot mesmred ai Talr value
Conimnal wels 14 J36.42R 603 - JN6, 2R 500
Trade e oiber reveivabics 17 I 2H7, S0 - 376,287,311
Cazh wid sl eyulvalenis i4 12%A74,058 - FEG, HT4 358

HIR U ATE a RN R TY
Financkal lisbilitses nol messicred s fwir valse
Hafrraings Il - AR E43,. T4 | HIAAAN, TH]
Contrazt Hibilicies 13 - s6.501,431 56531 K11
Tmde and other payahles h{ ] - Qa3 2 10 S0 110,008

= I 345, %ES47T 1,345 306,477
Liramp Carrving amoumt
Asan 3 Dezember T820 Fimancial sscets ad fimamcial Total
Mnie amortced cosd Nizhilkbey ai
annFlieed eosl

Fimmcial asseis aoi measwered of fic valoe
Clomiract ssceis 1] L ATD g B0 A4S AT
Trade aid other rezeivahles 17 TLL, 16,268 - A6 268
Caih anil sash squivakmia ia 162 BB 387 - 16E, E2E.987

e SEY RS - ﬁ.ﬂ"?.ll‘}
Finznclal Babiliiies not eseasured of falr valos
Bumawings 1 : 155, 1411 RRR 155,140 5354
Cortmcl mbiliisy 5 - A6 500 LIRS S
Trmin and siher pepmbles 1% - E'I'is:mlﬂll HHH!”‘

- 1060075450 1.061.1 75 45K
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Make' Water and Sewerage Company Pyt Lid
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2022

I Financial visk eanapesent sbjictives ol policies (Costinged)

195 Acecantlag dlasifieation snd fnir values (Continyed)

Caimpany Carrying smounl
Axat 1 December 2022 Finamrinl nsseis finamckal Todal
Mube al nmuriized cosl Habdlitbes at
nmoetized casi
Finumcial nzeets mot neeasored sl Gade value
Comirnet wissis Ih 36428 603 ' FTb 42N, nlY
Tricle and offer recervakles 17 424154 797 - 428,194,787
Cashi amd cash equivalents 1% 133 134 BaS - 123 136,845
AAT.Ti0, 235 - 337760, L35

Finnmekal linbilitics wol measored al fair value
Bonmowings 2 - g 843,741 45
Conirmct linbiliibes o - 30,5351 56,531,831
Trede and oiker proyskles i - P64 1T, 793 SI6.H17,783

- 1,242,590 168 1,342,505 148
Company Carryimg amounk
Asal 31 Pecomber 2031 Finnncial nssets finumcial Tatal

Mote at amnriked eost Iinbdlivies at
amoriized cest
Finamkal mespdn motl meeasured ai fodr valoe
Contract asseis 16 230 403 BT . 220,493 HTE
Trade and neher recenshilog 17 Sk 705574 5 I, TR5.5T4
Cach asd cash equivalenis 1H 159190 KEd s 158 300814
G450 258 = “‘I.ﬂﬂ'&

Finandial HabdlEles nof measored at falr valiss
Borroninga i - 135, 144 Rae 155,140 456
Cenlrect linbalibae 17 - Sk A 560 LIS
Trade and ocher payakle: i8 - Bl 508,751 ZE1, 808,751

- LAST.410,1% 1057410197

X Caplinl fak manapeniont

The Group's shjetive whin maeaping capatel are o sefeguand the Group's ehifity o conbiowe & & going concem ik ondes oo peoyide
returnis fior sharcholiders and benef@s for cther stakehaldess and to malntain an optimsl caplial structuns to reduce the cost of capital

In arder 1o walsiain of adjusl the capitad straobaro, e Gaoup may odjust the s of divldends poyable o shensholders, issus pew
sharer or sall azseis 40 rednee deht im Hght of changes i the Groip's oporaisan,

Ths Cirenga memiturs cagilnl un thy bayis of the gearing rotio. This retle s caloulated as weydleb divided By ol capiml. M deh) ix
waleulnied as botal borsowiags (mebading “eurrest nnd nem-curment borrowinge! ae shown in the cssanlidated holanee shost] liss osh
and gishsquivnlents, Tete] capatnl ia eabaulased as 'apisn, ax dhawn in the consoliclated statermens of inaacial prsition, phas net deht

The gearing ratios as ot 31 Deccmibes was i Folle

GROUP COMPANY
AR al AR af i wl A ad
31122023 -k §ix-hiiz Fi-12-2020
MVE MVI MV MK
Tedal Bl.ll.'.m-l.illg.l {Maile 22) 348 44574 (EEREE L 24K 841 7L 155, 11 B8 D
Legs: Cash and Cesh Equavalenta (Mo 1E) (l26,374,058] (162,338 98T) | 12X, 136 B45) (L% 150814y
Mt defoi 135360 691 (TAZR100) 235,706 500 (4, 240.023)
Tokal egaiy | TR I5H, 685 1. 03550372 L.TES 49 922 1.555,733,K548
Tatal caphial 1&“11.3&1 1,698.192,272 1,951, 3560518 1,561 483,031
Grarmg ratio 11 03%, - 10.54% =

aring ribio his inereasser] due to fneresss in barrowvings,  -56-




Male' Water and Sewerage Company Privatz Limlsel

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2003

31

Related party iransecibom

The Group is cootrolled by the Govenment of Moldives which owns 80% of the Company's sheres, Titachi Lid owns 0% of the

o pary's shaess. The Coimpany hokds 51% of (e shares of Isiand Bevernges Maldives Py Lid Champa Broshers Maldives Pyt Lad
Bolds 9% af 1he shaves af kakand Bevirmges Maldives Py Lid

The Tidlowing trunsactices were carried out with related parties:

i " :
Crwmwrnz] Maldives Bamgali (sland
Hurawnlhi lskaed Resom
Kirediy Island Resort
Bleem Jeland Rason
Tians Maldeeman Asrways Pyt Lid
Waksrufelh Island Resom
Welignndu sl Besoct
Wikssmeullics 1sland Fesar
Barihi Bsland Pasort
Sipae Tencling Chrpamizstion PLC
Muoldves Industrin] Fishenes Co Lid
babdves Custom Services
lzlund Avintios Serdees Limibed
Mubhves Pulioe Servioe
‘Tree bop Realt gt L1d
CHlser Tlovernmeni relabod endiiles
Izland Beaveernges Maldives Pat Lid

iy P

lsland Bevemges hnldives Py Lid
Hitachl Agesiech Eaginmrieg Pst Lid
Hitachi Ll

Oitwet Dvvemiment related entftics

i) Year-cnd balances arising from sakes, porehasi of poods and services

Conrad Baldives Ranpall bland
Huswanlhy [sland Rosorl

Kuredn [slasd Hesom

Meen |gland Reson

Trnns Maldvisa Amwaye P Led
Winkanalalhi Island Resan
Velbandu lsland Resart
Wilumesdben Islard Reson

hlirihi lsland Hesomn

Tres Tog Health Privais Tad

Police Shop

Jtnle Tradirg Cnanizmtion FLC
Mahiives Indesirinl Fieheples Co Lud
Bl Avmation Services Limrsd
Urher Govemement relaied eniities
Bland Bevernpes Maldives Pl Lid

A

GROUF COAFANY
Year ended Year entded Yiear vamled Year ended
31-12-2022 31-12-2021 M-12-2021 31-12-2021
MVR MV MYH MYH
AT 41E 500 40, 190 FEN
176 11,047 . | B456
L30.A0R B E02 = I 561
{18,525 122,715 ¥ i AE
714,352 I, 56, | B 30,913 16579
1,357 4,569 1257 1651
i 7,34 53,195 - ;
T4 3, 504 2044 14654
620 A0 Lo/ k] A 440
1,124,512 513,507 159408 :
4fd %1 AT 758 .
09,174 215,105 . ;
726,569,812 3T AL ETR TEY, 040,198 109,183,403
. 5 144,335 B 10 125,458,326
TH0, 158, 09R 275,634,007 GRG0, 107 401697750
= - dilleh, k12 213,459
£2, 048,902 13,933,336 F2, 998 5402 23,531,134
17,625,251 17,794,500 17,635,13 37,793,599
173,572,565 204,144,873 173,572 464 204, 144873
474,196,598 765,871,802 474 501 500 TR
GROUP _COMPANY
Ay at A at As ot As it
31-12-3022 3-12-2021 S1-12-2002 31-12-2021
MYR MV MYR MYE
FFALT] 35,058 : ;
17 551 i .
20,776 1176 x :
71,524 18,224 . .
fife 712,107 x .
178,246 278,246 $ ;
5 406 8,324 2 -
: 4325 - -
4 Al s :
35,050 46,424 - -
3127 . & g
b[rrd £ 220,065 -
258,527,000 108,756 A ]
49,226 173,957 . i
361 693,561 219,670,977 60,907,914 219,496, 504
= g e 6403, 128 65 126
362 495,211 Ti0,057 4R 2 417600 276,293,120




Maile' Water snd Sewerage Company Pvi Lid

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENRTS
Yeur ended 31 December 2022

31 Related party iramiactioss {osmitnmed)

iif} Yenr-end babasces arising from snles, porckeses of goods and services (eoetimaed|

Bavablas to yelsied g tics, GROUF CUMPANY
A al e Al Al in
31-51-302 M-13-20kid 31-12-2022 AY-p2-202]
MVE M YH ATV MVH
State Blectrie Comprery Limibed MRS 1013480 3,747 895 I 112481
Maklives Ishimc Mank [EIE e} - 604,213 -
Dﬁi?-aa.'- FE_-E ) 1,503 4TT pET L5054 044
Public Service Media {141 A8y EEEE {1d] 4n3] 587
Fermla Corporaibor Limibed 006 ELETTE La15 Q5500
Stalg Traing Crgmixation PLC (25 D) - (25260
i L2 - £1.217] =
land Aviatan Senaces Leniled 45 548 1330 45,085 1238%
Fuil Suppdies MakSves Py Lid 2], %07139 TAET, TS 20,967,215 LARLTIY
Adlied Fasumnes Compaiy 3374 55,794 55T 33,794
laland Beverages Mildes P Lid - - . I5E o
Maddives Fimnos Loasing Compasy T4 15T : 74,781
H:_uu. Lid 3000 T 25000 22000
Hitachi Aqua-Tech Exgincering Pe Lid 33,500, 00 135480 33 830,02 | 25450
Miadives posi Limitisd . I3, 37300 - 17,373,200
L, GHT 21, N0E, 15 ﬁlrﬂ'.'ﬁii i1
W) Dirctars’ remuseration
I 2022, u tatal rermameration of MV 006260 (2020 MVE 156811003 we puid o conp 'y dineciors.
iR COMPANY
LLE AR Aol Azt
31-11-202% J1-12-2ak1 Y12 2532 J1-1-202)
MVE L MVRE MVH
THreenst's remunarabmms L 50606 600 2ridio 52 A0 |w
L A D0 &"IFIB ].lﬂ].ﬁﬁ 1560300

W Terms aml conditbans

Water prodtaction seryioss wie e 1o the subsidizny company of & Slscint basis, All athér tmesse o wen s on ool commerisl
et b Govsditions and sl markel refen:

3 Hevhasilication of comparative isfarmation

The compasative figures. Inve bean reclissified in order bo confonn with the peeseriasion for the carenl period, Soch reckissifictions bave
bani iiede by e Oremp ndrgnovy the qualiy of mfommaiion poasemed and did non bave any |inpeet o6 the prssdoudy el ngaity s
profibs




Mlabe' Water nnil Sewerage Comgpony Pyve Led
ROTES TOTHE CONSOLIBATED FINASCIAL STATEMENTS
Year ended 31 December F022

M

Brchusilicstion of eomparstive informutiss dominyed)

lese o Spivwet poeliEad Neadae il
e r";::m Hetlagsificatisn m  Current gresenmsiles
i MV 800} SRR N
Flnancial year ended 3 e 011
Dowt ol w1 lew a7, 147 | THLA) BRI 221 S0E
K¢t Fimisce cog IIJ_J'.E_I_H-I A “'E'EF“
552,741,141 . SR 740, 148
Slaivment of Financisl Poston recdsaificatian Previsos
tGroup) i) Fafastficafion be - Chrrem prasesoriien
i VT B4 iin MYE "000) {in MVE "0
Pinancéal yesr soded 11 Dec HiEi
Trade ceccivables 0, M1 &0 (ILTGI AL 125,878, 228
Aarreunris i fram relsied partics 147,79 104 101449 2ML0ST,ER]
ERC S e 219,893,744 L1 30 ZEETLER
FT6.2070, THE = AT6.037 76
Flusnchal year aoded 31 Dec 3021
Depesit and peepavracmis 172,172 5048 ianT i 173 840,035
Capital waorksinsprogeess SN SED {1,367, 1311 SIEBYI AT
-EEE!IIHI - ﬁm*l&
limec vormea S womsamset: oo g Kl (10 ) Freviss
R it Heclmisificatian o Current presentation
i MV 908) (i ATWE 00 (i PV R T
Fimanclal yesr ended 31 Dee 2021
Ceal ol wibén ST 00,10 (L 551) ASEZED, | 4%
Met Finasee el 17,219,577 TaE 551 17 0k 2y
T : fra233377
Stntcment of Fieancial Post
(ot ity LA Tl o o H::;n Hetlnesification . Corrent gresenarkss
'P.";‘““ preidh fin MVR 00 {in MYE 08
Flmapeial year ended M1 D JIT1
Tk susivablcn AT T {7A,TOE ELG) |31 T 920
Ameuniz dus fism refaled panies B, 124,51 TR A% e
Ciestimed Ausels P15 B, T4 &0, | 38 SE0ARL BT
HXTEEI RN - GarAsLA11
Evoety afver the reporsng dare
Barrowing vty

Cummitly MWED is sepotietag & izne losn fueility with Mmeitis Conmensial Bank {8015 o fmance te Prajeat fae destign, npply
and commirstkons of D sluligs sinks of D00 cubde meters Th sotnl avadlabls smoam imder the fazility s VR 33000,000, wivich
ti enpodiend o b dvn down over e mext 13 morha cobdest W ohilgming o s chpeclioe keter fum the Housng, Devalopmant
Coeperation for land marigage purposes. The ficility & rpayahle in v-ten eyl monialy inetsbmmis inclusivo of ag ol wd
imerest afles o prace perisd of 12 mosths, commenzing sfier e few Sibursenem, The francing wil ravsls in the recogrichin o
proceeds of boatossings and repspoesnes, arel B st oxpenes will e capialized Tor (e CanSUUCIens of Wi S1erigle IRes e
in B1T% and furtier, e leistiwi) nghte ol Hulleeale® platno | 1543 mill be pled ped i securiy fer thi foeilite

Trade crgdin faciliny

A ol Lk Apell 2003, the MWEC nogotistal mn ursecered imiln o laaity weh Mohon Plathe Expons (Fd Led (MM Expoes)- o
procure gnd finance the materials o st o w the ngroamerd Sor intemal aed the Geveramem ghojects. The ol smaonl wule the
Eediy iy LIRD 200000800, cant of which LIS 52,000, 000 already uli st sl mEayrnnta am o i mede s por the paymend schsdals in
the sgreemeat. The trads <redil Teoiiity will remain svmlotée entil 3160 July 1023 @sd sy ol g inusid Bilaneo of 1he facility will
be acomaed baved on the nequitsrems of ewtemal projecse. The fsility is nipsyabls in 3 yene with manibly instal iments, as sel out la
the pryreomr sthedile in (he speemnend

Deivilend

Hubect 10 the approwml ab #e shescheldens an the Aomml Oerorsl Moting, the Boond of Dissctons recommends 2 deidend of MVE
AZE. 105 pedt sy ety Lo BV § B4 ESATI0 B i ol vesr seded 115 Devaimbar M2, The dividesd payabie feo sl
b segonmied for o] # i pppreved @ he Tonhzoméag Annual CGeneral Mesing,

o ol ber czumsteroes have onssn afbe the rponing &, that weald requing adisiments to oo dislosures in the (inmical soemeis

L1
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